
 

 

 

 
 
To: Members of the  

EDUCATION, CHILDREN AND FAMILIES BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 Councillor Neil Reddin FCCA (Chairman) 
Councillor Nicky Dykes (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Councillors Nicholas Bennett J.P., Alan Collins and Angela Wilkins 
 
 

 

 Parent Governor Members with Voting Rights 
Emmanuel Arbenser  

 
 
 A meeting of the Education, Children and Families Budget and Performance 

Monitoring Sub-Committee will be held at Bromley Civic Centre on TUESDAY 18 
JULY 2017 AT 7.00 PM  

 
 MARK BOWEN 

Director of Corporate Services 
 

 

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from 
 http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/ 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

2    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

3   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING  

 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions to this Committee must be 
received in writing 4 working days before the date of the meeting.  Therefore please 
ensure questions are received by the Democratic Services Team by 5pm on 12th July 
2017. 
  

4    MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 MARCH 2017 AND MATTERS 
OUTSTANDING (Pages 3 - 12) 
 

5   CONSIDERATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS ARISING FROM THE EDUCATION 
CHILDREN AND FAMILY SELECT COMMITTEE SCRUTINY ON THE CHILDREN'S 
LANDSCAPE IN BROMLEY (Pages 13 - 30) 

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH 
 
TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333  CONTACT: Philippa Gibbs 

   philippa.gibbs@bromley.gov.uk 

    

DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7638   

FAX: 020 8290 0608  DATE: 11 July 2017 

http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/


 
 

 

 Members of the Education Children and Families Select Committee have been invited 
to the meeting for consideration of this item. 
 
The draft minutes of the Select Committee’s meeting on 28 June 2017 have been 
included in the agenda pack.  A draft report will be provided to Members of both the 
Select Committee and the Sub Committee when it is available. 
  

6    REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (Pages 31 - 92) 
 

7    BASIC NEED PROGRAMME UPDATE INCLUDING S.106 ALLOCATIONS (Pages 
93 - 140) 
 

8    BUDGET CLOSEDOWN 2016/17 (Pages 141 - 152) 
 

9  BUDGET MONITORING 2017/18 (to follow) 
 

10    LOCAL AUTHORITY DESIGNATED OFFICER (LADO) (Pages 153 - 176) 
 

11    EDUCATION SAFEGUARDING OFFICER - TERMS OF REFERENCE AND 
VERBAL UPDATE  
 

12    VERBAL UPDATE: HOW QUALITY ASSURANCE WORKS IN BROMLEY - 
QUALITY ASSURANCE OVERVIEW  
 

13    ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 

14   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 26 September 2017 
  



17 
 

EDUCATION BUDGET SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting held at 5.30 pm on 15 March 2017 
 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Neil Reddin FCCA (Chairman) 
Councillor Julian Benington (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillors Kathy Bance MBE, Nicholas Bennett J.P. and 
Judi Ellis 

 
Also Present: 

 
Emmanuel Arbenser, Special School Parent Governor 
Councillor Tom Philpott, Education Executive Assistant 
 

 
50   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

 
51   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no additional declarations of interest. 
 

 
52   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 31 JANUARY 2017 AND 

MATTERS OUTSTANDING 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 31st January 2017 were agreed, and signed as 
a correct record. 
 
53   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE 

MEETING 
 

No questions had been received from members of the public. 
 
54   RESPONSE TO THE NATIONAL FUNDING FORMULA SECOND 

CONSULTATION 
Report ED17042 

 
Members considered a report providing an overview of the second stage 
consultation documents including DfE presentation and worked examples relating 
to Bromley and to individual schools.  The second stage of the DfE consultation on 
the proposed National Funding Formulas (NFF) for Schools and for High Needs 
was launched on the 14th December with a closing date of 22nd March 2017. LA 
Officers had recently attended a number of DfE led presentations and seminars 
which had helped with their understanding of the proposals which were very 
detailed and complex.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Education Budget Sub-Committee 
15 March 2017 
 

 18 

 
The Schools’ Forum had also met to discuss the consultation on 9th March 2017 
and its response had been circulated to the Sub-Committee in advance of the 
meeting with copies tabled at the meeting. 
 
In opening the discussion, the Chairman noted that he had reviewed the response 
provided by the Schools’ Forum and had further noted that the Head Teacher of 
Chislehurst School for Girls had expressed some dissatisfaction with the 
response.  The Director of Education explained that the concerns of secondary 
head teachers rested on the ratio between primary and secondary and further 
reported that secondary schools, in particular, were feeling the effects of budget 
cuts as a result of the Post-16 Funding regime changes. 
 
The Head of ECHS Finance reported that at its meeting on 9th March 2017, the 
Schools’ Forum had been unable to reach a consensus of opinion in relation to 
some of the consultation responses.  However, it was important that a measured 
response was provided to the consultation and Officers had tried to achieve this in 
the response that had been drafted and tabled for the consideration of the Sub-
Committee.  The Head of ECHS Finance emphasised that there had been a need 
to provide a collective response from the Schools’ Forum and where individual 
schools were dissatisfied with the response that had been drafted and agreed they 
were able to submit their own response to the DfE reflecting the unique 
circumstances of their schools. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the Government had previously funded the first 
year of a free school but were no longer adopting this approach.  This had 
significant implications for Local Authority budgets due to the way in which funding 
was received.  A Member endorsed the comments made in the draft response 
surrounding the importance of any new free school being a viable size.  It was felt 
by Members that anything opening as a free school below 2 or 3 form entry was 
not viable.  This was a national issue that needed to be addressed.  The Director 
of Education also highlighted that whilst a free school may open as 2 form entry 
they may not be able to recruit pupils to fill all the available places.  Any new 
school that opened also needed to demonstrate that there was sufficient demand 
in the area. 
 
In relation to the draft response for Question 17 – Do you support our proposals to 
limit the reductions on local authorities’ central school services block funding to 
2.5% per pupil in 2018-19 and in 2019-20?, the Chairman suggested that it may 
be worthwhile to point out that Bromley had a high level of academy conversions. 
 
RESOLVED: That  
 
(1) the Local Authority provide a joint response to the second stage 
consultation on the Schools National Funding Formula and High Needs 
National Funding Formula; and 
 
(2) the draft response circulation prior to the meeting be endorsed, subject 
to the minor amendment to Question 17 outlined above. 

 

Page 4



Education Budget Sub-Committee 
15 March 2017 

 

 
 

19 

55   SEN TRANSPORT BUDGET 
Report ED17040 

 
Members considered a report providing an update on the 2016/17 SEN Transport 
Budget, including information on children travelling independently. 
 
In introducing the report, the SEN Transport Project Manager noted that Members 
of the Education Budget Sub-Committee had requested the report on the SEN 
Transport Budget at its meeting on 1 November 2016.  At this time SEN Transport 
was forecast to be overspent by £1.23m.  This forecast overspend had been 
significantly overstated and had subsequently been revised with the current 
forecast outturn position for the 2016/17 financial year representing an overspend 
of £653,000.  The previous £1.23m overspend was derived from a basic 
extrapolation of recurring cost for the remainder of the year for the volume and 
cost of the SEN Transport delivery costs as at July 2016.  However, this 
methodology had not taken into account the academic year delivery of SEN 
Transport, in which volume is typically at its highest at the end of the academic 
year but will then reduce from the commencement of the new academic year in 
September and then rising throughout the year.  The SEN Project Manager 
confirmed that future forecasts would be based on closer working between officers 
in the SEN Transport Operations Team and the Education Finance Team to 
establish a suitable methodology for future forecasting which took into account the 
academic year effect. 
 
The SEN Transport budget overspend was in relation to the direct support costs to 
pupils for transport.  This included: (i) the costs of providing SEN Transport to 
eligible pupil which was provided through the current Transport Framework 
contract commencing from the 2015/16 academic year; (ii) the costs of parental 
mileage payments; and (iii) recoupment income from other services and local 
authorities purchasing transport through the framework contract. 
 
The report considered by the Sub-Committee provided an overview of the budget 
and outturn position for the budget lines specifically related to the transport 
contract, mileage, and recoupment against the contract.  Members heard that the 
latest forecast over spend against the 2016/17 transport support costs was a 
continuation of an existing level of overspend that had developed in the 2015/16 
financial year.  2016/17 expenditure also included the full year effect of the impact 
of the higher volume and cost for SEN Transport that commenced in the 2015/16 
academic year.  SEN Transport support costs provided in the report showed the 
service moving from an underspend position to an overspend from 2015/16 
onwards.  Key factors for the overspend in 2015/16 and 2016/17 were: (i) 
increased volume, (ii) increased contract costs, and (iii) increased support costs.  
Details of the impact of these three factors were set out in the report and the SEN 
Project Manager highlighted that the young people becoming eligible for SEN 
Transport had increasingly complex needs that required different transport 
solutions.  In addition, the pupils were also younger, with support starting from 4 
years old. 
 
The SEN Transport Project Manager outlined the actions taken and the options 
available to manage SEN Transport costs.  These included: 

Page 5



Education Budget Sub-Committee 
15 March 2017 
 

 20 

 
Route Management: this was key to mitigating increasing costs.  The SEN 
Transport Team constantly reviewed and rationalised routes as pupils joined and 
left the service.  This was a pro-active ongoing process which was vital to 
containing costs as far as possible. 
 
Transport Framework: The SEN Team was in the process of tendering for a new 
framework of transport providers, to run in parallel with the existing framework.  
The aim of this was to broaden the provider base and increase competition for 
routes.  As the number of providers on routes diminished there was less 
completion which ultimately led to higher costs.  Increased competition would go 
some way to reducing costs within SEN Transport. 
 
Independent Travel Training:  A pilot Independent Travel Training programme 
had been introduced in 2013/14 and subsequently rolled out for a three year 
period from the 2014/15 to the 2016/17 academic year.  This was focused on 
pupils at the Glebe Special School.  The SEN Transport team was currently 
preparing to retender this provision, subject to authorisation to proceed.  However, 
in retendering the provision, funding for the contract was expected to be sought 
from the SEN Transport budget where it had previously been funded through 
Invest To Save.  This would add to budget pressures in the short term.  The 
programme was currently funded to support 40 pupils per year.  These pupils were 
in receipt of SEN transport assistance with the expected outcome being that upon 
completion of travel training they no longer accessed SEN transport assistance.  
The SEN transport team had reported that the programme had met its target of 40 
funded pupils per academic year, with the provider over delivering in participation 
to ensure the success rate was achieved. The service confirmed that the majority 
of pupils completing the programme no longer accessed transport support.  A 
minority could revert back to transport assistance, but with further travel training 
support, this was usually temporary. A small minority were found to be too 
vulnerable to continue the training.  
 
In response to a question, the SEN Transport Project Manager explained that 
children were travel trained for their route from home to school and therefore knew 
how to deal with complications such as changing buses on route. 
 
Parental Mileage: It was reported that an increased take up of the parental 
mileage offer could reduce specialist transport support costs.  However, the 
mileage rate had been increased in the 2015/16 academic year to above the 
HMRC approved mileage rate and take up continued to be low.  In a 2015 
consultation on SEN Transport policy, only 12% of respondents agreed that 
parents should be encouraged to transport their children to and from school.  
Parents cited conflicting domestic arrangements for children at different schools 
and/or work commitments as constraints which prevented them from accepting 
this offer.  The payments for parental mileage had increased from an estimated 
£35,000 in 2014/15 to an estimated £55,000 in 2016/17.  The service would 
continue to proactively promote this option to parents – although DfE guidelines 
stated that parental consent was required for mileage to be agreed as a transport 
solution. 
 

Page 6



Education Budget Sub-Committee 
15 March 2017 

 

 
 

21 

Muster Points: These were an option within the existing SEN Transport policy but 
had not been introduced, except on a small scale basis in relation to one specific 
school.  As part of the previous review, the logistics of muster points had been 
investigated and a business case developed.  This identified potential savings 
estimated at £45,000 per annum; however, it was recognised that the 
implementation of this policy would generate significant stakeholder opposition 
and was not taken forward at that time. The SEN Transport Project Manager 
reported that a number of boroughs had been considering to this option and in 
order for the SEN Transport Team in Bromley to further investigate this, direction 
from Members was needed. 
 
Shared Service between SEN Transport and Adult Transport Service: the 
current arrangement in Bromley was that the Children and Adults transport 
arrangements were managed separately.  A previous review considered a joint 
service but this was not taken forward.  The Adult Transport Service operated a 
fleet of vehicles and further investigation as to the viability of shared use of the 
fleet was needed.  However, due to the fixed transport times for children, which 
must adhere to school attendance times, there could be a need for the Adult 
Transport Service to be reconfigured to allow sharing of vehicles to take place. 
This could present its own logistical problems or issues in relation to the 
practicality and reasonableness of such changes for Adult service users. 
 
Managed Service Transport Contract: when retendering for the SEN Transport 
contract in 2015/16, an option had been available for transport to be delivered as a 
managed service, i.e. that an external provider take control of all SEN transport 
operations, including the delivery of specialist transport provision either directly or 
through sub-contracts.  Only one provider responded to the invitation to tender for 
that option at that time and as a result it was not taken forward.  A transport 
provider had recently contacted the Council expressing a potential interest in a 
managed transport solution. This could afford an opportunity to retender for a 
managed solution, subject to the ability of the Council to implement such a solution 
prior to the expiration of the current framework contracts for specialist transport 
assistance.  Advice would be sought from both Legal and Procurement, and a 
Gateway Review conducted on this option. 
 
The Director of Education further reported that she was aware that another 
borough had been looking at the statutory element and whether this could cease 
at age 16 with a charge being applied for young people aged 16 years and over.  
Staff within the Service were reviewing a number of options that could address the 
continuing overspend within SEN Transport. 
 
In opening the discussion, the Chairman noted that the current contract framework 
was not index linked so the increased costs set out in the report were a result of 
factors other than inflation. 
 
In relation to the actions that had been taken and the options available to address 
the overspend, the Chairman felt that it was worthwhile reviewing the use of 
muster points once again.  The Chairman also felt that a shared service for adults 
and children’s transport should be proactively explored. 
 

Page 7



Education Budget Sub-Committee 
15 March 2017 
 

 22 

The Chairman of the Education Select Committee noted that a report providing an 
evaluation of the review of muster points that had previously been undertaken 
should have been provided to what was then the Education PDS Committee.  
Councillor Bennett requested that the report be provided to the Education Select 
Committee early in the new municipal year. 
 
Action Point 1: That an evaluation of the review of muster points that had 
previously been undertaken be provided to the Education Select Committee early 
in the 2017/18 Municipal Year. 
 
It was suggested that an evaluation of parental mileage should be undertaken with 
the specific reasons cited by parents for not taking up the offer of increased 
mileage payments recorded and monitored.  It could also be helpful to review what 
other London Boroughs did in respect of parental mileage.  In response to a 
question surrounding the proportion of parents that had refused parental mileage, 
the SEN Transport Project Manager reported that whilst she had not brought exact 
figures to the meeting, the majority of parents refused the payments as parental 
mileage was always the first offer of support that was made.  The SEN Transport 
Project Manager reminded Members that many parents viewed SEN Transport as 
an element of respite.  This time enabled them to spend time with their other 
children or have some valuable time to themselves.  It was clear that there were a 
number of reasons why parents were reluctant to accept the offer of parental 
mileage. 
 
A Member suggested that it may also be worthwhile to look creatively at the 
admissions process to see if more support could be provided to parents in terms of 
school places offered to their other children.  If siblings were able to attend schools 
in the same area as the special school attended by their brother or sister this could 
make the school run more manageable for parents.  The importance of putting the 
child at the centre of thinking in terms of SEN Transport was stressed.  It was not 
always the best option for a child with complex needs to spend an hour on 
transport.  It was also highlighted that often children who used SEN Transport 
missed out on after school clubs and activities.  It was suggested that when 
parental mileage was offered the benefits to the child should be clearly highlighted, 
especially for children in primary settings. 
 
In response to a question surrounding whether any children under 4 years old 
were eligible for SEN Transport or were likely to become eligible for SEN 
Transport in the future, the SEN Transport Project Manager reported that the 
legislation was currently being reviewed.  It was possible that pre-school aged 
children with an EHC Plan may have an eligibility but this was still unclear.  
Officers would continue to review this and explore the impact that any changes in 
this regard may have on the Service. 
 
The Director of Education noted that the Sub-Committee had given Officers 
direction on a number of options that would need further review and investigation.  
This was likely to represent a big procurement exercise and the Director would 
therefore refer the comments made by the Sub-Committee to the ECHS Divisional 
Leadership Team for further consideration and action. 
 

Page 8



Education Budget Sub-Committee 
15 March 2017 

 

 
 

23 

Action Point 2: That the Director of Education provide an update to the next 
meeting of the Education Budget Sub-Committee concerning the action taken by 
the ECHS Leadership Team in relation to the future of SEN Transport. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

 
56   BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 

Report ED17041 
 
The Education Budget Sub-Committee considered a report detailing the third 
quarter budget monitoring position for 2016/17 for the Education Portfolio based 
on activity levels up to the end of December 2016. 
 
Members noted that the Portfolio Holder was being asked to (i) agree the release 
of the £15,000 SEN Regional Lead grant which was carried forward into 2016/17, 
(ii) agree the release of £80,000 SEN implementation grant which was carried 
forward into 2016/17, and (iii) agree the release of £40,000 Place Planning 
Support which was carried forward into 2016/17. 
 
SEN Regional Lead Grant 2015/16 - £15,000  
 
Due to the late announcement of this grant in 2015/16, it was agreed that £15,000 
would be carried forward to 2016/17 to fund future expenditure.   
 
SEN Implementation (new burdens) grant 2015/16 - £80,000  
 
Due to the late announcement of this grant in 2015/16, it was agreed that £80,000 
would be carried forward to 2016/17 to fund future expenditure.  Both funding 
streams would be used to continue the extra capacity to deliver the transition to 
statements to EHC plans or pupil resource agreements, review current SEND 
services and provisions, embed the new policies and practises and develop robust 
systems for recording and monitoring the EHC process. Members noted that the 
majority of the expenditure would be used for temporary staff. 
  
Support to improve the information held on place planning - £40,000  
 
Work would be carried out on place planning and future demand for schools 
places including detailed analysis of the school census, live births and GLA 
predictions. 
 
The Sub-Committee that the use of bulge classes was an issue across a number 
of London Boroughs. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Portfolio Holder for Education and Children’s Services 
ne recommended to: 
 

1. Endorse the 2016/17 budget projection for the Education Portfolio.  
 

2. Agree the release of the £15,000 SEN Regional Lead grant which was 

Page 9



Education Budget Sub-Committee 
15 March 2017 
 

 24 

carried forward into 2016/17. 
 

3. Agree the release of £80,000 SEN implementation grant which was 
carried forward into 2016/17. 

 
4. Agree the release of £40,000 Place Planning Support which was 

carried forward into 2016/17. 
 
57   CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - 3RD QUARTER 2016/17 & 

ANNUAL CAPITAL REVIEW 2017 TO 2021 
Report FSD17026 

 
On 8th February 2017, the Executive received a report summarising the current 
position on capital expenditure and receipts following the 3rd quarter of 2016/17.  
The report also presented for approval the new capital schemes in the annual 
capital review process. The Executive agreed a revised Capital Programme for the 
five year period 2016/17 to 2020/21. The Education Budget Sub-Committee 
considered a report highlighting the changes agreed by the Executive in respect of 
the Capital Programme for the Education Portfolio.  
 
The changes to the Education Portfolio approved by the Executive in February 
included: 
 
Formula Devolved Capital (£446,000 net reduction): 
 
The Formula Devolved Capital scheme was funded by a grant from the 
Department for Education, which was passed straight on to Council maintained 
schools. The grant had reduced as schools converted to academy status.  
Members agreed a total reduction of £446,000 to reflect the revised funding. 
 
Basic Need Programme (£6,896,000 increase in 2018/19): 
 
In the Basic Need Capital Programme Report approved by the Executive on 23rd 
March 2016, main works at Castlecombe Primary School were included as a 
Project in Delivery (Unfunded).  The Council had now received additional Basic 
Need Capital Grant for the period 2018-19 of £6,896,000 from the DfE and was 
now in a position to fund these works.  Members had agreed the addition of this 
amount to the Basic Need capital scheme, and noted that an updated Basic Need 
Capital Programme was due to be reported to the next meeting of the Executive. 
 
Schemes rephased from 2016/17 into 2017/18: 
 
As part of the 3rd quarter monitoring exercise, a total of £2,433,000 had been 
rephased from 2016/17 into 2017/18 to reflect revised estimates of when 
expenditure on Education schemes was likely to be incurred. This had no overall 
impact on the total approved estimate for the capital programme.   
 
RESOLVED:  That the Portfolio Holder be recommended to confirm the 
changes agreed by Executive on 8th February 2017. 

 

Page 10



Education Budget Sub-Committee 
15 March 2017 

 

 
 

25 

58   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of Education Budget Sub-Committee would be held at 7.00pm 
on Tuesday 18th July 2017. 
 

 
The Meeting ended at 6.37 pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is left intentionally blank



1 
 

EDUCATION, CHILDREN AND FAMILIES SELECT COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 28 June 2017 
 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Nicholas Bennett J.P. (Chairman) 
Councillor Neil Reddin FCCA (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors Kim Botting FRSA, Nicky Dykes, Ellie Harmer, 
Chris Pierce, Stephen Wells and Angela Wilkins 
 
Mary Capon and Joan McConnell 
Emmanuel Arbenser 
Tajana Reeves 
Alison Regester 
 

 
Also Present: 

Cllr Stephen Carr, Leader of the Council 
Cllr Peter Fortune, Portfolio Holder for Education Children and Families 
Cllr Tom Philpott, Executive Assistant 
 

 
 

Ade Adetosoye, Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director ECHS 
Carol Arnfield, Head of  Service for Early Years, School Standards and 
Adult Education 
Jane Bailey, Director of Education 
Janet Bailey, Director of Children's Social Care 
Isobel Cattermole, Independent Chairman, Bromley Children's Service 
Improvement Governance Board 
Debi Christie, 16-25 Commissioning Manager & SEND REform 
Programme Lead 
Jim Gamble, Independent Chairman, Bromley Safeguarding Children 
Board  
 

 
 
1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE 

MEMBERS 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mary Cooke and Aaron 
Regisford.  Councillor Stephen Wells and Tajana Reeves attended as their 
respective substitutes. 
 
2   APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS 2017/18 
 
The Select Committee considered a report which sought confirmation of the 
appointment of Co-opted members to the Education, Children and Families 
Select Committee for 2017/18. 
 
The Chairman reported that Mrs Alison Regester had tendered her 
resignation from the Committee earlier in the day.  Mrs Regester had sat on 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 
 

2 

this and other Committees as Pre-School and Early Years Representative for 
nearly twenty years and the Chairman thanked her for the dedication and 
support she had shown to the Council and the residents of the Borough during 
those twenty years.  The knowledge, expertise and insight she had brought to 
committee meetings had been invaluable and her involvement would be 
missed.  The Committee wished Mrs Regester the very best for the future. 
 
RESOLVED: That  
 
1. Mr Emmanuel Arbenser be appointed, with voting rights to the 

Education, Children & Families Select Committee for 2017/18 as 
Special School Parent Governor. 
 

2. Mrs Mary Capon representing the Church of England and Mrs Joan 
McConnell representing the Roman Catholic Church be appointed 
as Co-opted Members to the Education PDS Committee for 2017/18 
with voting rights;  

 
3.  The Mr Aaron Regisford be appointed without voting rights to the 

Education, Children & Families Select Committee for 2017/18 as 
Young Peoples Representative. 

 
4.  That a Pre School and Early Years Representative be sought for 

2017/18. 
 
3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Nicholas Bennett JP declared that he was a Governor of London 
and South East College and of Southborough Primary School. 
 
Councillor Stephen Wells declared that he was a Member of the Foundation 
Court of St Olaves and St Saviours School. 
 
Mrs Alison Regester, Pre-School Settings and Early Years representative, 
declared that she ran a private day nursery in the Borough.   
 
Mrs Joan McConnell, Church representative, declared that she was a 
Governor of St Joseph’s Catholic Primary School. 
 
Mrs Mary Capon, Church representative, declared that she was an employee 
of the Aquinas Church of England Education Trust, that her husband was a 
governor at Newstead Wood and her daughter attended Newstead Wood. 
 
Councillor Chris Pierce declared that he was a Governor at St Philomena’s 
Catholic Primary School. 
 
Councillor Peter Fortune declared that he was a Member of the Court of 
University of Kent and that his wife was a teacher at an academy in the 
Borough. 
 

Page 14



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 

 

3 
 

Councillor Kim Botting declared that she was a Governor at Blenheim Primary 
School. 
 
Councillor Neil Reddin declared that he had children who attended schools in 
the Borough and that his wife was a Governor of two primary schools in the 
Borough.  
 
4   MINUTES OF THE EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD ON 23 APRIL 2017, 9 MAY 2017 & 10 MAY 2017 
 
The minutes of the meetings of the Education Select Committee held on 23rd 
March 2017, and 9th May 2017 and the Education, Children & Families Select 
Committee on 10th May 2017, were agreed and signed as a correct record. 
 
5   MATTERS OUTSTANDING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
The Select Committee noted an updated report setting out responses to 
previous Select Committee recommendations. 
 
6   QUESTIONS TO THE SELECT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE 
MEETING 

 
No questions had been received. 
 
7   QUESTIONS TO THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FROM MEMBERS OF 

THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE MEETING 
 
No questions had been received. 
 
8   PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE 
 
The Portfolio Holder gave an update to Members on work being undertaken 
across the Education Portfolio. 
 
Since the last meeting the Portfolio Holder had been on a number of visits.  
This included an informative and interesting visit to Glebe School which had 
been hosted by the Head Teacher, Mr Keith Seed.  The Portfolio Holder 
reported how the School did wonderful work with children with Special 
Educational Needs.  During the visit the Portfolio Holder had attended an 
internal Council meeting which bought together staff and students to discuss 
issues.  The Portfolio Holder had also been invited to visit Westminster 
Academy which was run by the Harris Foundation.  A number of Bromley 
children attended Westminster Academy.  A further visit made by the Portfolio 
Holder was to the Bromley Rotary Club Education Day which had involved a 
debating society.  
 
The Portfolio Holder had also attended Link and LA Governor Forums.  These 
had been arranged by Michelle Graydon at the Octavo Partnership and the 

Page 15



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 
 

4 

Portfolio Holder conveyed his thanks to Ms Graydon for arranging these 
sessions. 
 
The official report setting out the outcome of the inspection of the Bromley 
Youth Offending Service (YOS) had now been published and recognised the 
progress that had been made in improving the YOS.  The Service had gone 
from 1 star to 3 star with one element judged to be 4 star.  The Portfolio 
Holder conveyed his thanks to the staff and management of the YOS for their 
work in driving improvement. 
 
In relation to Children’s Services, managers had been working hard to recruit 
staff and deliver the Council’s Caseload Promise.  The Portfolio Holder had 
recently filmed a recruitment video to encourage more social workers to join 
the Council’s workforce.  The Portfolio Holder had also attended an 
Apprenticeship Day and had actively encouraged potential staff to join 
Bromley.  The Council was now working hard to improve communication with 
Partners in order to drive further service improvement.  To this end, the 
Portfolio Holder had attended a constructive meeting with the Independent 
Chairman of the Bromley Safeguarding Children Board to discuss work being 
undertaken to deliver the actions within the Children’s Service Improvement 
Plan. 
 
In April, the Portfolio Holder, along with the Leader of the Council, Chief 
Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, and Chairman of the Children’s Service 
Improvement Governance Board, had attended a Quality and Improvement 
Practice Week.  This provided Members and the Senior Management Team 
with the opportunity to see first-hand the work undertaken with children and 
families. 
 
The Portfolio Holder reported that the third Ofsted Monitoring visit had been 
undertaken in May 2017, and the letter setting out the outcome of the Visit 
(which was contained in the agenda papers for the meeting) demonstrated 
that the Service was now moving in the right direction although there was still 
more work to be done.  The Portfolio Holder confirmed that Frankie Sulke, the 
DfE appointed Children’s Commissioner for Bromley, had now completed her 
allotted time with the Council and had submitted her report to the DfE, 
although due to Ministerial changes the report had not yet been published.  
The Portfolio Holder thanked the Commissioner for the support and challenge 
she had provided to the Council. 
 
Finally, the Portfolio Holder reported that work was underway on 
arrangements for the Corporate Parenting Fun Day which would take place on 
Sunday 30th July 2017 and highlighted the value of a good Member turn out at 
the event. 
 
Responding to a question surrounding mechanisms for ensuring that the 
improvements that had been made in the YOS were monitored and remained 
on track, the Portfolio Holder explained that an improvement plan had been 
developed and progress against the improvement plan was monitored by the 
YOS Management Board.  There was a good range of representatives from 

Page 16



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 

 

5 
 

the Council and Partner Agencies on the Management Board and this 
provided a robust challenge mechanism. 
 
In response to a question concerning how Bromley had come to have such 
poor outcomes in inspections of the YOS and Children’s Service and whether 
there were any common contributing factors, the Portfolio Holder suggested 
that since the poor inspection outcomes communication with partners had 
significantly improved.  Partners were now members of strategic groups, there 
was increased data and information sharing and organisations were now 
working towards a common cause.  The Portfolio Holder recognised that there 
was still more work to do, especially with schools but significant improvements 
had been made. 
 
In answer to a question surrounding concerns that had been raised by 
Members of the Schools’ Forum in relation to school funding, the Director of 
Education explained that there was not a head teacher in Bromley that was 
not concerned about their budgets and the proposed cuts to funding.  There 
was currently a question mark over the proposed National Funding Formula.  
In addition to this, there were tensions between primary and secondary head 
teachers in relation to the ratio of funding.  In response to a question from the 
Chairman, the Director of Education confirmed that losses faced by schools 
had been capped and the maximum a school was likely to lose as a result of 
the changes to funding was around 3 or 4 per cent.  It was agreed that the 
information on school funding that had been collated by Officers would be 
disseminated to the Select Committee. 
 
Responding to a question from the Chairman surrounding accommodation for 
children from families that were homeless, the Portfolio Holder responded that 
following the question that had been raised at Full Council on Monday 26th 
June, work had begun on addressing the issue.  The Deputy Chief Executive 
and Executive Director ECHS reported that a policy framework, agreed by Full 
Council in 2015, was in place.  The Deputy Chief Executive had met with the 
Portfolio Holder for Care Services (who was responsible for the housing 
portfolio) and a review was being conducted by staff within the housing 
service.  It appeared that where families were housed in Kent (which was the 
third option considered by the Council) a number of these families chose to 
educate their children in Kent.  The Chairman stressed that Members needed 
to know how many of the Borough’s children were travelling large distances to 
attend school. 
 
The Chairman noted that the recent Queen’s Speech had not mentioned the 
abolition of the 50% admissions figure for faith schools and requested that this 
be further investigated as there could be implications for the proposed 
Catholic Secondary School in the Borough. 
 
The Committee discussed the issue of planning for future education sites in 
the Borough and the Portfolio Holder confirmed that he was confident that the 
allocation within the Council’s Local Plan was sufficient to meet demand.  A 
great deal of work had been undertaken to ensure that all Members 
understood the challenges faced in relation to the Council’s statutory 

Page 17



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 
 

6 

responsibility to provide a sufficient number of school places for the 
population of the Borough.   
 
The Portfolio Holder confirmed that the Schools’ Partnership Board was 
evolving and a review of the remit and function of the Board was being 
undertaken. 
 
The Chairman requested that the Schedule of School visits for the Summer 
Term be circulated to all Members of the Committee and the Schedule of 
Visits for the Autumn term be circulated as soon as it was available. 
 

A PROGRESS ON IMPLEMENTING CHILDREN'S SERVICE 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN  
Report ED18009 

 
The Select Committee considered a report which set out the progress that 
had been made in addressing the 18 Recommendations that had been made 
by Ofsted following the inspection of the Council’s services for Children in 
Need of help and protection and Children Looked After.  The Ofsted 
inspection had taken place between 11 April 2016 and 5 May 2016 and 
following its inspection Ofsted had found the Council’s services to be 
inadequate in all areas. 
 
The Council had developed a Children’s Service Improvement Plan in 
conjunction with partner agencies and this had been submitted to Ofsted in 
September 2016.  The Plan had contained 10 priorities and 306 actions, 
reflecting work needed to address the 18 Ofsted recommendations.  Ofsted 
acknowledged that the Improvement Plan was ambitious for children and 
young people in the Borough, extending beyond the recommendations made 
by Ofsted. 
 
The report considered by the Select Committee provided a comprehensive 
update on the actions taken to date in response to each of the 18 Ofsted 
recommendations. 
 
The Chairman requested that when reports were written the author of the 
report consider their audience and ensure that acronyms and technical terms 
were clearly set out to assist readers with limited knowledge in their 
understanding of the issues. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 
 
9   EDUCATION, CHILDREN & FAMILIES INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
The Committee noted the information items that had been circulated in 
advance of the meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 18



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 

 

7 
 

10   EDUCATION, CHILDREN & FAMILIES SELECT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 
REPORT CSD17099 

 
 
The Committee considered its work programme for 2017/18 and noted the 
recommendations for items for consideration made by the Education Select 
Committee on 9 May 2017. 
 
The Chairman highlighted that the name of the Sub-Committee had been 
changed to reflect the extended remit of the Sub-Committee.  There was still 
one vacancy on the Sub-Committee should any Member wish to join. 
 
The Pre-Schools and Early Years Representative noted that later in the year 
the Select Committee would be considering the 30 Hour Challenge.  This was 
a big change for the sector and was a significant challenge for providers.  
50% of Pre School Settings were indicating that they would offer “some” of the 
additional hours but it was not yet clear how many additional hours providers 
would be in a position to offer.  Mrs Regester urged Ward Members to contact 
the pre-school settings in their wards in order to get regular updates. 
 
The Chairman asked that a complete list of Early Years Settings in the 
Borough, broken down by ward, be provided to the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED: That the recommended work plan for 2017/18 set out in the 
report be endorsed. 
 
11   ADULT EDUCATION UPDATE 
 
The Select Committee considered a report which provided an overview of the 
impacts arising from the 2016 restructure of the Council’s adult education 
service. 
 
On 10 February 2016 the Council’s Executive endorsed the reorganisation of 
the adult education service, known as Bromley Adult Education College 
(BAEC).  The reorganisation encompassed a refocusing of the curriculum 
offer to increase the level of resource used to support vulnerable and 
disadvantaged communities, a reduction in staffing levels across the service, 
and withdrawal from the Widmore Centre in Bromley.  The Widmore Centre 
had operated as the main administrative centre for the Service since 
September 1998.  The Kentwood Centre became the new administrative 
centre for the Service with effect from August 2016.  The Governing body of 
BAEC was dissolved at the end of the 2015/16 academic year and a new 
body, known as the Community Learning Advisory Consortium (CLAC) was 
formed.  CLAC was chaired by the Portfolio Holder for Education, Children & 
Families and had representation from various sections of the local community, 
other teams with the Education Care and Health Services (ECHS) 
Department and the BAEC student body. 
 

Page 19



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 
 

8 

Whilst the restructure reduced the volume of courses open to public 
enrolment, BAEC continued to retain a reasonably wide range of provision 
within its mainstream offer for members of the public.  Up to the end of April 
2017, a total of 462 courses had taken place.  The accredited provision on 
offer retained a strong focus on English and maths, including GCSE and 
English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL).  Managers continued to 
work in partnership with Job Centre Plus to offer specific training and 
qualifications for unemployed adults, including Universal Job Match, CV 
writing and interview skills. 
 
Work was underway to address areas for improvement identified during the 
Ofsted inspection in February 2017.  This formed the key process of a post 
inspection action plan.  Ofsted had concluded that the reorganisation of the 
Service had been well managed and successful with regard to bringing about 
a closer integration of the work of adult education with that of the Council.  
Many of the areas for improvement identified by Ofsted in February 2017 had 
been highlighted by the Service as part of its own self-assessment process 
and actions to address the issues built into a quality improvement plan.   
 
The Committee noted that the restructure had clearly helped to focus the work 
of BAEC, ensuring it was well placed to help the Council meet its stated aim 
of focusing support on the Borough’s more vulnerable residents and enabling 
a more joined up approach with that of other Council Services. 
 
In response to a question, the Head of Service for Early Years, Schools 
Standards and Adult Education reported that a number of pressures on the 
Service had appeared in the Autumn Term following the relocation of key staff 
and functions.  It had taken time for staff to adjust to the different ways of 
working and much of the Autumn Term had been taken up with getting used 
to the adjustments.  However, there was now a buzz around the Kentwood 
Centre as more space had been opened up for community use.  In addition to 
this, the Poverest Centre was now busier and students had reported that they 
were happy with the wider range of courses available.  Positive feedback had 
also been received in relation to the evening classes that were being run.  
Whilst there were still pressure points around staffing, managers were 
becoming increasingly familiar with the increased expectations from Ofsted. 
 
Referring to tabled 4.5 in the report, average daily room usage 2016/17, the 
Chairman queried whether there were any plans in place to provide more 
accommodation at Poverest.  In response, the Head of Service for Early 
Years, Schools Standards and Adult Education confirmed that the huts on the 
site remained unusable and whilst the former nursery had been converted into 
teaching space there were no alternative plans for increasing the levels of 
accommodation. 
 
A Member noted that it was pleasing that positive feedback from students had 
been received and suggested that it may be helpful to update the report to 
reflect that positive feedback. 
 

Page 20



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 

 

9 
 

In response to a question concerning funding, the Head of Service for Early 
Years, School Standards and Adult Education confirmed that levels of funding 
had not changed for 2017/18 and this meant that it should be possible to 
provide the same level of courses as in 2016/17.  The Committee was also 
informed that there was a retention and achievement element to the funding.  
This meant that if students dropped out of courses the funding received would 
be adjusted.  Since the Ofsted inspection the Service had been monitoring 
levels of drop off more closely and it was agreed that this data would be given 
to members of the Committee at the end of the academic year. 
 
A Co-opted Member noted that paragraph 3.7 of the report referred to 
criticism from Ofsted in relation to the slow progress being made by leaders 
and managers in improving the achievement rates in some of the accredited 
provision, in particular ESOL courses.  In response the Head of Service for 
Early Years, School Standards and Adult Education reported that the Service 
was looking at techniques that could be employed to better prepare students 
for their qualifications. 
 
The Chairman requested that a further update be provided to the Committee 
when more detail was known around the proposals for a possible move to 
sharing backroom operations and a move towards a merged hub based 
structure under the Government’s plans for the devolution of funding in the 
London region. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted and a further update be provided 
to the Committee when more detail was known around the proposals for 
a possible move to sharing backroom operations and a move towards a 
merged hub based structure. 
 
12   CHILDREN'S SERVICE LANDSCAPE IN BROMLEY WITNESS 

SESSION 
 
The Committee had been provided with a range of written evidence in 
advance of the meeting.  This included a report providing an overview of the 
work of the Bromley Safeguarding Children’s Board, a report setting out the 
role of the Children’s Service Improvement Governance Board, a report 
setting out the aims and objectives of the ‘Towards Excellence for Children in 
Bromley’ initiative, a letter setting out the outcome of the third Ofsted 
Monitoring Visit in relation to Children’s Services in Bromley, and an overview 
of the Bromley Children’s Service Department.  A written submission had also 
been received from Ravenswood School and this was tabled at the meeting. 
 
In addition to the written evidence contained within the agenda pack provided 
to the Committee, the following information was also tabled at the meeting: 
 

 A chart detailing the Children’s Service Leadership and Governance 
Arrangements for Partnership working; 

 Terms of Reference for the Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 

 The Constitution of the Safer Bromley Partnership 

 The Safer Bromley Partnership Strategy 2016-2019 

Page 21



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 
 

10 

 Bromley Safeguarding Children Board Structure 2017 

 Membership of the Safeguarding Children Board (June 2017) 

 Youth Offending Service Governance Arrangements 

 Membership of the Youth Offending Service Management Board 

 Terms of Reference of the Youth Offending Service Management 
Board 

 
The Chairman was pleased to welcome the following witnesses to the 
meeting: 
Mr Jim Gamble QPM, Independent Chairman of Bromley Safeguarding 
Children’s Board 
Mrs Isobel Cattermole, Independent Chairman of Bromley’s Children’s 
Service Improvement Governance Board 
Mr Ade Adetosoye, Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director of 
Education, Care and Health Services 
Mrs Janet Bailey, Interim Director of Children’s Social Care 
 
Jim Gamble QPM, Independent Chairman of Bromley Safeguarding Children 
Board 
 
In providing details of his professional background, Mr Gamble explained to 
the Select Committee that he had been a professional Police Officer in 
Northern Ireland and during his career had worked in the anti-terrorist 
intelligence unit in Belfast, before becoming Deputy Chief Constable of the 
National Crime Squad, which later merged into the Serious Organised Crime 
Agency.    
 
Throughout his career, Mr Gamble had been involved in combating child 
sexual exploitation and he was responsible for one of the earliest reviews into 
Child Sexual Exploitation – Operation Ore. 
 
In 2013, Mr Gamble was appointed as the Independent Chairman of City and 
Hackney Safeguarding Children Board which in September 2016, became the 
first Local Safeguarding Children Board in the country to receive an 
‘Outstanding’ judgement, following an Ofsted inspection.   
 
Mr Gamble was appointed Independent Chairman of Bromley Safeguarding 
Children Board (BSCB) in January 2017.  The Committee heard how Mr 
Gamble relished the challenge presented by Bromley in terms of 
implementing improvements to safeguarding practices across the Borough.  
Mr Gamble highlighted that there was a clear apatite and enthusiasm to learn 
and improve in Bromley coupled with optimism.  The role of Independent 
Chairman of the Safeguarding Children Board was one of scrutiny, challenge 
and broader partnership working. 
 
In response to a question from the Chairman of the Select Committee 
concerning the actions that had been taken since taking up his post in 
Bromley, Mr Gamble explained that he had immediately tried to deliver three 
things: grip, pace, and a demonstrable impact.  BSCB had moved away from 
a list of harms to a focus on 4 key issues: i) the context of a child’s life in 

Page 22



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 

 

11 
 

Bromley, including pathways to harm.  The establishment of the Vulnerable 
Adolescence Working Group was central to this issue.  ii) Early help and 
ensuring that early intervention had a positive impact.  iii) Leadership – 
delivering respectful challenge where it was needed.  iv) Health and Wellbeing 
of the Workforce – oversight and challenge to the support provided by the 
Council’s leadership, oversight of caseloads and supervision, progressing 
improvement to the working environment of the staff and ensuring that the 
working environment was conducive to a happy and productive workforce 
(which it had not been in January 2017). He highlighted his concern that parts 
of the building did not reflect the standards he would expect for staff doing 
such difficult and stressful work. 
 
BSCB had developed its work plan for the year; one of the key priorities was 
establishing and informing a risk register.  Mr Gamble stated that when he 
arrived at Bromley he was concerned that BSCB had not previously had a risk 
register.  One of the actions that had already been taken was a 
reconfiguration of BSCB, any sub-groups that did not add anything to the work 
of BSCB had been removed.  BSCB was now seeking to develop the 
authentic voice of young people.  This was being done in collaboration with 
Bromley Youth Council.  A Memorandum of Understanding between BSCB 
and Bromley Youth Council was being developed and the two groups would 
work to develop a digital footprint survey that would help to provide a better 
understanding of how young people in Bromley access technology and use 
social media. In addition to this a Community Engagement Sub-Group had 
been created and traditionally under-represented groups formed part of the 
Membership of the Sub-Group.  BSCB was also seeking to increase levels of 
engagement with schools in the Borough. 
 
Mr Gamble described his role and the role of BSCB as one of collective 
challenge and strategic support.  It was now important that the impact of the 
improvements that had been delivered to date landed on the street and were 
felt by vulnerable children and families across the Borough through improved 
outcomes.  The investment that had been committed by the Council’s 
leadership had to be used to build a better approach to supporting vulnerable 
groups in the Borough. 
 
Finally, Mr Gamble confirmed that this year’s BSCB Conference would focus 
on empowering the community to engage and care about vulnerable children 
and families. 
 
In response to a question from the Chairman surrounding whether additional 
multi-agency training was required  in relation to reporting concerns and 
thresholds for referrals to Children’s Social Care,  Mr Gamble highlighted that 
as well as those partners with the highest number of referrals, BSCB was also 
looking at those partners who made no, or very few, referrals.  The 
information provided to partners was being reviewed and it was noticeable 
that there had been an improving cycle of attendance at multi-agency training 
events.  Significant progress in engaging with schools had been made 
although there was still more to do. 
 

Page 23



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 
 

12 

In relation to a question concerning the differing levels of resource contributed 
by partners, Mr Gamble reported that good financial support had been 
received from colleagues within education whilst the same could not be said 
for some other partners.  The Police were active and engaged partners who 
were willing to commit resource.  Mr Gamble advised that the geographic 
realignment of the Metropolitan Police could have implications for Bromley 
and the impact of this should be monitored.  ‘Resource’ referred to more than 
simply money, it was about ensuring the right people at the right level were 
turning up prepared to engage in meetings and discussions.   He stressed 
that all organisations within the partnership were suffering under the blanket 
of austerity however, it came down to priorities and there was evidence that 
investment in early intervention delivered savings down the line.   It was clear 
that there was an appetite for change across Bromley. 
 
In terms of how the different sub-groups contributed to the work of BSCB, Mr 
Gamble explained that in advance of the meeting partners were required to 
provide a written update.  This was circulated to all members of BSCB with 
the agenda papers.  Meetings were conducted on the assumption that all 
members had read the papers that had been circulated.  At the Board 
meetings a review of the work of the sub-groups was undertaken and a 
mapping exercise was conducted to ensure that opportunities to collaborate 
were not missed.  Each meeting had a clear focus.  Mr Gamble indicated that 
once the improvement agenda had been satisfied and delivered BSCB may 
be restructured to adopt a different focus.  In order to ensure a clear focus on 
the child, a Strategic Chairs Group had also been established bringing 
together BSCB, Health and Wellbeing Board, Safer Bromley Partnership, and 
the Lead Member for Children’s Services. 
 
Isobel Cattermole, Independent Chairman of Bromley Children’s Service 
Improvement Board 
 
In providing details of her professional background, Mrs Cattermole explained 
to the Select Committee that the last 30 years of her career had been spent 
working in education and children’s social care.  Mrs Cattermole had held 
senior positions in a number of inner London Boroughs and had held the post 
of Deputy Chief Executive in an Outer London Borough.  Mrs Cattermole had 
also worked in Bristol for a year were she had been involved in addressing 
issues of historic child sexual exploitation.  Mrs Cattermole had been a 
Bromley resident for over 40 years and stated that she had been saddened to 
hear the outcome of the Ofsted inspection in June 2016.   
 
In terms of her role as Chairman of the Children’s Service Improvement 
Governance Board which she took up in October 2016, Mrs Cattermole 
explained that she had been both privileged and excited to be approached to 
Chair this important partnership board.  The role of the Service Improvement 
Governance Board was to forensically examine actions that were being taken 
to implement the Service Improvement Plan that had been submitted to 
Ofsted following the Inspection.  It was a challenging and ambitious 
improvement plan which extended beyond the 18 recommendations from 
Ofsted. 

Page 24



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 

 

13 
 

 
Since the inspection outcome, which had undoubtedly been damaging for the 
reputation of the Local Authority, progress had been made at a good pace.  It 
was important for any Local Authority to recognise that such a systematic 
failure of one of its key services was a Corporate failure.  It was pleasing that 
in Bromley there had been a corporate response and good levels of 
improvement had been made in a relatively short space of time.  It was 
important to recognise that the Council’s relationship with the Commissioner 
for Children’s Services in Bromley was pivotal to this improvement.  In 
addition, it was clear that there was good buy-in to the improvement process 
from partners. 
 
Mrs Cattermole emphasised that Children’s Social Care was very much a 
demand-led service, social workers did not actively seek their client base.  It 
was also clear that the nature and needs of the local community was 
continuously changing and the Service had to be able to meet and address 
these ever evolving challenges going forward.   
 
Positive feedback had been received, both from the DfE and Ofsted during 
the regular monitoring visits.  As the report of the Commissioner for Children’s 
Services in Bromley had not been published it was not yet clear what the 
recommendation would be in terms of whether the Local Authority was 
deemed capable of managing its Children’s Services.  Mrs Cattermole 
however reported that she was encouraged by the progress that had already 
been made and the determination of the Local Authority and its partners to 
deliver the necessary improvement.   
 
In response to a question from the Chairman concerning how the Council 
could be sure that the Corporate Structure was fit for purpose in the future, 
Mrs Cattermole explained that the only way for the Council to maintain 
momentum going forward was to realise that the damaging effect of the 
inspection outcome on both the community and the Council’s partners would 
come back to haunt the Local Authority if it did not triangulate the 
improvement that had already been made.  It was important to ensure that the 
level of resource that had recently been put into the Service was sustained, 
and that robust and challenging scrutiny processes were in place to hold 
leaders and practitioners to account.  The Children’s Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA), conducted in September 2016, and circulated to all 
Members following the last meeting of the Governance Board on 23 June 
2017, clearly demonstrated the challenges that the Local Authority was facing 
over the next 5 to 10 years.  The Corporate leadership needed to be sighted 
on the challenges ahead to be able to challenge officers across the Council.  
Members needed to ensure that the culture of the organisation was such that 
in the future they were given an accurate picture in terms of the state of 
services, whether it be good or bad.  The strong advice Mrs Cattermole gave 
the Committee was that Members needed to ensure that the culture of the 
organisation was conducive to an open and honest professional relationship 
between Member and Officers. 
 

Page 25



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 
 

14 

The Chairman noted the comments made by Mrs Cattermole concerning the 
fact that Children’s Social Care was a demand-led service and questioned 
what the Local Authority could do to address the social problems that were 
increasing across the Borough leading to an increase in referrals to Children’s 
Social Care.   In response, Mrs Cattermole suggested that for children in need 
and children who were on the periphery of children’s social care, early 
intervention strategies were key.  There was fairly robust evidence that 
nationally the demise of Children’s Centres had led to increased demand 
within Children’s Social Care.  Many of the problems that were frequently 
addressed by social workers started with neglect and parents not knowing or 
understanding how to safeguard their children.  This is why a focus on early 
intervention was essential.  Funding was key to ensuring that services were 
targeted at the right families and there was a clear role for Members in 
lobbying the Government to secure sufficient levels of funding for early 
intervention.  Another key area was developing a good relationship with 
schools in order to support them in their understanding of what safeguarding 
was and the role they played in safeguarding.  Local Councillors needed a 
clear understanding of the needs and demands of the whole of the 
community.  Mrs Cattermole suggested that it would be helpful to review the 
allocation of resources on a ward by ward basis.  In a diverse borough such 
as Bromley there needed to be an understanding that wards in the more 
deprived areas required more of the Council resource than some of the more 
affluent areas, a holistic approach to the borough needed to be adopted. 
 
In response to a question concerning the ways in which the challenges faced 
by families had changed Mrs Cattermole explained that there was an 
increasing number of larger families.  There were more vulnerable families 
who carried with them the associated social issues.  Bromley was increasingly 
becoming more like an inner London Borough but was not receiving the 
increases in funding to reflect this.  It was essential that more data was 
gathered and analysed in order to highlight the challenges faced by Bromley 
as a Borough.  The information and data within the Children’s JSNA that had 
been complied by the Director of Public Health was powerful.  A detailed 
analysis of the implications of the data within the JSNA needed to be 
undertaken in order to inform future service provision and support the Council 
in making its case for increased funding. 
 
Ade Adetosoye, Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director ECHS 
 
In providing details of his professional background, MrAdetosoye explained to 
the Select Committee that he had 20 years’ experience of delivering the 
transformation of Children’s Services across a number of London Boroughs 
including Waltham Forest and Lambeth.  During his tenure at Lambeth, Mr 
Adetosoye had taken Children’s Services from Inadequate to Outstanding.  
Whilst he was Director of Children’s Services at the City of London Mr 
Adetosoye had worked with Mr Gamble through the Local Safeguarding 
Children’s Board which was the only Safeguarding Children’s Board to be 
judged by Ofsted as Outstanding.   
 

Page 26



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 

 

15 
 

Mr Adetosoye had been in his post at Bromley since October 2016, but had 
worked with the Council in the immediate aftermath of the Ofsted inspection 
whilst he was still at the City of London.  Mr Adetosoye had supported 
Bromley at the start of its transformation journey and had been heavily 
involved in advising the Council’s leadership in relation to the development of 
its comprehensive and challenging Children’s Service Improvement Plan.  
The model that Mr Adetosoye was introducing to Bromley was one of simple 
transformation centred around improved practice.  The transformation journey 
was centred around the Roadmap to Excellent (reproduced in the agenda 
papers).  This provided the structure to ensure that the right families were 
supported by the Council at the right time.  Currently, improvement focused 
around three key issues: 
 

 Strong leadership – both political and at officer level; 

 Permanent staff – with a focus on recruiting the right staff to Bromley 
thus creating stability; 

 Addressing the culture of the organisation – part of this included the 
environmental issues mentioned earlier by Mr Gamble. 

 
A great deal of positive work in these areas had been undertaken and the 
direction of travel was now good.  There was a clear political commitment and 
will to drive change and it was pleasing that in their recent Monitoring Visit the 
Ofsted Inspectors had recognised that Bromley was now moving in the right 
direction.  Once the Children’s Service Improvement Plan had been fully 
implemented and the challenge from the Service Improvement Government 
Board ceased it would be the responsibility of the Council’s internal scrutiny 
processes and mechanisms to provide robust enquiry and challenge to the 
Service.   
 
In response to a question from the Chairman surrounding how much time was 
spent on the different elements of his role as Deputy Chief Executive and 
Executive Director of ECHS (Children’s Services, Education, Adults Social 
Care, Health, Housing, Corporate Leadership), Mr Adetosoye explained that 
due to the service transformation that had been required, fulfilling the 
requirements of the statutory Director of Children’s Services (DCS) had 
initially been fundamental.  In the early days much of his time had been spent 
addressing the issues within Children’s Social Care.  One of the biggest 
challenges had been getting Corporate buy-in to the Children’s Service 
agenda and the changes and improvements that were required.  For the time 
being Children’s Services were at the core but as time progressed and the 
improvements that were being made embedded there would be less of a need 
for such a strong focus on Children’s Social Care. 
 
Janet Bailey, Director of Children’s Social Care 
 
In providing details of her professional background, Mrs Bailey explained to 
the Select Committee that she had started her career as a social worker in 
Bromley 40 years ago.  As a resident of the Borough and former employee 
with fond memories, Mrs Bailey had also been saddened to read about the 
outcome of the Ofsted Inspection of Bromley Children’s Services.  Mrs Bailey 

Page 27



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 
 

16 

had previously worked as a social worker in Bromley for 17 years before 
moving on to a number of other Local Authorities including LB Lambeth with 
Mr Adetosoye.  Mrs Bailey had supported three other local authorities judged 
by Ofsted to be inadequate through to their next inspection with positive 
outcomes.  Mrs Bailey explained that she knew what ‘Good’ looked like and 
made no apologies for judging case audits harshly as this encouraged and 
facilitated practice improvement.  In addition to this, Mrs Bailey had worked 
with Cafcass and had also had roles within the Courts. 
 
Mrs Bailey explained that when reviewing performance within Children’s 
Services, her mantra was “Is this good enough for my child?”, if the answer 
was ‘no’ then it was not good enough for the children in the Local Authority’s 
care. 
 
Since December 2016, there had been a marked improvement in staff morale 
and a tangible difference in the way in which staff were working.  There had 
been a shift in culture as well as a clear confidence in the new Heads of 
Service that had joined Bromley.  Three of the new Heads of Service had 
originally trained at Bromley and all the new managers had a breadth of 
experience. 
 
Currently levels of staffing were very fluid.  66% of the workforce were 
permanent staff and the Children’s Service Governance Board had set a very 
ambitious target of only 10 temporary staff within the Children’s Social Care.  
There were 15 new social workers currently going through HR  new starter 
processes in addition to 10 newly qualified social workers who were joining 
Bromley.  When interviewees declined job offers feedback was sought to 
identify any improvements that could be made.  The help of an agency had 
also been enlisted to support the recruitment of permanent staff on a payment 
on appointment basis.  A ‘Locum to Permanent’ event was also being held in 
order to encourage more locum staff to accept permanent positions.    Overall, 
there were currently 11 vacancies across the Children’s Social Care 
workforce of 215 established posts and these vacancies needed to be filled by 
high quality social workers. 
 
The Caseload Promise (of between 11 and 15 cases per social worker) was 
also an attractive incentive, distinguishing Bromley from other Local 
Authorities.  Feedback that had been received was that for social workers, 
Bromley was now an attractive place to work.  Staff now felt respected and 
supported in addition to being provided with opportunities for career 
development. 
 
In response to a question surrounding the stability of funding levels, the 
Leader of the Council confirmed that the additional funding released by the 
Executive had gone into the base budget and would continue to be available 
in future years.  The Council had recognised that following the inspection 
additional financial resources were required but Members were also clear that 
use of resources had to remain efficient and effective.   Increasingly capacity 
was being built into the workforce whilst maintaining the Caseload Promise. 

Page 28



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 

 

17 
 

The Council’s leadership were determined  to deliver improvements in a 
timely manner in order to improve outcomes for children in the Borough. 
 
In response to a question concerning whether there was anything more that 
could be done by Councillors, the Deputy Chief Executive highlighted that a 
high Member turnout at the Corporate Parenting Fun Day would send a 
powerful message and would enable Members to directly engage with the 
children for whom the Local Authority had Corporate Parenting responsibility.  
Members could also engage with future audits and practice weeks, the next 
Practice Week would be held in October 2017 and social workers would 
welcome the involvement of more Members.  The realignment of portfolio 
responsibilities and the changes made to the responsibilities of the Council’s 
scrutiny committees was a step towards delivering improvements in internal 
scrutiny processes.  In addition to this, a review of the Member training 
programme was being undertaken and the Commissioner for Children’s 
Services in Bromley had recommended that the programme of Member 
training continue. 
 
The Vice-Chairman recognised that concerns identified by the Audit Sub-
Committee in relation to the recording of data in the CareFirst system a 
number of years prior to the Ofsted inspection may have been one of the first 
indications of failures within the service and suggested that in future a more 
robust approach be taken when minor deficiencies were identified in services.  
The Vice-Chairman queried whether the issues with recoding data in 
CareFirst had now been resolved.  In response, the Director of Children’s 
Social Care reported that a new system was being implemented within 
Children’s Social Care – Eclipse.  This was a more intuitive systems and 
managers were optimistic  that social workers were now being provided with 
the right tools to carry out their work and would now be able to spend more 
time with clients and less time competing reports. 
 
The Chairman asked whether BSCB had any plans to investigate drug related 
issues, specifically the availability of drugs over the internet and delivery of 
drugs through the post.  The Chairman BSCB confirmed that whilst the issue 
of drugs was being considered there was not a focus on the use of the 
internet in the supply of drugs.  This would be taken away from the meeting as 
an action point.  The Chairman of the Children’s Services Improvement 
Governance Board reported that there had also be a spate of incidents of 
drugs being delivered by take away food delivery drivers.  The Committee 
noted that there was clearly work for the Police and Royal Mail to undertake to 
combat this problem. 
 
The Chairman noted that the reports of the Select Committee in 2016/17 
addressed a number of the issues being discussed at the Children’s Service 
Improvement Governance Board.  The Chairman sought assurances that the 
reports and recommendations of the Select Committee would be reviewed 
and taken on board where relevant. 
 
In drawing the witness session to a conclusion, the Chairman thanked the 
witnesses for the valuable contribution they had made to the meeting and 

Page 29



Education, Children and Families Select Committee 
28 June 2017 
 

18 

indicated that the Committee would be happy to receive any further 
information and recommendations that the witnesses deemed appropriate to 
support the Committee’s review. 
 
13   COMMITTEE CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It was agreed that the first half an hour of the Education Children and Families 
Budget and Performance Sub Committee would be set aside for consideration 
of recommendations arising from the Committee’s review of the Children’s 
Service Landscape in Bromley. 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 10.05 pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 30



  

1 

Report No. 
CSD17107 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: EDUCATION CHILDREN AND FAMILIES BUDGET AND 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING SUB-COMMITTEE 

Date:  18th July 2017 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Non-Executive 
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES 
 

Contact Officer: Philippa Gibbs, Democratic Services Officer 
020 8461 7638    E-mail:  Philippa.Gibbs@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Director of Corporate Services 

Ward: All Wards 

 
1. Reason for report 

To set out details of any matters referred to the Education Children and Families Budget and 
Performance Monitoring Sub-Committee from other Council Committee for consideration. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

That the Sub-Committee note the report and consider whether any further action be 
taken. 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



  

2 

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children 
 
1. Summary of Impact: The impact of this report on vulnerable children is unknown.  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Not Applicable 
 

2. BBB Priority: Not Applicable:  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Not Applicable:  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services. 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £ 343,810 

5. Source of funding:       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Personnel 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   6.87 fte 
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:         
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Not Applicable 
 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Procurement 
 

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:        
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):        
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 32



  

3 

3. COMMENTARY 

At a meeting on the 14 June 2017, the Executive and Resources PDS Committee (E&R PDS) 
considered the report detailed below and the Chairman suggested that the Education Children 
and Families Budget and Performance Sub-Committee review the issues identified by E&R 
PDS. 

(5)       Provisional Final Accounts 2016/17 
Report FSD17054 

  
 A summary of activity on the Recruitment and Retention Fund for Children’s Social Care since 

2010/11 had been circulated - funding of £817,200 had originally been allocated by the 
Executive on 2nd February 2010.The fund had been used in 2010/11, but due to underspends 
elsewhere in the Department it had not been used again until 2016/17. The fund was used for 
making “golden hello” payments, annual retention payments, permanent placement fees and 
the market premium. It was now proposed to top up the fund with £495,419 from some of the 
funding for Tackling Troubled families and Step Up to Social Work grants; it was anticipated 
that the fund would be used within 2 – 3 years, and consideration needed to be given to future 
funding. The Chairman commented that the availability of this fund might have an 
adverse effect on rigorous adherence to budgets in the Department and suggested that 
the matter be reviewed at the Education, Children and Families Budget and 
Performance Monitoring Sub-Committee. 

 
The report is attached at appendix A. 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children, Policy 
Implications, Financial Implications, Personnel Implications, 
Legal Implications, Procurement Implications. 
 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

Minutes of the E&R PDS Committee on 14th June 2017. 

 

Page 33



This page is left intentionally blank



1 

Report No. 
FSD17054 

London Borough of Bromley 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 

Decision Maker: Executive 
Council 

Date: 
20th June 2017 
26th June 2017 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Non-Key 

Title: PROVISIONAL FINAL ACCOUNTS 2016/17 

Contact Officer: Tracey Pearson, Chief Accountant 
Tel:  020 8313 4323   E-mail:  tracey.pearson@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Director of Finance 

Ward: Borough Wide 

1. Reason for report

1.1  This report considers the 2016/17 provisional outturn at portfolio level and Council wide as 
well as the potential implications for the Council’s financial position in 2017/18. The purpose 
of the report is to give a broad overview of the financial outturn.  

1.2 The 2016/17 provisional outturn provides for no variation in general fund balances, subject to 
the recommendations in this report being agreed. 

1.3  More detailed reports will be submitted to individual PDS Committees and the Education 
Budget Sub-Committee. Details of the carry forward requests and a summary of the 
Council’s capital programme are also considered in the report. 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 Executive are requested to: 

(a)  consider the provisional revenue and capital outturns for the 2016/17 financial 
year and the earmarked balances on the General Fund as at 31st March 2017; 

(b) note that a more detailed analysis of the 2016/17 final outturn will be reported for 
each Portfolio to the Relevant PDS committees; 

(c)  consider the variations in 2016/17 impacting on the Council’s 2017/18 financial 
position; 

Page 35



2 

(d) consider the comments from the Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director of 
Education, Care and Health Services and from the Executive Director of 
Environment and Community Services as detailed in Appendix 1B;  

(e) note the carry forwards of £113k relating to repairs and maintenance, as detailed in 
Appendix 5; 

(f) approve the requests for carry forwards totalling £560k (net) as detailed in 
Appendix 5, subject to the funding being allocated to the Central Contingency to be 
drawn down on the approval of the relevant Portfolio Holder; 

(g) agree to release a total of £573k funding from Central Contingency as detailed in 
para 3.2.1; 

(h) note the return to the Central Contingency of £88k as detailed in para 3.2.2; 

(i) note the Prior Year Adjustments totalling £66k as detailed in section 3.4; 

(j) agree that a sum of £855k be set aside in an earmarked reserve for Children’s 
Social Care Recruitment and Retention, as detailed in para 4.5.1; 

(k) agree that a sum of £147k be set aside in an earmarked reserve for external 
professional advice, as detailed in para 4.5.2; 

(l) agree that a sum of £468k be transferred to the Winter Pressures earmarked 
reserve, as detailed in para 4.5.3; 

(m) recommend to Council the transfer of £3,311k to the Growth Fund as detailed in 
section 4.2; 

(n) recommend to Council the transfer of £2m to the Joint Initiatives and Pump 
Priming (BCF) earmarked reserve as detailed in section 4.4. 

2.2 Council are requested to: 

(a) agree that a sum of £3,311k be transferred to the Growth Fund as detailed in 
section 4.2; 

(b) agree that a sum of £2m be transferred to the Joint Initiatives and Pump Priming 
(BCF) earmarked reserve as detailed in section 4.4. 

Page 36



3 

Corporate Policy 

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council.
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Financial 

1. Cost of proposal: N/A

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring cost.

3. Budget head/performance centre: Council wide

4. Total current budget for this head: £209.7m

5. Source of funding: See Appendix 1 for overall funding of Council's budget
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Staff 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 2,555 (per 2016/17 Budget), which includes 911 for
delegated budgets to schools.

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Legal 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory requirement. The statutory duties relating to financial reporting
are covered within the Local Government Act 1972, the Local Government Finance Act 1998,
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local
Government Act 2002.

2. Call-in: Call-in is applicable
________________________________________________________________________________ 

Customer Impact 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): The 2016/17 budget reflects
the financial impact of the Council's strategies, service plans etc. which impact on all of the
Council's customers (including council tax payers) and users of the services.

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Ward Councillor Views 

3 Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  N/A. 

4 Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Council wide 

Page 37



  

4 

3 COMMENTARY 
 

3.1  Provisional Final Outturn 2016/17 
 

3.1.1 The Resources Portfolio Plan included the target that each service department will spend 
within its own budget. A summary of the overall budget and the provisional outturn for 
2016/17 is shown in the table below. 

 
3.1.2 The 2016/17 provisional outturn shows no overall net movement in general fund balances, 

subject to approval of the contribution to the Growth Fund, as detailed in section 4.2.  
 

Provisional Outturn on Services & Central Items 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Original Latest Provisional

Budget Budget Outturn Variation

Portfolio £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Care Services 95,135     95,813    100,353         4,540       

Education 5,245       6,167      6,058             109Cr       

Environment 31,203     31,648    30,786           862Cr       

Public Protection & Safety 1,948       1,911      1,880             31Cr         

Renewal & Recreation 8,953       9,253      8,961             292Cr       

Resources 46,354     49,410    48,681           729Cr       

Total Controllable Budgets 188,838   194,202  196,719         2,517       

Capital Charges and Insurance 11,521     2,662Cr    2,662Cr          0              

Non General Fund Recharges 772Cr       789Cr       789Cr             0              

Total Portfolio Budgets 199,587   190,751  193,268         2,517       

Adj. for carry forwards from 2016/17 to 2017/18 0              0             560                560          

Capital, Insurance & Pension a/c requirements 10,203Cr  3,997      4,045             48            

 Total Portfolio Budgets (adj. for carry forwards 

  and accounting requirements) 189,384   194,748  197,873         3,125       

Contingency Provision 15,629     3,657      0                    3,657Cr    

Income from Investment Properties 9,542Cr    9,542Cr    9,302Cr          240          

Interest on General Fund Balances 3,491Cr    3,491Cr    4,162Cr          671Cr       

 Contribution to Investment Fund 7,402       7,402      7,482             80            

 Contribution to Transition Fund 2,068       2,068      2,068             0              

 Set Aside Prior Year Collection Fund Surplus 4,912       4,912      4,912             0              

Contribution to Growth Fund 0              4,000      4,000             0              

Further Contribution to Growth Fund (subject to approval) 0              3,311      3,311             0              

Contribution to Other Reserves 0              1,207      1,354             147          

LRB receipt 0              0             37Cr               37Cr         

Levies 1,384       1,384      1,384             0              

Total Central Items 18,362     14,908    11,010           3,898Cr    

Total Variation on Services and Central Items 207,746   209,656  208,883         773Cr       

Prior Year Adjustments 0              0             66Cr               66Cr         

Total Variation 207,746   209,656  208,817         839Cr       

Carry forwards from 2016/17 to 2017/18 0              0             560Cr             560Cr       

Net Variation  (after allowing for carry forwards) 207,746   209,656  208,257         1,399Cr    

 

3.1.3 A detailed breakdown of the Latest Approved Budgets and Provisional Final Outturn 
across each Portfolio, together with an analysis of variations, is shown in Appendix 2.  

 
3.1.4 Chief Officer comments are included in Appendix 1B. 

 
 

Page 38



  

5 

3.2 Central Contingency Sum 
 

3.2.1 The 2016/17 Central Contingency contained various provisions which reflected 
uncertainty around potential costs, grants and service pressures. There is a total net 
variation of £3.7m relating to provisions that were not required in the 2016/17 financial 
year, subject to the approval to release a net total of £573k as detailed below and a 
further contribution to the Growth Fund.  Further details of the allocations from, and 
variations in, the 2016/17 Central Contingency are included in Appendix 3.   

£'000

(a) Reduction in Education Services Grant 454

(b) Staff Merit Awards 119

(c) Winter Resilience Funding 468

(d) Tackling Troubled Families 424

(d) Step Up to Social Work 72

1537

      Grant Income 964Cr          

      Net Expendture 573  

(a) as a result of the 9 academy conversions that occurred during 2016/17, there is a 
shortfall of income on the Education Services Grant budget of £454k. The effect of 
the reduction in grant has been included in the Central Contingency and it is 
requested that this amount be drawn down and allocated to the Education Portfolio.  

 
(b) as part of the introduction of Localised Pay, Members agreed a merited reward for 

exceptional performers and a provision of £200k was included in the Central 
Contingency. A request is made to drawdown £119k to fund the expenditure for 
the rewards in 2016/17. The remaining balance of £81k has been included in the 
carry forward requests as detailed in appendix 5.    

(c) the Council has received Winter Pressure funding, via the CCG, for support of 
social care to assist in discharges from hospital.  It is recommended that this 
funding be allocated to the Care Services Portfolio to be set aside with other 
funding in the existing earmarked reserve specifically ring-fenced for these 
purposes (para 4.5.3).  The funding will be utilised to assist in discharges from 
hospital during the winter period if current funding streams are insufficient.   

(d) it is proposed to set aside some of the funding from the Tackling Troubled 
Families and Step Up to Social Work grants to deal with recruitment and retention 
issues within Children’s Social Care, particularly around the recruitment and 
retention of social workers (para 4.5.1).  Recently this has been an issue for 
Bromley and this funding will help to alleviate this through elements such as 
golden hello payments, market premiums and retention payments.  Grant funding 
is still available for the Tackling Troubles Families project and Step Up to Social 
Work programme in future years.   

3.2.2 In addition, the sum of £88k relating to Homelessness Pressures has been returned to 
the Central Contingency.  Funding of £760k was previously agreed to be drawn down to 
support the growing numbers of homeless cases presenting themselves and to cover the 
costs of temporary accommodation.  Towards the end of the financial year, although the 
numbers have increased, the overall cost has reduced slightly so not all of the funding 
was required in-year.    

Page 39



6 

3.2.3 It is proposed that the overall underspends remaining, including those in the Central 
Contingency, will be utilised to provide one-off funding for the Council’s Growth Fund to 
provide investment for economic development.  Economic development is a key priority 
for the Council, creating employment opportunities and generating additional income 
through business rate growth, investment income and new homes bonus.  This report 
recommends a further contribution of £3.3m to the Growth Fund from underspends in the 
Central Contingency, as set out in section 4.2.  

3.2.4 After allowing for the allocations set out above, and the further contribution to the Growth 
Fund, the net variation on the Central Contingency is an underspend of £3.7m.  These 
monies are required to be set aside to fund the net overspend within Portfolio budgets to 
avoid a draw down on reserves to fund in-year cost pressures.  

3.3 General Fund Balances 

3.3.1 Subject to approval of the proposals detailed in this report, and taking account of the final 
outturn on Portfolio budgets and Central Items, there will be no variation to the level of 
general reserves as at 31st March 2017 as detailed below: 

2016/17 

Provisional

Outturn £'000

General Fund Balance as at 1st April 2016 20,000Cr   

Net Variations on Services & Central Items (para 3.1) 1,399Cr    

Variations in Business Rates Retention Scheme and 

General Government Grants 303Cr   

21,702Cr    

Adjustments to Balances:

Carry Forwards (funded from underspends in 2015/16) 1,702

General Fund Balance as at 31st March 2017 20,000Cr   

3.4 Prior Year Adjustments resulting in a Net Credit Provision in the Accounts of £66k 

3.4.1 As referred to in the last budget monitoring report, provisions made in prior years relating 
to the transfer of ICT support from Capita to BT and for the localisation of terms and 
conditions are no longer required and have therefore been released in 2016/17 resulting 
in a credit of £185k.   

3.4.2 A bad debt provision was previously set aside for unpaid invoices relating to housing 
benefit administration penalties.  A significant proportion of this related to penalties that 
were raised in advance of the overpayment being settled.  Following a review of 
outstanding invoices, £80k of the provision is no longer required and has therefore been 
released in 2016/17. 

Page 40



  

7 

3.4.3 In 2015/16 a total of £299k was set aside to fund external professional advice relating to 
the SPV for the acquisition of residential properties to provide temporary accommodation 
for homeless families. This included specialist accounting and taxation advice as well as 
legal and actuarial fees relating to both the SPV arrangements and the ‘gifting’ to the 
pension fund.  Due to the nature and timing of the scheme, Executive agreed that £291k 
be carried forward into 2016/17 to meet the specialist advice required to finalise 
arrangements. A total of £144k has been incurred during 2016/17 and it is requested that 
the balance of £147k be set aside as an earmarked reserve to fund any further external 
specialist advice (legal, accounting, taxation and actuarial) that may be required to 
support future schemes (para 4.5.2).   
  

3.4.4 The Council was successful in recovering £16k from HMRC following submission of a 
backdated claim for VAT on car parking overpayments. 
 

3.4.5 In 2015/16 a provision of £28k was made for potential payments due to Appointeeship 
and Deputyship clients.  These claims have now been closed and the provision is no 
longer required. 
 

3.4.6 During 2016/17, actual costs incurred for the clearance and disposal of the waste at this 
site was £2.935m which was £226k more than the capital funding available.  A 
contribution was made from revenue to meet these additional costs.  Options are being 
considered to recover the additional expenditure including seeking counsel’s advice. 
 

3.4.7 A credit of £147k relates to backdated Council Tax benefit adjustments which, under the 
new Council Tax Support Scheme, do not result in a corresponding reduction in subsidy. 
 

3.4.8 In line with standard accounting practice, feasibility costs that do not result in a capital 
scheme being progressed are required to be charged to revenue budgets.  A total of 
£311k was charged in 2016/17 to reflect the cost of feasibility works previously 
undertaken for various multi-story car parks.  Although part of the capital programme, 
and this relates to a period of years, any costs that do not result a scheme progressing 
will need to be charged to the Council’s revenue accounts.  This results in a 
corresponding reduction in eligible capital programme expenditure.  

 
3.4.9 A summary is shown in the table below: 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 £’000 

Core IT Contract (116) 

Localised Terms & Conditions (69) 

Housing Benefit Admin. Penalties (80) 

External Professional Advice (147) 

HMRC VAT Recovery (16) 

Appointeeship & Deputyship (28) 

Waste 4 Fuel 226 

Council Tax Benefit Adjustments (147) 

Feasibility Studies 311 

Total (66) 

Page 41



  

8 

3.5 Impact on Future Years  
 

3.5.1 The report identifies expenditure pressures which could have an impact on future years. 
The main areas to be considered at this stage are summarised in the following table: 

 

  

 2016/17 

Budget 

£'000 

 2017/18 

Impact 

£'000 

Care Services Portfolio

Assessment & Care Management 20,946    1,223     

Learning Disablilities - Care Placements & Care Management 30,402    672        

Mental Health - Care Placements 5,807     118Cr      

Housing Needs 7,128     146        

Supporting People 1,051     72Cr        

Children's Social Care 27,533    2,665     

4,516     

Education Portfolio

SEN and Inclusion 5,090     755        

755        

Public Protection & Safety Portfolio

Mortuary & Coroners Service 395        50          

50          

TOTAL 5,321      
 

3.5.2 Given the significant financial savings that the Council will need to make over the next 
four years, it is important that all future cost pressures are contained and that savings are 
identified early to mitigate these pressures.  
 

3.5.3 Further details, including action to be taken to contain future cost pressures, are included 
in Appendix 4. 
 

3.6 Interest on Balances 
 
3.6.1 The 2016/17 budget included an additional £1,250k to reflect increased interest earnings 

being achieved from increased limits for the two part-nationalised banks (Lloyds and 
RBS), higher rates from longer-term deals placed with other local authorities, higher 
average balances and the strong performance of the CCLA Property Fund. This was 
partly offset by £500k reduced income to reflect a reduction in balances as a result of 
further property acquisitions providing a net increase of £750k (£3,491k budget 
compared to £2,741k in 2015/16).   

 
3.6.2 In the last budget monitoring report to Executive, it was estimated that the 2016/17 

outturn for interest earnings would be around £450k above budget. This has increased 
slightly to £671k above budget (final outturn £4,162k) mainly due to higher than 
anticipated balances available for investment.  However, the anticipated lower rates that 
will be available for maturing investments, further utilisation of the investment fund and 
growth fund and the Highways Investment capital scheme are expected to reduce 
interest earnings during 2017/18 and, as a result, a reduction of £600k has been included 
in the 2017/18 budget. 

 
3.6.3 The Council’s performance on treasury management is in the top 10% among local 

authorities.  Details of the Treasury Management Annual Investment Strategy for 2017/18 
were reported to Council on 1st March 2017. The Treasury Management Annual Report 
for 2016/17 will be reported to Executive and Resources PDS Committee on 14th June 
2017.  

 

Page 42



  

9 

3.7 Income from Investment Properties 
 
3.7.1 There was an overall shortfall of income on Investment Fund properties of £650k which 

mainly reflects slippage in the acquisition programme.  To date a total of 19 investment 
properties have been purchased for a cost of £93.5m which should deliver an annual 
rental income of £5.7m from 2017/18. This is partially offset by additional income 
received from other investment properties, as shown in the table below, resulting in a net 
shortfall of investment income of £240k. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

4 EARMARKED RESERVES  
 
4.1 As reported to the Executive previously, the Council has reduced its level of general 

reserves (general fund reserves in 1997 were £131 million). Part of the reduction reflects 
funding directed towards the Growth Fund and the Investment Fund. These funds will help 
support the achievement of sustainable savings and income to the Council.  

 
4.2 Growth Fund 
 
4.2.1 A key priority for the Council is economic development and inward investment which was 

reflected in the Local Plan reported to Executive in February 2013. Supporting economic 
growth and new investment creates employment opportunities, potentially reduces the 
cost of council tax support and generates income through business rates, new homes 
bonus and other investment opportunities. 

 
4.2.2 Members approved an initial allocation of £10m to be ring-fenced for investments which 

support growth in the Biggin Hill area (£3.5m), Cray Corridor (£3.5m) and Bromley Town 
Centre (£3m). There are further opportunities to support economic development and, 
although the devolution of business rates to local government is expected to be cost 
neutral, it will provide an opportunity to generate additional income through the uplift in 
business rate income as the Council will retain a higher share. Generating additional 
income will become more critical as the Council will lose core government funding in the 
future. 

 
4.2.3 Following consideration by the Executive on 2nd December 2015, Council approved that 

£6.5m of the 2015/16 underspend on services and the Central Contingency be transferred 
to the Growth Fund. Further transfers of £6m, £7m and £4m in one-off funding were 
agreed by Council following consideration by the Executive on 23rd March 2016, 15th June 
2016 and 22nd March 2017 respectively. 

Summary of Variations £’000 

Income from Investment Fund Properties 650 

Glades Rent Share Cr  106  

Yeoman House Cr    68 

Income from tenancies at Anerley Business Centre  Cr  180 

Rent Reviews and New Tenancies Cr    56 

Total Variation 240 

Page 43



  

10 

 
4.2.4 The Council will continue to seek opportunities to invest in growth and economic 

development and a “Growth Fund Review” was reported to the Executive on 18th May 
2016. This report sought to provide a strategic review of growth projects and set out a 
series of proposed recommendations for the next stage of the work programme. The 
report also identified significant opportunities available, subject to the necessary funding 
being in place.  On 1st November 2016, the Executive approved the acquisition of two 
properties, one in Orpington and one in Bromley, at a total cost of £14.5m funded through 
the Growth Fund. 

 
4.2.5 It is proposed to transfer the remainder of the underspends on the Council’s budget to the 

Growth Fund.   As set out in para.3.2.3, this would result in the transfer of a further £3.3m 
into the Growth Fund for 2016/17. A detailed analysis of this Fund is provided in the 
Capital Programme Outturn report elsewhere on the agenda. As at 31st March 2017, the 
uncommitted balance (after allowing for approved expenditure) was £5.0m which will 
increase to £8.3m should the proposed transfer be agreed. 

 
4.2.6 The setting aside of this additional funding will also require the approval of Council and 

any future release of these monies will be subject to a detailed report to Members for 
approval. 

 
4.3 Investment Fund  
 
4.3.1 The Fund is used primarily for property investments to enable the Council to achieve 

investment income which exceeds treasury management rates and was set up with an 
initial allocation of £10m in 2011. Since then a further £68.4m has been added to the fund 
from other earmarked reserves, revenue underspends, and New Homes Bonus funding, 
as well as £16.2m set aside from capital receipts. 

 
4.3.2 The Council’s acquisition of investment properties through utilisation of the Investment 

Fund has resulted in property acquisitions totalling £79.0m  and generating full-year 
income of £4.8m per annum (£5.7m including income from the properties purchased from 
the Growth Fund detailed in para 4.2.4 above).  

 
4.3.3 As at 31st March 2017, the uncommitted balance on the Fund stood at £8.9m (the 

remaining balance of the £16.2m allocation set aside from capital receipts). A detailed 
analysis of this Fund is provided in the Capital Programme Outturn report elsewhere on 
the agenda. 

 
4.4 Better Care Fund (BCF) – Joint Schemes / Pump Priming 
 
4.4.1 On 22nd February 2016, Council approved that £3.1m be set aside in 2015/16 as an 

earmarked reserve relating to the continuation of various joint schemes and pump priming 
investment. In view of the ambitious programme to deliver BCF Objectives, an element of 
the budget has required re-profiling into 2017/18.  As a result, Members are requested to 
agree that a further £2m be set aside in order to allow the continuation of agreed joint 
schemes and to be used as pump priming investment for more cost effective delivery 
models across Health and Social care in Bromley.  

 
4.4.2 The setting aside of this funding will also require the approval of Council and any future 

release of these monies will be subject to a detailed report to Members for approval. 
 
 
 

Page 44



  

11 

4.5 Other Earmarked Reserves 
 
4.5.1 CSC Recruitment and Retention: 
 

As set out in para 3.2.1, it is proposed to set aside funding of £496k from the Tackling 
Troubled Families and Step Up to Social Work grants to deal with recruitment and 
retention issues within Children’s Social Care, particularly around the recruitment and 
retention of social workers. Recently this has been an issue for Bromley and this funding 
will help to alleviate this through elements such as golden hello payments, market 
premiums and retention payments. In addition to this funding, there is a balance of £359k 
(from an original allocation of £767k) within the existing earmarked reserve for LAA Pump 
Priming Grant specifically relating to the recruitment and retention of social workers and it 
is proposed that this sum be transferred. Members are requested to agree that £855k be 
set aside as an earmarked reserve for Recruitment and Retention in Children’s Social 
Care. 

 
4.5.2 Professional Advice for Future Schemes: 
 

As set out in para 3.4.3, there was an in-year underspend of £147k from funding set aside 
to meet external professional advice. It is likely that there will be a further need to 
commission external specialist advice in support of future schemes as required.  This may 
include accounting and taxation advice as well as legal and actuarial fees.  Members are 
requested to agree that this underspend be set aside as an earmarked reserve to meet 
such costs going forward.  

 
4.5.3 Winter Resilience: 
 

As set out in para 3.2.1, the Council has received Winter Pressure funding for support of 
social care which came via the CCG to assist in discharges from hospital. It is 
recommended that this funding be set aside with other funding in the existing earmarked 
reserve (£1,542k) to be used for these purposes during the winter period if the current 
funding streams are insufficient.  Members are requested to agree that £468k be set aside 
in the Winter Pressures earmarked reserve. 
 

4.5.4 A summary of the actual balances as at 31st March 2017 on the earmarked reserves set 
out above and all other earmarked reserves is provided in Appendix 6.  An analysis of the 
Invest to Save Fund is also provided in Appendix 9. 
 

5  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 
 

5.1  Details of contingent liabilities and provisions will be included in the draft statement of 
accounts which will be available for audit at the end of June. Large provisions as at 31st 
March 2017 include backdated business rates appeals (£2.9m), unsettled insurance 
claims (£1.7m) and NNDR and Council Tax credit balances (£2.9m).  
 

6 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND RECEIPTS 
 
6.1 Capital Expenditure: 
 
6.1.1 The final capital outturn (actual expenditure) for the year was £53.0m, compared with the 

original estimate of £82.7m approved by the Executive in February 2016 and with the 
latest approved budget of £59.9m agreed in February 2017 (adjusted for the further £6.2m 
approved in March 2017 for a further property acquisition).  

 

Page 45



  

12 

6.1.2 At that time, further slippage of £3.5m was assumed for capital financing purposes so the 
overall variation in the capital financing requirement (capital receipts, government grants, 
other external contributions and revenue contributions) is £3.4m, the majority of which was 
due to slippage of expenditure into later years. Further details are included in the capital 
outturn report elsewhere on this agenda. 

 
6.2 Capital Receipts: 
 
6.2. Under the “prudential” capital system in operation from 1st April 2004, most capital 

receipts are “useable” and may be applied to finance capital expenditure. Available capital 
receipts totalled £34.0m, including an unapplied balance of £29.6m brought forward from 
2016/17. A total of 9.9m was applied in 2016/17 and a balance of £24.1m has been 
carried forward to finance capital expenditure in future years. No capital contribution from 
the General Fund was required in 2016/17. Further details are included in the capital 
outturn report elsewhere on this agenda. 

 
7 TREASURY MANAGEMENT - BORROWING AND INVESTMENT 
 
7.1 The Authority’s borrowing and investments have been reported quarterly to the Executive 

and Resources PDS Committee and the Resources Portfolio holder during 2016/17. The 
final outturn report (including details of activity in the 4th quarter) will be considered by the 
Executive and Resources PDS Committee on 14th June 2017.  The Council had no 
temporary borrowing outstanding as at 31st March 2017, and the balance of investments 
(including accrued interest) stood at £272.1m. As at 31st March 2016 there was £24.4m of 
temporary borrowing and £288.2m total investments.  

 
7.2 Further details will be provided in the Treasury Management Annual Report to Executive 

and Resources PDS Committee on 14th June 2017. 
 
8 SECTION 106 

 
8.1 An update on balances as at 31st March 2017 is included in Appendix 7 of this report. 

Further details on the arrangements for utilising Section 106 monies will be provided in the 
“Section 106 Agreements: Update” report to Executive and Resources PDS Committee on 
13th July 2017.    
 

9 THE SCHOOLS BUDGET 
 
9.1 Expenditure on Schools is funded through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) provided 

by the Department for Education (DfE). DSG is ring fenced and can only be applied to 
meet expenditure properly included in the schools budget. Any overspend or underspend 
must be carried forward to the following years Schools Budget. 

9.2 There is a total in-year underspend of £226k on DSG funded services, with a total to carry 
forward to 2017/18 of £1.6m. Subject to approval, surplus funds may be given to schools 
as a one off payment, carried forward centrally to offset any future unknown pressures, or 
a combination of the two. Further details of the in-year variation and plans for spending 
some of the amount carried forward are provided in Appendix 8. 

10  ACADEMIES 
 
10.1  During the 2016/17 financial year 9 schools have converted to academy status. 

 

Page 46



  

13 

10.2  The impact of these arrangements is that when schools convert to academy status their 
balances are removed from the accounts as the schools are autonomous and no longer 
under the Council’s control and therefore have their own financial arrangements in place. 
This generally results in a reduction in maintained balances. During 2016/17 total 
balances have reduced from £4,017k to £2,621k. 

10.3   Further details of schools’ balances are provided in Appendix 8. 
 
11 COLLECTION FUND 

 
11.1 It is a statutory requirement to maintain a Collection Fund at arm’s length from the 

remainder of the Council’s accounts. The Fund is credited with income from Council Tax 
and Business Rates and charged with sums payable to the Council, GLA and Central 
Government. 

 
11.2 There is a Council Tax surplus on the fund in 2016/17 of £9.8m. The surplus income is 

mainly due to good debt recovery levels despite the previous recessionary period, an 
increase in new properties in the borough and the successful impact of action following 
the data matching exercise on single person discounts. The financial impact of the 
council tax support scheme was also lower than budgeted.  A one-off sum of £2.0m will 
be allocated to the GLA and £7.8m to the Council in 2018/19. 
 

11.3 There is an overall deficit of £0.6m relating to the collection and distribution of Non 
Domestic Rates under the Business Rates Retention Scheme.  This is mainly due to 
downward revaluations of properties during the year and an increase in the provision for 
outstanding appeals based on information from the Valuation Office Agency.  This 
highlights the challenges of predicting accurate levels of retained business rates under 
the new scheme and the volatility of projections arising from successful appeals.  Of the 
2016/17 deficit, £0.3m will be allocated to Central Government, £0.1m to the GLA and 
£0.2m to Bromley.  In accordance with statutory provisions, this will be distributed in 
2018/19.   

 
11.4 The volatility arising from the level of downward revaluations and outstanding appeals 

provides a significant challenge in accurately forecasting the level of business rates 
income that the Council can retain and there may well be further volatility during 2017/18 
and in future years.  

 
11.5 A further complexity arises from the timing of income with a requirement for business 

rates to be accounted for through the Collection Fund. This means that in-year surpluses 
or deficits are distributed in either of the following two years, depending on when they are 
provisionally estimated, with any resulting variations from those provisional estimates 
being adjusted in the subsequent year.   

 
11.6 In addition, funding provided by way of Section 31 grant to compensate authorities for 

reduced rating income associated with business rates measures announced in the 2013, 
2014 and 2015 Autumn Statements are allocated directly to the general fund in the year 
they are due. This can result in the Collection Fund having and in-year surplus or deficit 
(which will impact on the general fund in a future year) whilst the general fund has an in-
year variation relating to the receipt of these grants and the distribution of prior year 
Collection Fund variations.  

 
11.7 The overall impact in 2016/17 is a deficit of £0.6m on the collection fund as detailed in 

para. 11.3 (£0.2m of which will be distributed to the Council in 2018/19) and a net credit 
variation in the Council’s general fund of £0.6m mainly relating to section 31 grant 
income.  

Page 47



  

14 

 
12 FINANCIAL CONTEXT 

 
12.1 The 2017/18 Council tax report identified the latest financial projections and a future year 

budget gap due to the impact of inflation, service and cost pressures and ongoing 
significant reductions in government funding.  More details were reported in the “2017/18 
Council Tax” report to Executive in February.   
 

12.2 The provisional 2016/17 outturn identifies net overspends within portfolio budgets offset 
by underspends from prior year adjustments and the Council’s central contingency.  In 
addition there are improved investment returns from changes to the treasury 
management strategy.  The underspends from the central contingency sum mainly relate 
to ongoing action to contain growth pressures where possible, stringent cost controls, 
management of risk and effective use of government funding.     
 

12.3   As reported as part of the Council’s financial strategy, a prudent approach has been 
adopted in considering the central contingency sum to reflect any inherent risks, the 
potential impact of new burdens, population increases or actions taken by other public 
bodies which could affect the Council.  The approach has also been one of “front loading” 
savings to ensure difficult decisions are taken early in the budgetary cycle, to provide 
some investment in specific priorities, to fund transformation and to support invest to 
save opportunities which provide a more sustainable financial position in the longer term.  
The contributions made to the Growth Fund will greatly assist in providing a more 
sustainable financial position for the Council as it moves to become “self-sufficient” in the 
longer term.  

 
12.4 The 2017/18 Council Tax report identified a budget gap of £23.6m per annum by 

2020/21.  Additional funding of £5.2m was included in the 2017/18 budget for Children’s 
Social Care and £2.2m for Education SEN and Adult Social Care to mainly reflect the 
impact of in-year overspends and additional staffing (Children’s Social Care).  The 
financial forecast and budget will be affected by inflation, changes in government funding 
and new burdens and realistically any future year overspends will need to be funded from 
alternative savings.  It is therefore important to ensure that action is taken, where 
possible, to contain costs within budget which also mitigates against the risk of the 
Council’s budget gap increasing further which would increase the savings required in 
future years.  
 

12.5 The Council’s general reserves remain at £20m, whilst a future years “budget gap” 
continues. However there is flexibility in the Council’s overall resources (including 
earmarked reserves) to allow this position to be revised in the future. The approach to 
reserves was reported in the 2017/18 Council Tax report to Executive in February 2017. 

 
13 STATUTORY ACCOUNTS 

 
13.1 The audited statutory accounts for 2016/17 will be reported to the General Purposes and 

Licensing Committee meeting on 12th September 2017, which meets the statutory 
deadline of 30th September 2017 for reporting accounts under the Accounts & Audit 
Regulations 2015. 

 
14 IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN 
 
14.1 The 2016/17 budget reflects the financial impact of the Council’s strategies and service 

plans which impact on all of the Council’s customers and users of our services. 
 

Page 48



15 

15 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

15.1 The “Building a Better Bromley” objective of being an Excellent Council refers to the 
Council’s intention to ensure good strategic financial management and robust discipline 
to deliver within our budgets.  

15.2 The “2016/17 Council Tax” report highlighted the financial pressures facing the Council. It 
remains imperative that strict budgetary control continues to be exercised in 2017/18 to 
minimise the risk of compounding financial pressures in future years. 

15.3  Chief Officer’s comments are included in Appendix 1B. 

16 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

16.1  These are contained within the body of the report with additional information provided in 
the appendices. 

Non-Applicable Sections: Legal, Personnel 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact Officer) 

2017/18 Council Tax – Executive 8th February 
2017; 
Budget Monitoring Reports in 2016/17 – 
Executive; 
Financial Management Budget Monitoring files 
across all Portfolios; 
2016/17 Budget Monitoring file held by 
Technical and Control Finance Section; 
Provisional final Accounts - Executive 15th June 
2016; 
Draft 2016/17 Budget and Update on Council’s 
Financial strategy 2017/18 to 2019/20 - 
Executive 13th January 2016; 
Capital Programme Outturn 2016/17 (elsewhere 
on the agenda). 

Page 49



APPENDIX 1

GENERAL FUND - PROVISIONAL OUTTURN FOR 2016/17

 2016/17 

Original 

Budget 

 Budget 

Variations 

allocated in 

year # 

 2016/17 

Final 

Approved 

Budget 

 2016/17 

Provisional 

Final Outturn  Variation 

 Variation 

previously 

reported to 

Exec 22/03/17 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Care Services 95,135          678 95,813          100,353        4,540          4,657 

Education (incl. Schools' Budget) 5,245 922 6,167 6,058 109Cr    75 

Environment 31,203          445 31,648          30,786          862Cr    822Cr     

Public Protection & Safety 1,948 37Cr    1,911 1,880 31Cr    9 

Renewal and Recreation 8,953 300 9,253 8,961 292Cr    353Cr     

Resources 46,354          3,056 49,410          48,681          729Cr    374Cr     
Total Controllable Budgets 188,838        5,364 194,202        196,719        2,517          3,192 

Capital, Insurance & Pensions Costs (see note 2) 11,521          14,183Cr    2,662Cr    2,662Cr    0 0 

Non General Fund Recharges 772Cr    17Cr    789Cr    789Cr    0 0 

Total Portfolios (see note 1) 199,587        8,836Cr    190,751        193,268        2,517          3,192 

Adj for Carry Forwards from 2016/17 to 2017/18 0 0 0 560 560 0 

Capital, Insurance & Pension Accounting Requirements 10,203Cr    14,200          3,997 4,045 48 0 
189,384        5,364 194,748        197,873        3,125          3,192 

Central Items:

Income from Investment Properties 9,542Cr    0 9,542Cr    9,302Cr    240 500 

Interest on General Fund Balances 3,491Cr    0 3,491Cr    4,162Cr    671Cr    450Cr     

Total Investment Income 13,033Cr    0 13,033Cr    13,464Cr    431Cr     50 

Contingency Provision (see Appendix 3) 15,629          11,972Cr    3,657 0 3,657Cr    5,003Cr     

Other central items

Contribution to Investment and Other Funds 9,470 0 9,470 9,550 80 80 

Set Aside Prior Year Collection Fund Surplus 4,912 0 4,912 4,912 0 0 

Civic Centre Development Strategy 0 257 257 257 0 0 

Environmental Initiatives Fund 0 500 500 500 0 0 

Planning/Planning Enforcement 0 250 250 250 0 0 

Apprenticeship Scheme 0 200 200 200 0 0 

Contribution to Growth Fund 0 4,000 4,000 4,000 0 0 
Levies 1,384 0 1,384 1,384 0 0 

LRB Receipts 0 0 0 37Cr    37Cr    0 

Subject to approval Executive 20th June 2017

Professional Advice - Future Schemes 0 0 0 147 147 0 

Contribution to Growth Fund 0 3,311 3,311 3,311 0 0 

Total other central items 15,766          8,518 24,284          24,474          190 80 

Carry Forwards from 2016/17 to 2017/18 0 0 0 560Cr    560Cr    0 

Prior Year Adjustments

Localised Pay Contracts 0 0 0 69Cr    69Cr    69Cr     

Core I.T. Contract 0 0 0 116Cr    116Cr    116Cr     

Audit Bad Debt Provision 0 0 0 80Cr    80Cr    0 

Legal, Professional and Accounting Advice (SPV) 0 0 0 147Cr    147Cr    0 

HMRC VAT Recovery 0 0 0 16Cr    16Cr    0 

Appointeeship & Deputyship 0 0 0 28Cr    28Cr    0 

Waste 4 Fuel 0 0 0 226 226 0 

Backdated Council Tax Benefit Adjustments 0 0 0 147Cr    147Cr    0 

Parking Feasibility Study Costs (MSCP) 0 0 0 311 311 0 

Total Prior Year Adjustments 0 0 0 66Cr    66Cr    185Cr     

Total all central items 18,362          3,454Cr    14,908          10,384          4,524Cr    5,058Cr     

Bromley's Requirement before balances 207,746        1,910 209,656        208,257        1,399Cr    1,866Cr     

Carry Forwards from 2015/16 (see note 3) 0 1,401Cr    1,401Cr    0 1,401          1,401 

Carry Forward from 2015/16 Delegated Authority - R&M 0 301Cr    301Cr    0 301 301 

Adjustment to Balances 0 0 0 0 0 224 

207,746        208 207,954        208,257        303 60 

Revenue Support Grant 21,293Cr    0 21,293Cr    21,293Cr    0 0 

Business Rates Retention Scheme (Retained Income,  Top-up

         and S31 Grants) 35,387Cr    0 35,387Cr    35,939Cr    552Cr    300Cr     

New Homes Bonus 7,402Cr    0 7,402Cr    7,482Cr    80Cr    80Cr     

New Homes Bonus Top Slice 986Cr    223Cr    1,209Cr    880Cr    329 320 

Transition Grant 2,068Cr    0 2,068Cr    2,068Cr    0 0 

Local Services Support Grant 15Cr    15 0 0 0 0 

Collection Fund Surplus 4,912Cr    0 4,912Cr    4,912Cr    0 0 

Bromley's Requirement 135,683        0 135,683        135,683        0 0 

GLA Precept 34,957          0 34,957          34,957          0 0 

Council Tax Requirement 170,640        0 170,640        170,640        0 0 

# Budget Variations allocated to portfolios in year consists of: £'000

1) Carry forwards from 2015/16 (see note 3) 1,702 

2) Capital, Insurance & Pension Accounting Requirements (see note 2) 14,200Cr    

3) Allocations from the central contingency provision (see Appendix 3) 3,677 

4) Local Services Support grant allocated to Education 15Cr    

8,836Cr    
1) NOTES

Portfolio Final Approved Budgets analysed over Departments as follows:
 2016/17  Budget  2016/17  2016/17  Variation  Variation 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education Care & Health Services 116,280        10,145Cr     106,135        110,550        4,415          4,788 

Environment & Community Services 55,122          9,488 64,610          63,244          1,366Cr    1,370Cr     

Chief Executive's Department 28,185          8,179Cr     20,006          19,474          532Cr    226Cr     

199,587        8,836Cr    190,751        193,268        2,517          3,192 
2) Capital, Insurance and Pension Accounting Requirements

This is to reflect the technical accounting requirements contained in CIPFA's Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting and has no

impact on the Council's General Fund.

3) Carry Forwards from 2015/16

Carry forwards from 2015/16 into 2016/17 totalling £1,702k were approved by the Executive and under the delegated authority of the 

Director of Finance. Full details were reported to the June meeting of the Executive in the “Provisional Final Accounts 2015/16” report.

Portfolio

16 Page 50



Appendix 1B

Comments from the Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of Education, Care 

and Health Services

Care Services Portfolio

Education Portfolio

Housing was underspent overall although there continues to be pressures on temporary accommodation 

coming through the system. Universal Credit will continue to be an issue as the roll out extends, and will 

need to be monitored closely.

The pressure on temporary accommodation is being mitigated as far as possible by entering into 

agreements with organisations to increase supply wherever possible. Supporting people overspent in 

year. Efficiencies were made but the full year effect will not materialise until 2017/18. 

The Adult Education Service overspent in year by £147k. The service has been restructured with a

significant reduction in expenditure. Most of the overspend related to associated one-off costs of 

downsizing the service and vacating the Widmore premises. This area continued to pay business rates 

for the Widmore Centre since vacating the site at end of August 2016 whilst alternative uses for the site 

were found. This should cease once the new lease is signed with the EFA.

The Adult Social Care Division within the service has an overspend of £1,003k for the year. There was a 

very ambitious efficiency programme which saw the department realise savings of more than £8m. The 

department was unable to realise this additional £1,003k. 

There remain pressures within the domiciliary care area, as we see increasing numbers of people 

supported to live at home.

Learning Disability placements are another area where pressures continue, we have in place an efficiency 

project looking at reviews, user expectation and community living.

To mitigate this Placement Panels are scrutinising placements and are ensuring that the CCG contribute 

an appropriate share of the costs. In terms of recruitment, a push is being made to recruit more staff 

permanently and hiring restrictions are in place to limit the costs of agency staff coming into the 

organisation. To mitigate the PLO early intervention and legal gateway panels should ensure work with 

families has taken place and we are not reactive.

In Public Health there was an overspend of £53k in controllable budgets, although this was offset by an 

underspend on non controllable budget charges to the Public Health Grant. Overall the service 

underspent by £330k in the main due to underspends in NHS health checks and substance misuse. 

This has been requested to be carried forward as per the grant conditions.

Underspends in other areas supported by the Better Care Fund have been utilised within Adult Social 

Care to help mitigate these pressures overall.

In Children’s Social Care the overspend is £3,849k.  Placements, leaving care and costs of agency 

workers have seen costs rise. Public Law Outline (PLO) costs have increased following the Ofsted 

inspection and legacy cases.

The two in house nurseries overspent by £95k due to lack of use/income by social care clients. There is 

a proposal to mitigate this.

Transport continues to see pressures emerge, although steps are being taken to address this as far as 

possible. Increased numbers of children with complex needs requiring EHC plans (27 per cent increase 

in new plans this year as compared with the previous year).  There is a root and branch review of 

SEND currently being commissioned which will include a review of all high needs block. Members have 

acknowledged the pressure in SEN Transport and additional funding has been made available in 2017/18.

17 Page 51



Appendix 1B

Comments from the Executive Director of Environment and Community Services 

Environment Portfolio

 

Public Health has contributed to the Early Intervention agenda which has resulted in the Education 

Portfolio being in an underspend position overall. 

The Environment Portfolio has a net underspend of £862k for 2016/17. This is mainly from two areas, 

Waste (£501k) and Parking (£345k). Other net underspends across the Portfolio total £16k.

The variances in waste are for defaults, waste disposal costs, green garden waste service and paper 

income. Waste tonnages are unpredictable and therefore the variances may not continue in future years.

The net variances in parking are mainly due to an increase in enforcement contraventions offset by a 

shortfall of income for off and on street parking. The rate of offending is beginning to reduce and so with 

a higher level of compliance, the current level is unlikely to be maintained in future years.

In Workforce development there has been a reduction in income following a restructure which resulted 

in a deficit position. Savings for 2017/18 will result in this area no longer contributing to overheads 

of the Widmore Centre.

18 Page 52



APPENDIX 2A

Care Services Portfolio Budget Monitoring Summary

2015/16 Division 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 Variation Notes Variation Full Year

Actuals Service Areas Original Final Provisional Last Effect

Budget Approved Outturn Reported

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

EDUCATION CARE & HEALTH SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Adult Social Care

22,652     Assessment and Care Management 20,334           20,946            22,012       1,066       1 1,178        1,223         

2,516       Direct Services 1,241             1,209              1,119         90Cr          2 83Cr          0                

774          Commisioning & Service Delivery 2,700             1,170              1,258         88            3 7               0                

28,980     Learning Disabilities 30,685           30,402            31,032       630          4 549           672            

6,092       Mental Health 5,947             5,807              5,588         219Cr        5 48Cr          118Cr          

312Cr        Better Care Funding - Protection of Social Care 0                    0                     472Cr          472Cr        6 371Cr        0                

60,702     60,907           59,534            60,537       1,003       1,232        1,777         

Operational Housing

1Cr            Enabling Activities 1Cr                 1Cr                  0                1              0               0                

2,350Cr     Housing Benefits 1,907Cr          1,907Cr           2,018Cr       111Cr        0               0                

6,364       Housing Needs 6,354             7,128              7,128         0              201Cr        146            

Housing funds held in contingency 0                     0                0              201           0                

1,413       Supporting People 1,051             1,051              1,107         56            8 93             72Cr            

5,426       5,497             6,271              6,217         54Cr         93             74              

Children's Social Care

16,768     Care and Resources 15,978           15,838            18,047       2,209       2,305        2,018         

1,853       Safeguarding and Quality Assurance 1,494             2,527              2,646         119          98Cr          0                

2,508       Social Care Referral Services 2,695             2,871              3,158         287          103           35              

3,174       Safeguarding and Care Planning 2,967             2,954              4,206         1,252       1,202        612            

1,113       Early Intervention and Family Support 998                998                 991            7Cr            9               0                

2,343       Children's Disability Service 2,342             2,345              2,334         11Cr          2Cr            0                

27,759     26,474           27,533            31,382       3,849       3,519        2,665         

Health Integration

330          Health Integration Programme 0                    330                 206            124Cr        122Cr        0                

Carers

1,301       - Net Expenditure 1,434             1,434              1,142         292Cr        250Cr        0                

1,301Cr     - Recharge to Better Care Fund 1,434Cr          1,434Cr           1,142Cr       292          250           0                

Information & Early Intervention

1,187       - Net Expenditure 1,163             1,063              922            141Cr        121Cr        0                

1,187Cr     - Recharge to Better Care Fund 1,163Cr          1,063Cr           922Cr          141          10 121           0                

Better Care Fund

18,692     - Expenditure 19,027           20,158            20,010       148Cr        0               0                

18,851Cr   - Income 19,180Cr        20,311Cr         20,154Cr     157          0               0                

NHS Support for Social Care

266          - Expenditure 0                    348                 320            28Cr          0               0                

266Cr        - Income 0                    348Cr              320Cr          28            0               0                

171          153Cr             177                 62              115Cr       122Cr        0                

Strategic & Business Support Services

242          Learning & Development 308                309                 261            48Cr          8Cr            0                

1,972       Strategic & Business Support 2,279             2,164              2,000         164Cr        91Cr          0                

2,214       2,587             2,473              2,261         212Cr       11 99Cr          0                

Public Health

13,578     Public Health 15,106           15,106            15,159       53            0               0                

13,936Cr   Public Health - Grant Income 15,478Cr        15,478Cr         15,478Cr     0              0               0                
358Cr       372Cr             372Cr              319Cr         53            12 0               0                

1,079Cr     Savings achieved early in 2015/16 for 2016/17 0                    0                     0                0              0               0                

94,835     TOTAL CONTROLLABLE ECHS DEPT 94,940           95,616            100,140     4,524       4,623        4,516         

2,690       TOTAL NON CONTROLLABLE 366                240Cr              240Cr          0              90             0                

12,835     TOTAL EXCLUDED RECHARGES 8,291             10,127            10,127       0              0               0                

110,360   TOTAL ECHS DEPARTMENT 103,597         105,503          110,027     4,524       4,713        4,516         

Environmental Services Dept - Housing

189          Housing Improvement 195                197                 213            16            13 34             0                

189          TOTAL CONTROLLABLE FOR ENV SVCES DEPT 195                197                 213            16            34             0                

407          TOTAL NON CONTROLLABLE 942Cr             1,149Cr           1,149Cr       0              0               0                

327          TOTAL EXCLUDED RECHARGES 320                290                 290            0              0               0                

923          TOTAL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SVCES DEPT 427Cr             662Cr              646Cr         16            34             0                

111,283   TOTAL CARE SERVICES PORTFOLIO 103,170         104,841          109,381     4,540       4,747        4,516         

9

7

19 Page 53



APPENDIX 2A

Reconciliation of Latest Approved Budget £'000

2016/17 Original Budget 103,170          

Social Care Funding via the CCG under S256 agreements

Adult Social Care Invest to Save Schemes

- expenditure 48                   

- income 48Cr                

Integration Funding - Better Care Fund

- expenditure 300                 

- income 300Cr              

Better Care Fund

- expenditure 381                 

- income 381Cr              

Adoption Reform Grant

- expenditure 132                 

- income 132Cr              

DCLG Preventing Homelessness Grant

- expenditure 200                 

- income 200Cr              

Implementing Welfare Reforms Changes

- expenditure 56                   

- income 56Cr                

Tackling Troubled Families

- expenditure 748                 

- income 748Cr              

Better Care Fund allocation from contingency 750Cr              

Additional income linked to National Living Wage - return to contingency 503                 

Commissioning restructure 12Cr                

Children's Social Care OFSTED report 950                 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 66                   

Homelessness 760                 

Funding for Liberata re spot day care placements and transport invoices 8Cr                  

Part funding for Corporate post 13Cr                

Environmental Services contribution to domestic violence services 30                   

Transfer of budget from ECHS to Commissioning  (Transport BSO) 13Cr                

Liberata - Financial Review of TPTUs 4Cr                  

Community Housing Fund 

- expenditure 31                   

- income 31Cr                

National Living Wage 686                 

Retained Welfare Fund 100                 

Childrens Services Improvement Plan Phase 3 141                 

Merit Rewards 52                   

Return of Homelessness Contingency 88Cr                

Winter Resilience Funding 2014/15 (Bromley CCG)

- expenditure 351                 

- income 351Cr              

Winter Resilience Funding 2015/16 (Bromley CCG)

- expenditure 117                 

- income 117Cr              

Tackling Troubled Families

- expenditure 424                 

- income 424Cr              

Step Up to Social Work

- expenditure 72                   

- income 72Cr                

Memorandum Items

Capital Charges 1,530Cr           

Insurance 37Cr                

Rent Income 92                   

Repairs & Maintenance 89Cr                

IAS19 (FRS17) 750                 

Excluded Recharges 85                   

Latest Approved Budget for 2016/17 104,841

20 Page 54



1. Assessment and Care Management - Dr £1,066k

Current

Variation

£'000

Services for 65 + 74

Cr          42

1,247

Services for 18 - 64 28

13

25
Extra Care Housing Cr          58
Staffing Cr          22

Other Cr        199
1,066

REASONS FOR VARIATIONS

The overspend in Assessment and Care Management can be analysed as follows:

Physical Support / Sensory Support /  Memory & Cognition

 - Placements

 - Respite care

Services for the 65's and over age group have outurned with an overspend of £1.279m, a reduction of £11k on the 

figure reported as at December.

Placements and respite care overspent by £32k, analysed as follows (i) Residential care underspend of £58k (ii) 

Nursing care overspend of £94k (iii) supported living and shared lives overspend of  £32k (iv) emergency 

placements overspend of £6k (v) respite underspend of £42k.The combined client numbers for permanent 

placements at the end of March was 397 which is 4 below the budgeted number of 401.

The budget savings in this area related to better management of both internal and external void apartments in 

extra care housing to reduce numbers placed in residential care, as well as ensuring no placements are made 

above the council's financial ceiling rates. 

Domiciliary care and direct payments overspent by £1.247m which was an increase of £90k since December. This 

area of the budget had the highest savings target to achieve at £1.26m.These savings related to reviewing 

packages of care, increasing the capacity of the reablement service so that more clients can be reabled and 

reliance on care packages could be reduced, and additional income from charging for day and transport services. 

Although there has been an ongoing recruitment drive for reablement facilitators, the take up has not been as 

large as hoped and any new appointments have just replaced staff who have left during the year. This has 

significantly impacted on the ability to meet the related savings target in the budget.

Extra Care Housing - Cr £58k

The 3 externally run extra care housing schemes underspent by £58k. Although average care packages continue 

to be above the level budgeted for, additional income from client contributions is offsetting some of this additional 

cost. As mentioned above, avoidance of voids in these schemes is a key element of the 2016/17 budget savings 

and there is also a financial cost to the council where a property remains vacant for more than 28 days. These 

financial penalties have reduced significantly this year as void periods have reduced.

 - Domiciliary Care / Direct Payments

 - Placements

 - Respite care

 - Domiciliary Care / Direct Payments

The budget for 2016/17 included savings of £2.15m in relation to Assessment & Care Management .In December 

a projected overspend of £1.178m was being reported. The final outturn shows this has reduced by £112k to an 

overspend of £1.066m .

Services for 65+ - Dr £1,279k

Services for 18 - 64 year olds - Dr £66k

Placements for the 18 - 64 age group overspent by £28k, with client numbers being 3 above the budget number of 

43. Respite care outurned £13k above budget and domiciliary care and direct payments were £25k higher than 

the budget.

Staffing - Cr £22k

The staffing budget for assessment and care management came in with a minor underspend of £22k for the year.

21 Page 55



2. Direct Care - Cr £90k

3. Adult Social Care Commissioning & Service Delivery - Dr £88k

4. Learning Disabilities - Dr £630k

 - Day Care - Cr £63k - partly due to the closure of Melvin Hall, including a saving of £27k on transport 

provided by the centre.

 - Transport provided by GSP (Greenwich Services Plus) - Cr £34k - journeys during the year have been 

below the numbers originally contracted for and, although there has been a 12.5% contractual increase in the 

cost of each journey payable by Bromley as a result, costs have still been below budget.

- Sight/Hearing impaired services - Cr £73k - SLA underspent by £25k / Sight impaired services underspent 

by £36k / Hearing impaired services underspent by £12k

- Other minor variations on supplies and services and income budgets - Cr £29k

Extra Care Housing - Dr £100k

The 3 inhouse units providing extra care services overspent by £100k at year end, comprising of a staffing overspend 

of £127k , running costs underspend of £39k and reduced client contributions of £12k. Staffing of the units vary 

depending on the needs of clients placed there, with some clients needing more care hours than the budget provides 

for. Although some of these additional hours were offset by additional client contributions, unless the client is a full 

cost payer there is an additional net cost to the council.

Other Costs - Cr £199k

Other costs within assessment and care management have outurned below budget. The main variations are:

There are a number of variations within the net overspend of £88k on Adult Social Care Commissioning including 

overspends on staffing and legal fees, offset in part by underspends on contracts and the Taxicard service.

There has been a slight increase of £81k in the overspend position on LD compared to the previously reported 

position.  There are various reasons for this movement but it can largely be attributed to a combination of savings 

achieved being lower than the planned figure as at December 2016, clients becoming the financial responsibility of 

Bromley under ordinary residence and information on care packages that wasn't available at the time of the last 

forecast.  The effect of this is part mitigated by increased underspends on transport and staffing. 

The original 2016/17 LD budget included £1.6m savings for the year.  This target increased during the year to a) 

include a share of departmental savings that had previously not been identified from a specific area (£160k) and b) to 

fund the net cost of the temporary team of staff working on delivering the savings (£145k net).  Actual savings 

achieved in 2016/17 were slightly lower than predicted in December 2016 and this has resulted in a small increase to 

the overspend position for the year.  Progress on achieving savings will continue to be closely monitored going in to 

2017/18.  

Underlying cost pressures relating to transition clients, increased client needs and ordinary residence cases have 

been partly mitigated by the overachievement of savings on the supported living contracts element of the savings 

targets.

In addition, there are variations on the revised arrangements for delivering the former in-house LD supported living, 

day care and respite services.  This includes underspends on the housing management arrangements for former in-

house LD homes.

Reablement Service - Cr £165k

The reablement service continues to achieve good results in the service it provides, continuing to reduce ongoing 

domiciliary care costs through it's reablement of clients. As mentioned in the assessment and care management 

section above, staff resignations over the past year and the difficulty in recruiting to the subsequent vacant posts  is 

having an impact on the level savings that can be achieved. As a result of these vacancies the service outurned with 

an underspend of £165k.

Carelink - Cr £23k

The inhouse Carelink service outurned with an underspend of £23k, the majority of this related to it's supplies and 

services budget.

Direct Care Management - Cr £2k

There is a minor underspend on the staffing budget relating to the management of direct care services.

22 Page 56



5. Mental Health - Cr £219k

6. Better Care Fund - Protection of Social Care - Cr £472k

7. Housing Needs -  Dr £0k

8. Supporting People - Dr £56k

9. Children's Social Care - Dr £3,849k

In addition, by necessity there has been increasing use of non-self-contained accommodation outside of London. 

Although on the face of it this appears beneficial as the charges are lower, the housing benefit subsidy is capped at 

the Jan 2011 LHA rates (without the 90% + £40 admin formula that self contained accommodation attracts), thus 

often making these placements more costly than those in London, especially when the moving and furniture storage 

costs are factored in.

The full year effect of the projected overspend is currently anticipated to be a pressure of £146k in 2017/18. 

However, this only takes account of projected activity to the end of the financial year and does not include any 

projected further growth in numbers beyond that point.

One of the Traveller sites is experiencing high use of utilities (overspend of £25k) due to the site not having meters.  

This has been a pressure for a few years, but has been offset by underspends in other areas of the budget. There is 

a Capital Project to install meters on the site in question that has been delayed.

Savings totalling £370k were built in to the 2016/17 Supporting People budget and a total of £314k was delivered in 

2016/17.  However 2016/17 tendering activity should deliver the savings required in a full year and this is assumed in 

the modelling.

Care and Resources - Dr £2,209k

The final outturn position for Mental Health is an underspend of Cr £219k compared to a projected underspend of Cr 

£48k included in the previous budget monitoring report.

The previous report outlined that it was thought there had been a degree of mis-classification of new clients' Primary 

Support Reasons (PSRs) which was distorting the projections and overstating MH projected spend.  This has now 

been rectified.

The remainder of the downward movement can be broadly attributed to the net effect of attrition, Carefirst data being 

cleansed (principally in relation to flexible support), client moves, etc. 

A number of local authority adult social care services are funded by the element of the Better Care Fund set aside to 

protect social care services.  This includes funding previously received under the former Department of Health Social 

Care Grant.

These services underspent by £472k in 2016/17, of which £433k relates to services within the Health Integration 

Division and £39k within Adult Social Care Division.  This has been used to offset other budget pressures within adult 

social care in line with the intentions of the funding.

There is an underspend of £88k in the Temporary Accommodation budgets at the end of the year. This is due to a 

lower than expected increase in clients going into nightly paid accommodation in the last few months of the year. 

Despite the lower than expected increase in client numbers the pressures that we have been experiencing for a while 

are continuing with rising unit costs, and the increasing number of clients. As additional budget was drawn down from 

contingency in year the £88k has been returned and therefore overall is showing a zero balance.

The current projected overspend in CSC is £3,849k overspent, an increase of £330k since the last report. The main 

reasons are highlighted as follows:-

 - Adoption placements - Cr £137k

Placements - Dr £1,039k

The budget for 2016/17 for children's placements included savings of £1.119m. Final outturn figures show a 

variation of £1.039m, a reduction of £53k from the last reported figure. The overspend can be analysed as follows:

 - Community Homes / Boarding Schools - Dr £924k

 - Secure Accommodation & Youth on Remand - Dr £112k

 - Transport & Outreach services - Dr 338k

 - Fostering services - Cr £198k 

23 Page 57



Leaving Care - Dr £720k

The costs in relation to clients leaving care outurned significantly higher than budget this year for both the 16-17 

age group and the 18+ age group for whom housing benefit contributes towards the costs.

The costs in relation to clients leaving care at the age of 16 or 17 outturned £224k above budget. Costs have 

increased during the year as children are having to be placed in accommodation with higher levels of support than 

they previously had.

For the 18 plus client group there continues to be differences between the amount being paid in rent and the 

amount reclaimable as housing benefit, mainly due to lack of supply of suitable accommodation and the rental 

price. In addition we have seen an increase in older CLA who entered the care system as older teenagers. The 

final overspend was £285k, a reduction of £64k on the last reported figure. In addition expenditure relating to the 

'Staying Put' grant, where care leavers can remain with their foster carers after the age of 18,  outturned at £320k 

which was £211k above the grant provision of £109k.

In November 2016, a freeze was initiated on running expense budgets that were underspending at that time. An 

amount of budget equal to these underspends was moved to a specific code within Children's Social Care to 

ensure that they are not spent. This has resulted in an underspend of £287k on these budgets.

Post Inspection funding - Dr £281k

Additional funding of £1,091,000 was allocated to Children's Social Care during the year as part of the Children's 

Services Improvement Plan. The final outturn is an overspend of £184k on staffing, mainly due to the higher cost 

of agency staff employed compared to the budget provision for the equivalent permanent funding and £97k on 

staffing related expenditure such as mobile phones, and computer and office equipment.

Other - Dr £42k

Grants and subscriptions overspent by £17k and advocacy services by £25k.

Staffing - Dr £83k

Staffing - Dr £448k

See note below relating to staffing budgets across the Division.

Other - Dr £2k

Section 17 preventative payments and payments to assist clients underspent by £14k, offset by an overspend on 

interpreting and translation costs of £6k, subscriptions of £9k and advocacy costs of £1k.

Safeguarding and Quality Assurance  - Dr £119k

Various Expenditure Budgets - Cr £287k

Other - Dr £16k

Section 17 preventative payments and payments to assist clients overspent by £9k and interpreting and 

translation costs by £7k.

Staffing - Dr £356k

See note below relating to staffing budgets across the Division.

See note below relating to staffing budgets across the Division.

Social Care Referral Service  - Dr £287k

No Recourse to Public Funds  - Dr £87k

The final cost to Bromley for people with no recourse to public funding is an overspend of £87k. Additional budget 

was moved into this area in 2015/16 to deal with a previous overspend on the budget. Currently there are 41 

children with families receiving funding, compared to 39 in December. At the end of 2015-16 there were 48 

receiving funding.

Nurseries Recharge to Children's Social Care - Cr £172k

The underspend is being caused by a reduction in the income recharge to the Education Division in relation to the 

in-house nurseries.  This underspend is offset by an overspend in the Education Division, and therefore has a £0 

effect across the council.

24 Page 58



Children's Disabilities Services - Cr £11k

Children's Social Care Staffing 

10. Health Integration Division - Cr £115k

11. Strategic & Business Support Service - Cr £212k

12. Public Health - Dr £53k

Safeguarding & Care Planning - Dr 1,252k

Public Law Outline - Court Ordered Care Proceedings - Dr £879k

The service outturned with a minor underspend on staffing of £7k

The CWD budget underspent by £11k for the year. Direct payments overspent by £81k whilst the short breaks 

service underspent by £67k. There was also an underspend on staffing of £35k mainly due to a vacancy in the 

integrated children's disability service, an overspend of £8k on interpreting and translation costs and an overspend of 

£2k on subscriptions.

Analysis of the staffing budgets across the whole of Children's Social Care has identified overspends across most of 

the teams, totalling £1.122m. The majority of the overspend relates to the use of locum staff, where it has not been 

possible to recruit permanently to posts. The cost of these workers is higher than permanent staff costs and numbers 

employed have been as high as 80 during the year. A HR strategy is in place to address this.

The Health Integration Division was newly formed in 2016/17 as a result of the Commissioning restructure and 

includes the budgets for Information and Early Intervention, Carers, Better Care Fund (BCF), NHS Support for Social 

Care and the Health Integration Programme Team.

The total underspend for the Division is £548k.  Of this, £433k relates to social care services protected by BCF 

funding and referred to at ref 6 above.  

Costs in relation to care proceedings outturned at £879k above the budget provision of £542k. This is a reduction 

of £41k from the figure reported for December. The main area of overspend is in community based and residential 

based parenting assessments which are largely outside the control of the council.

Other - Dr £97k

Section 17 preventative payments and payments to assist clients overspent by £66k and interpreting and 

translation costs by £31k.

Staffing - Dr £276k

See note below relating to staffing budgets across the Division.

Early Intervention and Family Support  - Cr £7k

The remaining underspend of £115k relates to vacancies in the Programme Team and one off funding identified to 

contribute to the cost of the team (Cr £124k in total) and a small variation on the controllable element of the Better 

Care Fund (Dr £9k) which is offset by an equivalent underspend on non-controllable costs charged to BCF.

There was an underspend of £132k on the revenue element of the 2016/17 Better Care Fund and it is requested that 

this is carried forward for spending in future years under the pooled budget arrangement with Bromley CCG.  In 

addition, a further £25k brought forward from 2015/16 is requested to be carried forward for the GoodGym scheme.

Strategic & Business Support Services Division returned to ECHS Department from Corporate Services part way 

through 2016/17.  The budgets for the entire year are reported here.

The underspend of £212k has arisen from variations across a number of budget heads including staffing, centrally 

controlled departmental running expenses (including printing, stationery, staff advertising, equipment and DBS 

checks), training and income.

This overspend is offset by an equivalent underspend on the non-controllable costs charged to the Public Health 

Grant.

25 Page 59



13. Environmental Services Department - Housing Improvement - Dr £16k

Waiver of Financial Regulations:

Virements Approved to date under Director's Delegated Powers

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules state that where the value of a contract exceeds £50k and is to be exempt 

from the normal requirement to obtain competitive quotations, the Chief Officer has to obtain the agreement of the 

Director of Resources and Finance Director and (where over £100,000) approval of the Portfolio Holder, and report 

use of this exemption to Audit Sub-Committee bi-annually.

Since the last report to the Executive there were 17 waivers agreed for care placements in both adults 

and children's social care services over £50k but less than £100k and 10 waivers agreed for over £100k. 

The waivers quoted relate to the annual cost of the placements, although it should be noted that some of 

these are short term placements where the final cost can be below these amounts.

Details of virements actioned by Chief Officers under delegated authority under the Financial Regulations "Scheme 

of Virement" will be included in financial monitoring reports to the Portfolio Holder.

Since the last report to the Executive there have been the following virements:  £13k transferred to Commissioning to 

part fund a post in relation to the Adult Transport function; £4k transferred to Corporate Services for additional 

Liberata costs relating to service changes required in relation to financial reviews of service users.

There is a shortfall of income relating to renovation grant agency fees of £22k. This is due to a delay in Occupation 

Therapy (OT) assessments and referrals for work to be carried out, which has had a corresponding effect on the 

fees earned by the Housing Improvement team . A review of OT working practices has increased the throughput on 

grants claims and in addition several larger fee earning works were completed towards the end of the financial year, 

resulting in the variation compared to the deficit last reported.  Other net underspends across the service total £6k.        

There were no waivers agreed for general contracts above £50k since the last report.

26 Page 60



APPENDIX 2BEducation Portfolio Budget Monitoring Summary

2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 Variation Notes Variation Full Year

Actuals Service Areas Original Final Provisional Last Effect

Budget Approved Outturn Reported

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

EDUCATION CARE & HEALTH SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Education Division

233Cr       Adult Education Centres   288Cr             288Cr            141Cr         147         1 83             0               

231         Alternative Education and Welfare Service 250 254 258 4              8               0               

264         Schools and Early Years Commissioning & QA 391 401 432 31            2 140           0               

5,141      SEN and Inclusion 4,869 5,090 5,481 391         3 512           755           

207         Strategic Place Planning 205 253 211 42Cr         0               0               

15Cr         Workforce Development & Governor Services 18 19 26 7              0               0               

1,650Cr    Education Services Grant   1,728Cr          1,274Cr         1,274Cr      0              4 471           0               

Education Funds Held in Contingency 0 0 0              4 471Cr        0               

1,395Cr    Schools Budgets   1,219Cr          1,222Cr         1,135Cr      87            5 0               0               

1,757      Bromley Youth Support Programme 1,438            1,536 1,516 20Cr         6 96Cr          0               

175         Other Strategic Functions 179 261 246 15Cr         0               0               

4,482      4,115            5,030          5,620          590         647           755           

Children's Social Care

1,872      Early Intervention Services 1,130            1,137          438             699Cr       7 572Cr        0               

1,872      1,130            1,137          438             699Cr       572Cr        0               

6,354      TOTAL CONTROLLABLE FOR EDUCATION 5,245            6,167          6,058          109Cr       75             755           

11,061    Total Non-Controllable 4,198            8,602Cr        8,602Cr       0              0               0               

3,396      Total Excluded Recharges 3,240            3,067          3,067          0              0               0               

20,811    TOTAL EDUCATION PORTFOLIO 12,683          632              523             109Cr       75             755           

Memorandum Item

Sold Services

62Cr         Education Psychology Service (RSG Funded) 18Cr              18Cr             134Cr          116Cr       170Cr        0               

43Cr         Education Welfare Service (RSG Funded) 33Cr              32Cr             16Cr            16            19             0               

33Cr         Workforce Development (DSG/RSG Funded) 11Cr              11Cr             11               22            8 0               0               

0              Governor Services (DSG/RSG Funded) 6Cr                6Cr               3                 9              0               0               

66Cr          Community Vision Nursery (RSG Funded) 0                   0                  16               16            113           16             

23Cr          Blenheim Nursery (RSG Funded) 0                   3                  82               79            54             79             

0              Business Partnerships (RSG Funded) 0                   0                  0              0               0               

Total Sold Services 68Cr              64Cr             38Cr            26            16             95             

Reconciliation of Latest Approved Budget £'000

Original Budget 2016/17 12,683        

SEN Implementation Grant 2015/16

- expenditure 28                

- income 28Cr             

YOS Service Strategy Review 97                

SEN Implementation Grant 2016/17

- expenditure 180              

- income 180Cr           

SEN Regional Lead Grant 2016/17

- expenditure 28                

- income 28Cr             

High Needs Strategic Planning Fund 2016/17

- expenditure 140              

- income 140Cr           

SEN Regional Lead Grant 2015/16 (Carried Forward)

- expenditure 15                

- income 15Cr             

SEN Implementation Grant 2015/16

- expenditure 80                

- income 80Cr             

Consultancy Support (Place Planning & Schools) 40                

Transfer of SEN Transport staffing post 20                

12                

LSSG - Extended Rights to Free Travel Grant 15Cr             

Transfer of Education Transport Staff to SEN 47                

ESG Contingency 454              

Merit Awards 38                

Memorandum Items

Capital Charges 14,030Cr      

Insurance 6                  

Repairs & Maintenance 11Cr             

IAS19 (FRS17) 1,236          

Excluded Recharges 55                

Latest Approved Budget for 2016/17 632              

 Transfer of staff as part of the Commissioning   

Restructure 

27 Page 61



2. Schools and Early Years Commissioning & QA - Dr £31k

The Education Psychologists Trading Account has collected income over its budget by £116k this year.  This is offset by an overspend of 

£40k in the Education Psychologists to do with the schools in Bromley.  This results in a net underspend of £76k.

3. SEN and Inclusion - Dr £391k

To help authorities with the amount of work required to convert existing Statements of SEN to the new Education Health and Care (EHC) 

plans, and to implement the changes to working practices required, the Department for Education has created the SEN Implementation 

(New Burdens) Grant.  LBB's allocation of this grant for 2016/17 is £201k, of which £180k was approved for drawdown by Executive in 

March 2016, in addition to the carry forward of £108k of the 2015/16 grant that was not used.

There is an overall variance on the Schools Budget this year on controllable expenditure of £87k.  This is offset by an underspend of £87k 

in the non-controllable spend due to lower overheads being charged to the DSG related budgets. 

Other variations total a net underspend of £33k and are mainly associated with staffing.

The in-year underspend is broken down as follows:-

Additionally the Department for Education has provided LBB with a SEND Regional Lead Grant in 2016/17 that is used in partnership with 

Enfield to support the role of regional lead for the implementation of the Special Educational Needs reforms.  LBB's allocation of this grant 

for 2016/17 is £28k, along with a  carry forward of £15k of the 2015/16 grant that was not used.

Although the travel training programme continues with success and has contributed to improved outcomes and helps address annual 

volume increases, SEN transport has overspent its budget by £504k.  This has reduced since the last report as income came in higher 

than forecast.  A significant part of this relates to the cost of the new contracts which commenced on 01/09/2015 with a revised pricing 

framework which, with no provision for inflation over the life of the contracts, are assumed to have front-loaded inflationary increases.  The 

remainder of the overspend is due to the increased number of routes required during the year and the complexity of the clients using them 

(i.e. the need to have assistants on the transport due to the young age of the client).

Bulge classes have overspent by £150k for this financial year.   Additionally there has been an overspend of by £229k on modular 

classroom rentals during the year.  

Central Government pay Councils the Extended Rights to Free Travel grant (funding for children to get to school). This has resulted in a 

£4k underspend as the budget was less than the actual income we are now receiving.

During the year the remaining balance for the costs of the refurbishment of Beacon House to allow it to be used for a school has been 

contributed to the capital project (£1,572k).

The Primary Support Team is in the process of being re-organised and a number of posts were kept vacant during the year which has 

resulted in an underspend of £58k. 

Free Early Years Education has underspent by £651k this year.  This is due to a £141k underspend for the 2 year old age group and an 

underspend £510k for the year in the 3 & 4 years age group.

REASONS FOR VARIATIONS

4. Education Services Grant - Dr £0k

The Education Services Grant (ESG) allocation for 2016/17 came in £454k less than budget.  The ESG allocation is re-calculated on a 

quarterly basis, so the grant reduces in-year as schools convert to academies.  8 Schools converted during the year.  The full year effect of 

these conversions is £552k.  The shortfall will be drawn-down from contingency to cover this, so no variation is being reported.

In 2016/17 there has been an in-year underspend of £226k.  £3.7m was carried forward in 2016/17 and has been partly offset by planned 

one off growth of £2.3m.  This means the Council will carry forward £1.6m DSG into 2017/18.

5. Schools Budgets  - Dr £87k

Expenditure on Schools is funded through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) provided by the Department for Education (DfE). DSG is 

ring fenced and can only be applied to meet qualifying expenditure in the Schools Budget. Any overspend or underspend must be carried 

forward to the following year.

The two in-house nurseries have over spent by £95k. This has been caused by under collection of recharge income from Children's Social 

Care (CSC).  This overspend is offset by an underspend in CSC, and therefore has a £0 effect across the council.  The nurseries have 

offset this over spend by collecting additional income for the places that are not being used by CSC.

The overspends in the nurseries has been offset by underspends of £64k in the remaining parts of this area.  These underspends are, in 

the main, made up of extra income collected from schools (£26k) and underspends in staffing costs (of 20k).

1. Adult Education Centres - Dr £147k

The restructure that took place in Adult Education at the start of the Academic year has now started to settle down and is producing an 

overspend of £147k for this year.  The pressure is being caused by a reduction in income (mainly from the SFA grant), the continued costs 

of Business Rates for the now empty Widmore Centre and unexpected payments to staff for Lieu of notice.  These pressures have been 

partially offset by under spending in running costs.

As part of the restructuring of the Adult Education Service, they vacated the Widmore, one of the properties they occupied.  This property 

was to be used by the EFA to provide extra school places in Bromley.  As yet this sale has not gone through.  The property has now 

passed its exemption period and Business Rates totalling £44k have been paid for 2016/17 that was not budgeted for.  This pressure is 

likely to be on-going until the property is taken over by the EFA.

A report recently went to the Commissioning Board relating to the two in-house nurseries within this area.  The Commissioning Board has 

requested a management action plan be drawn up to put the nurseries on a break even position going forward.  As the management action 

is likely to involve the reorganisation of the service, it is likely that the management action plan will not be fully implemented until the new 

financial Year.

28 Page 62



Variations

£'000

Bulge Classes 150

Modular classroom rentals 229

Free Early Education - 2 year olds   141Cr           

Free Early Education - 3 & 4 year olds   510Cr           

Primary Support Team   58Cr             

FAP Payments 117

Standards Fund Grant   745Cr           

Beacon House 1,572

Other Small Balances   5Cr               

SEN:

 - Placements   482Cr           

 - Support in FE colleges   37Cr             

 - Home & Hospital 80

 - SIPS   12Cr             

 - Pupil Support Services   61Cr             

 - High Needs Pre-school Service   41Cr             

 - Other Statemented   194Cr           

 - Disability Services   88Cr             

  226Cr           

Variations

£'000

Youth Services 13

Youth Offending Team   33Cr             

  20Cr             

7. Early Intervention Services - Cr £699k

Variations

£'000

Bromley Children's Project   687Cr           

Information Advice and Support Service   12Cr             

  699Cr           

8. Sold Services (net budgets)

Waiver of Financial Regulations

Virements Approved to date under Director's Delegated Powers

Services sold to schools are separately identified in this report to provide clarity in terms of what is being provided. These accounts are 

shown as memorandum items as the figures are included in the appropriate Service Area in the main report. 

Other minor variations total a net underspend of £5k.

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules state that where the value of a contract exceeds £50k and is to be exempted from the normal 

requirement to obtain competitive quotations, the Chief Officer has to obtain the agreement of the Director of Resources and Finance 

Director and (where over £100k) approval of the Portfolio Holder, and report use of this exemption to Audit Sub committee bi-annually. 

Since the last report to the Executive, four waivers have been actioned and they all have an annual value range of £123k to £424k each.

Details of virements actioned by Chief Officers under delegated authority under the Financial Regulations "Scheme of Virement" will be 

included in financial monitoring reports to the Portfolio Holder. Since the last report to Executive, three virements have been actioned.  

These relate to adjustments to realign the SEN budgets and the re-alignment of overhead budgets.

The £20k underspend is derived from Youth Services and the YOT and are made up of various underspends and overspends in staffing 

and running costs.

Bromley Children's Project variance is due to a underspends in staffing of £84k due to in year recruitment, reduced running costs and 

additional income of £103k and a recharge from Public Health to support the Children Centres of £500k.

6. Bromley Youth Support Programme - Cr £20k

SEN has underspent by £835k.  There are many factors that make up this figure including:- SEN placements has underspent by a total of 

£482k, mainly due to fewer placements being made in independent boarding schools partially offset by increases in day placements.  

There has also been underspends on pre-school services due to staffing vacancies and in other statemented services due to an 

underspend in a contract.  This has been partially offset by the Home and Hospital service which has seen an increase in Agency tutors. 

The FAP budget has overspent by £117k due to a prior year payment being paid in the current year for the Secondary FAP.

Standards Fund Grant has been allocated to DSG amounting to £745k and has been used to offset current expenditure.

Information Advice and Support Service underspend is due to in year recruitment.

29 Page 63



APPENDIX 2CEnvironment Portfolio Budget Monitoring Summary

2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 Variation Notes Variation Full Year

Actuals Service Areas Original Final Provisional Last Effect

Budget Approved Outturn Reported

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

ENVIRONMENT PORTFOLIO

Street Scene & Green Spaces

5,445 Parks and Green Spaces 5,109 5,091 5,177 86            1 95            0              

417 Street Regulation and Enforcement incl markets 386 369 290 79Cr         2 120Cr       0              

17,599 Waste Services 17,206 17,510 17,009 501Cr       3 498Cr       0              

3,891 Street Environment 4,181 4,183 4,206 23            4 51            0              

808 Management and Contract Support 781 792 804 12            5 29            0              

629 Transport Operations and Depot Management 811 710 632 78Cr         6 66Cr         0              

280 Trees 683 723 877 154          7 90            0              

29,069 29,157 29,378 28,995 Cr  383 Cr  419

Parking Services

Cr  7,455 Parking Cr  7,041 Cr  7,080 Cr  7,425 345Cr       8-14 332Cr       0              

Cr  7,455 Cr  7,041 Cr  7,080 Cr  7,425 345Cr       332Cr       0              

Transport &  Highways

112 Traffic & Road Safety 284 294 245 49Cr         15 28Cr         0              

10,035 Highways (including London Permit Scheme) 8,803 9,056 8,971 85Cr         16 43Cr         0              

10,147 9,087 9,350 9,216 134Cr       71Cr         0              

31,761 TOTAL CONTROLLABLE 31,203 31,648 30,786 Cr  862 822Cr       0              

8,075 TOTAL NON-CONTROLLABLE 5,299 8,165 8,165 0              165Cr       0              

2,429 TOTAL EXCLUDED RECHARGES 2,041 2,394 2,394 0              0              0              

42,265 PORTFOLIO TOTAL 38,543 42,207 41,345 862Cr       987Cr       0              

Reconciliation of Latest Approved Budget £'000

Original Budget 2016/17 38,543

Transfer of budget for staffing to SEN Cr  20

WEEE Grant Income Cr  13

WEEE Grant Expenditure 13

Drainage Water Grant Income Cr  69

Drainage Water Grant Expenditure 69

Lead Local Flood grant 213

Repairs and Maintenance 135

Salary budget for mail delivery to corporate for TFM contract Cr  34

Transfer of budget for SEN transport client monitoring staff to Education Cr  47

Contribution from central contingency for Waste 4 Fuel site clearance 300

Merit Awards 34

Memorandum Items

Capital Charges 2,351

 Insurance 104

 Rent Income Cr  119

 Repairs & Maintenance Cr  197

 IAS19 (FRS17) 592

 Excluded Recharges 352

Latest Approved Budget for 2016/17 42,207     

30 Page 64



REASONS FOR VARIATIONS

1. Parks and Green Spaces Dr £86k

Summary of variations - Parks & Green Spaces £'000

Safety surface repairs for Playgrounds 45

Playground equipment painting 7

Deed of surrender for Crystal Palace Park café lease 60

Tenants income from CPP Café   16Cr            

Other minor variations   10Cr            
Total variation for Parks & Green Spaces 86

2. Street Regulation and Enforcement incl markets Cr £79k

Summary of variations - Street Regulation & Enforcement incl markets £'000

Recovery of administration costs for dealing with claims re damage to st furniture   11Cr            

Income from rental of space for promotions   15Cr            

Markets running costs   26Cr            

Income from street trading licences and skips   24Cr            

Other minor variations   3Cr              
Total variation for Street Regulation & Enforcement incl markets   79Cr            

3. Waste Services Cr £501k

The reduction in detritus tonnage has resulted in savings of £43k for disposal costs.

Additional costs of £45k have been incurred to repair and replace safety surfaces at various playgrounds and £7k has been spent 

on painting playground equipment. These costs have been funded by projected underspends elsewhere in Street Scene and 

Greenspace. The deed of surrender for the lease of Crystal Palace Park cafe cost £60k which has been partly offset by tenants 

income £16k and other minor variations totalling Cr £10k. The total variation for Parks is an overspend of £86k.

£11k has been received for the recovery of administration costs dealing with claims for repairs to street furniture damaged by car 

accidents and £15k has been received for rental of space for promotions within Bromley Town Centre. 

Costs for the security and setting up of market stalls was £26k lower than budgeted. 

Due to additional street traders being taken on and specialist markets being run, there was surplus income of £15k for Street 

Trading Licences. An increased demand for skip Licences has led to extra income £9k above budget. 

Other net variations total Cr £3k resulting in an overall underspend of £79k. This has been used to partly offset additional costs 

within the Street Environment budget as detailed below.

Disposal tonnages from increased trade waste delivered activity was 841 tonnes above budget resulting in an overspend of 

£122k. This is less than was previously projected as the weighbridge was closed for two weeks during February.

As a direct consequence of the extra tonnage described above, additional income of £136k has been received for trade waste 

delivered to offset the disposal overspend from weighbridge tonnage. 

An extra £82k has been spent disposing of green garden waste tonnage, as there has been an additional 1,815 tonnes compared 

to 2015/16.

For other residual tonnage there is an underspend of £46k. An additional £11k was received for 2015/16 as more tonnage was 

incinerated than estimated at year end.

Within paper recycling income, there is a surplus of £102k as tonnage is 1,278 tonnes above budget, and 1,874 tonnes more that 

was collected in 2015/16.

Across the garden waste collection services, there is an underspend of £190k. An additional £82k has been spent on containers, 

publicity and a new tagging system. This has been partly offset by savings of £60k from not using the fifth vehicle as often as 

originally anticipated. Sales of green garden waste stickers have not dropped off as much as in previous years and additional 

income of £26k has been received and there has been a net increase in the number of wheelie bin customers during 2016/17 

resulting in extra income of £186k. The Executive will be asked to carry forward £120k of this underspend to contribute towards 

the system development costs of linking the CRM GGW database to the debt management system to enable payments to be 

made by direct debits.

The Coney Hill contract has underspent by £30k.

There is an underspend of £82k for the waste collection contract. This is made up of £23k relating to a decrease in the number of 

special collections, £50k for emptying recycling banks and fly tipping costs, and other minor underspends totalling £9k.

There are outstanding defaults of £120k owed for the waste collection contract.

An extra £51k has been spent on waste containers. This was partly due to improvements to the on street recycling network in 

order to increase capacity and to meet the growth in demand for household recycling and bulk containers. 

Other minor variations across income and operational expenses is Cr £2k.

Income from recycling metals is below budget by £14k, mainly due to the reduction in the market price. This is partly offset by 

extra income from textiles of £8k.

31 Page 65



Summary of overall variations within Waste Services £'000

Waste disposal tonnages - other residual tonnage   57Cr            

Waste disposal tonnages - Trade Waste Delivered 122

Waste disposal tonnages - Green Garden Waste 82

Additional trade waste delivered income   136Cr          

Paper recycling income   102Cr          

Disposal of detritus tonnage   43Cr            

Green Garden Waste Services   190Cr          

Coney Hill   30Cr            

Waste collection contract   82Cr            

Other minor variations across income & operational expenses   2Cr              

Defaults for collection service   120Cr          

Other recycling income 6

Purchase of waste containers 51

Total variation for Waste Services   501Cr          

4. Street Environment Dr £23k

Summary of overall variations within Street Environment £'000

Additional litter teams and weed spraying 39

Abandoned vehicles 23

Graffiti Removal   27Cr            

Cleansing contingency   67Cr            

Special scheme (Members initiative for fly-tipping). 67

Other net variations across the service   12Cr            

Total variation for Street Environment 23

5. Management & Contract Support Dr £12k

6. Transport Operations and Depot Management Cr £78k

Summary of variations for Transport Operations & Depot Management £'000

Savings on the mail delivery service   17Cr            

SEN transport client service   29Cr            

Other variations (depot maint, transport & Business Rates)   32Cr            

Total variations within Transport Operations & Depot Management   78Cr            

7. Trees Dr £154k

8. Income from Bus Lane Contraventions Cr £420k

9. Off Street Car Parking Dr £44k

This variance relates to additional net costs of employing temporary staff to undertake commissioning work. 

Additional costs have been incurred for extra weed spraying £31k and litter teams, £8k. These costs have been funded by 

underspends elsewhere in Street Scene and Greenspace. 

The cost of removal of abandoned vehicles has overspent by £23k partly due to the fall in the price of scrap metal. The contractor 

can no longer recover costs from income so charges the full cost to the council. In addition some individuals who would otherwise 

take their vehicle to the scrap merchants for the income are now abandoning them which has led to an increase in numbers. The 

increase in cost is more than offset by an underspend on graffiti removal of £27k.

Although there were plans in place to spend the cleansing contingency budget, delays occurred due to adverse weather which 

meant that the programmes for leafing and deep cleansing for detritus removal slipped. This resulted in an underspend on the 

cleansing contract of £67k. This was used to fund the additional fly tipping costs of £67k instead of drawing down from the 

earmarked reserve set aside for Members' Initiatives. 

Other net variations total Cr £12k, mainly from savings on residual premises costs of the closed public conveniences.

Part year savings have been achieved on the Mail Delivery Service of £17k. Reduced staffing levels required for the SEN 

transport client service has led to an underspend of £29k. 

Other variations total £32k due to underspends on depot maintenance, transport and Business Rates. 

The arboriculture service budget has overspent by £154k due to health and safety remedial works associated with condition 

surveys and extra trees being planted.

The introduction of the automated cameras went live in June, a few months later than anticipated. Based on the number of 

contraventions that occurred up until 31st March 2017, there is a surplus of £388k. This is below previous projections as the 

numbers of contraventions in bus lanes have dropped due to increased compliance and this trend is expected to continue. There 

is also an additional £32k income from PCNs issued in previoius years.

The additional income declared on Bus Lanes of £420k is net of funding the cost of the automated cameras. The carry forward 

sum of £306k was no longer required and has been returned to the central contingency.

There is an overall deficit of £44k for Off Street Parking income. This is  made up of a deficit of £39k at the Hill MSCP, a surplus 

of £19k for Village Way MSCP, a deficit of £44k at the Civic Centre MSCP and a surplus of £20k for other surface car parks. 

Other variations include an overspend on rents of £11k due to a backdated rent review which is offset by underspends on utilities 

totalling £11k. Due to a reduction in usage and rates there is an underspend on credit card commission of £10k. Other minor 

variations total Dr £10k.

32 Page 66



Summary of variations within Off Street Car Parking £'000

Off Street Car Parking income - multi-storey car parks 64

Off Street Car Parking income - other surface car parks   20Cr            

Rents 11

Utilities   11Cr            

Credit card commission   10Cr            

Other net variations 10
Total variations within Off Street Parking 44

10. On Street Car Parking Dr £130k

Summary of variations within On Street Car Parking £'000
Shortfall of income 130
Lower airtime costs   32Cr            

Extra costs of coinage changes to equipment 26

Other minor variations 6

Total variations within On Street Parking 130

11. Car Parking Enforcement Cr £12k

Summary of variations within Car Parking Enforcement £'000

PCNs issued by wardens 17

Budgets not required for additional CEOs etc   41Cr            

PCNs issued by Mobile (car) cameras   17Cr            

PCNs issued by automatic cameras at schools 26

PCNs issued by static cameras   9Cr              

CCTV Salaries 53

Enforcement equipment replacement budget   30Cr            

Other minor variations   11Cr            

Total variations within Car Parking Enforcement   12Cr            

12. Parking Shared Service Cr £58k

13. Permit  Parking Cr £23k

14. Disabled Parking Cr £6k

Delays in employing the 4 additional CEOs on street due to difficulties in staff recruitment has led to a net underspend on staffing 

of £41k.

Overall there is a net deficit of around £130k for On Street Parking. A number of sites have been identified where additional Pay 

and Display parking bays can be installed borough wide. This includes shopping parades to assist the turnover of parking on 

streets and roads in close proximity to railway stations, where unrestricted parking is currently creating parking issues and 

displacement. As agreed, if all sites were progressed as proposed, it is likely to generate an approximate £350k per annum. Each 

proposal has been and will be subject to consultation with Ward Members and the directly affected residents/traders, so full 

implementation has not been possible by 1st April 2016. Taking into account the income from these new spaces introduced 

during 2016/17, there is a shortfall of On Street Parking income of £130k in 2016/17.  The increase in income since last reported 

reflects the net effect of new spaces which have become operational.

Lower airtime costs for the P&D machines have resulted in an underspend of £32k.

Due to the introduction of new £1 coins and £5 polymer notes, the parking income machines have been upgraded at a cost of 

£78k. This has been funded from the Equipment replacement budget of £52k. The remaining £26k has been funded from a 

saving on the Enforcement Equipment budget of £26k shown below. These machines are for both On Street and Off Street 

parking. Other minor variations total Dr £6k.

Less income than anticipated was received (£17k) for PCNs issued by CEOs in previous financial years. 

Due to delays in introducing the automated cameras, which were not fully operational until July 2016, additional net income of £7k 

was received for PCNs issued using the mobile cars and an extra £10k was received for PCNs issued in previous years. 

Automatic cameras have been set up outside schools and since compliance has increased at these locations there is a deficit in 

income of Dr £26k compared to expected levels.  This has been offset by additional income of £9k for tickets issued by static 

cameras in previous years.  

CCTV staff were given notice mid-June 2016 and the additional cost of their salaries is £53k. It should be noted that the CCTV 

staff were also responsible for monitoring the bus lanes prior to the introduction of the re-deployable bus lane cameras. Other 

minor variations total Cr £11k.

In order to meet the costs of upgrading the parking income machines, a saving of £30k from the enforcement equipment budget 

has been used. 

The total variation for the Parking Shared Service is an underspend of £58k mainly due to vacant posts.

Permit parking shows additional income of £11k due to an increase in visitor permits issued. In addition there is a minor 

underspend on staffing and running expenses of £12k. 

The variation of Cr £6k is made up of an underspend of £12k for on issuing/renewal of  Blue Badges partly offset by additional net 

costs of £6k for Blue Badge prosecutions for misuse.

33 Page 67



Summary of overall variations within Parking: £'000

Bus Routes Enforcement   420Cr          

Off Street Car Parking 44

On Street Car Parking 130

Car Parking Enforcement   12Cr            

Parking Shared Service   58Cr            

Permit Parking   23Cr            

Disabled Parking   6Cr              

Total variation for Parking   345Cr          

15. Traffic and Road Safety Cr £49k

16. Highways (Including London Permit Scheme) Cr £85k

Budget Outturn Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Planned maintenance for carriageway and footway Reconstruction 2,673 3,228 555

Reactive maintenance for carriageways and footways 1,787 1,324   463Cr       

4,460 4,552 92

Budget Outturn Variance
£'000 £'000 £'000

164 115   49Cr         

26 21   5Cr           

111 102   9Cr           

108 75   33Cr         

409 313   96Cr         

Summary of  Variations - Highways (Incl London Permit Scheme) £'000

Income   11Cr            

Winter service   96Cr            

Staff vacancies   60Cr            

Net overspend on planned highway & footway expenditure 92

Snow friends materials   29Cr            

Other minor variations 19

Total Projected variations for Highways (Incl London Permit Scheme)   85Cr            

Waiver of Financial Regulations:

Virements Approved to date under Director's Delegated Powers

Details of virements actioned by Chief Officers under delegated authority under the Financial Regulations "Scheme of Virement" 

will be included in financial monitoring reports to the Portfolio Holder.  Since the last report to Executive, no virements have been 

actioned. 

There is a small surplus of income totalling £11k.

There is an underspend of Cr £43k on TfL funded salaries due to vacancies which is offset by a corresponding reduction in capital 

salary recharges of £43k. Although there is no overall effect on revenue, it has increased the capital funding available for 

implementation of TfL funded schemes.

Income from road closure licences is £21k above budget due to an increase in applications. There is an underspend of £18k on 

the school crossing patrol contract due to defaults issued through non-attendance.

Other variations total Cr £10k, mainly due to vacancies and a reduction in car allowances.

As a result of the planned change to reduce expenditure on expensive reactive works there was increased investment on long 

term cost effective permanent repairs through the planned maintenance programme as summarised in the table below.

Vehicle / plant maintenance & repairs

Standby / training / overtime and other costs

Winter Service Totals

Due to the mild winter, the salt budget for snow friends has underspent by £29k.

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules state that where the value of a contract exceeds £50k and is to be exempted from the 

normal requirement to obtain competitive quotations, the Chief Officer has to obtain the agreement of the Director of Resources 

and Finance Director and (where over £100,000) approval of the Portfolio Holder, and report use of this exemption to Audit Sub 

committee bi-annually. Since the last report to the Executive, no waivers for contract values over £50k has been actioned.

In year staff vacancies have led to an underspend of £60k.

The winter service budgets are £96k underspent, essentially due to the relatively mild winter and lack of snowfall. The table below 

gives a breakdown of winter service budgets, final expenditure, and subsequent variances: -

Salt, gritting & snow clearance

Met Office Costs

34 Page 68



APPENDIX 2D

Public Protection & Safety Budget Monitoring Summary

2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 Variation Notes Variation Full Year

Actuals Service Areas Original Final Provisional Last Effect

Budget Approved Outturn Reported

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Public Protection

172        Community Safety 126           126            108            18Cr         1 5Cr            0              

70          Emergency Planning 78             78              77              1Cr           2 0              0              

333        Mortuary & Coroners Service 355           395            508            113         3 76            50            

1,464     Public Protection 1,389        1,312         1,187         125Cr       4 62Cr          0              

2,039     TOTAL CONTROLLABLE 1,948        1,911         1,880         31Cr        9              50            

426        TOTAL NON CONTROLLABLE 6               270            270            0             0              0              

29          TOTAL EXCLUDED RECHARGES 159           262            262            0             0              0              

2,494     PORTFOLIO TOTAL 2,113        2,443         2,412         31Cr        9              50            

Reconciliation of Latest Approved Budget £'000

Original Budget 2016/17 2,113         

Community Safety DCLG Grant  year 2 61Cr           

Community Safety DCLG Grant  year 2 expenditure 61              

Salary budget to Quality Assurance - ECHS 30Cr           

Salary budget for asbestos works to corporate (TFM contract) 19Cr           

Merit Awards 12              

Memorandum Items

 Capital Charges 94              

 Insurance 4Cr             

 Rent Income 0                

 Repairs & Maintenance 0                

 IAS19 (FRS17) 174            

 Excluded Recharges 103            

Latest Approved Budget for 2016/17 2,443         

35 Page 69



1. Community Safety Cr £18k

2. Emergency Planning Cr £1k.

3. Mortuary and Coroners Service Dr £113k

4. Public Protection Cr £125k

Summary of variations:     £'000

Staffing related costs   46Cr       

CCTV transport costs   15Cr       

Income from licences   33Cr       

Income from licences for Homes in multiple occupation   21Cr       

Uniform system upgrade 22

Other net variations   32Cr       

Total variations   125Cr     

Waiver of Financial Regulations:

Virements Approved to date under Director's Delegated Powers

Staffing costs are £46k below budget due to vacancies during the year.

REASONS FOR VARIATIONS 

There are minor net underspends across staffing £8k, car allowances £5k and project expenses £5k.

There are minor variations across the service totalling Cr £1k.

There is an underspend on Mortuary costs of £66k mainly due to the new contract for the Mortuary at the 

Princess Royal University Hospital where the basic charges are currently lower than the previous contract and a 

lower activity level during the year. 

On the Coroners Service there is a net overspend of £179k based on cost information provided by London 

Borough of Croydon who administer the Coroners Service Consortium made up of four local authorities. This is 

due to a number of issues which have come to light in recent months. The Davis House, Croydon, 

refurbishment cost for housing the Coroner's court has escalated without prior agreement by the Consortium. 

The refurbishment project is being directly managed by Croydon. The revenue costs for 2016/17 have also 

increased considerably and there are backdated additional costs for 2015/16. Further information has been 

requested from Croydon.

Details of virements actioned by Chief Officers under delegated authority under the Financial Regulations 

"Scheme of Virement" will be included in financial monitoring reports to the Portfolio Holder.  Since the last 

report to Executive, no virements have been actioned.

Transport costs are £15k lower as a result of the purchase of the CCTV vehicles towards the end of the last 

financial year.

Additional income has been received for licence fees of £33k and an extra £21k has been received for licences 

relating to Homes in Multiple Occupation..

The Uniform system required updating which cost Dr £22k. These costs included upgrade costs of the Idox 

system, an upfront one-off licence fee, and the BT contract costs.

Other net variations total Cr £32k mainly within supplies and services and miscellaneous income.

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules state that where the value of a contract exceeds £50k and is to be 

exempted from the normal requirement to obtain competitive quotations, the Chief Officer has to obtain the 

agreement of the Director of Resources and Finance Director and (where over £100,000) approval of the 

Portfolio Holder, and report use of this exemption to Audit Sub committee bi-annually. Since the last report to 

the Executive, the following waiver has been actioned:

£371k cumulative contract value for CCTV installation works.  Variation of £31k one-off works to enable new 

cameras to be commissioned. 

36 Page 70



APPENDIX 2E

Renewal and Recreation Budget Monitoring Summary

2015/16 Division 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 Variation Notes Variation Full Year

Actuals Service Areas Original Final Provisional Last Effect

Budget Approved Outturn Reported

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

R&R PORTFOLIO

Planning

19Cr         Building Control 69           69              3Cr             72Cr         1 55Cr           0              

168Cr       Land Charges 131Cr       131Cr         144Cr         13Cr         2 7Cr             0              

589         Planning 671         645            812           167         3 35             0              

1,568      Renewal 1,888      1,931         1,564        367Cr       4 300Cr         0              

1,970      2,497      2,514         2,229        285Cr      327Cr        0              

Recreation

2,192      Culture 1,710      1,698         1,732        34           5 16             0              

4,610      Libraries 4,495      4,748         4,737        11Cr         6 7Cr             0              

263         Town Centre Management & Business Support 251         293            263           30Cr         7 35Cr           0              

7,065      6,456      6,739         6,732        7Cr          26Cr          0              

9,035      Total Controllable R&R Portfolio 8,953      9,253         8,961        292Cr      353Cr        0              

13,572Cr  TOTAL NON CONTROLLABLE 2,353      5,855         5,855        0             35Cr           0              

2,281      TOTAL EXCLUDED RECHARGES 1,958      2,088         2,088        0             0               0              

2,256Cr   PORTFOLIO TOTAL 13,264    17,196       16,904      292Cr      388Cr        0              

Reconciliation of Latest Approved Budget £'000

Original budget 2016/17 13,264       

Local Implementation Plan 47

Biggin Hill Memorial Museum 47

Biggin Hill  Noise Action Plan 55

New Home Bonus expenditure for Regeneration 182

New Home Bonus expenditure for TCM 42

Transfer Renwal budget to Commissioning   62Cr           

Salary from Culture to Commissioning   58Cr           

Drawdown from Central Contingency (Libraries saving) 250

Merit Awards 17

Memorandum Items

Capital Charges 3,143

Insurance   258Cr         

Rent Income   28Cr           

Repairs & Maintenance 45

IAS19 (FRS17) 599

Excluded Recharges   89Cr           

Latest Approved Budget for 2016/17 17,196       

37 Page 71



1. Building Control  Cr £72k

2. Land Charges Cr £13k

3. Planning Dr £167k

Summary of variations within Planning: £'000

Surplus income from non-major applications   146Cr          

Surplus income from major applications   16Cr            

Surplus pre-application income   52Cr            

Surplus income from street re-naming   32Cr            

Other miscellaneous income   38Cr            

Additional temporary planning staff 102

Additional temporary planning enforcement staff 32

Provision for potential CIL monies owed 171

Appeal costs 65
Consultants costs 78
Other minor variations 3

Total variation for planning 167

4. Renewal Cr £367k

For major applications, £316k was received in 2016/17 which was £16k above budget. Actual income was  £7k less than that 

received for 2015/16.

REASONS FOR VARIATIONS

Within the chargeable account for Building Control, there was an income deficit of £82k. This was more than offset by an 

underspend within salaries of £142k arising from reduced hours being worked and vacancies. In accordance with Building 

Account Regulations, the net surplus for 2016/17 of £52k has been carried forward into 2017/18 via the earmarked reserve for 

the Building Control Charging Account. The cumulative balance on this account is therefore now £182k, taking into consideration 

the opening balance of £130k at the start of 2016/17.

Within the non-chargeable service, as a result of delays in appointing to vacant posts, there was an underspend of £65k on 

staffing and a minor overspend of £1k on supplies and services.

There was an underspend of £13k mainly due to vacant posts.

Income from non-major planning applications was £146k above budget for 2016/17.  For information, actual income received in 

2016/17 was £62k higher than for the previous year, largely due to improving economic conditions.

Surplus income £52k was achieved from pre-application meetings due to higher than budgeted activity levels. For information, 

this was £2k more than the income received in 2015/16.

Additional income of Cr £32k was achieved within the street naming & numbering service, which was £2k less than that received 

in the previous year.

Other income was £38k above budget, mainly from the administration top-slice from the CIL monies collected. These monies are 

used to fund the administration and monitoring of CIL applications.

Additional staffing costs of £134k have been incurred. £102k for planning officers and £32k for planning enforcement staff. This 

was due to the recruitment of additional temporary staff in order to assist with the current increase in volumes of planning 

applications and enforcement. These costs have been funded from the additional income.

On average an amount of £2m per annum is invoiced relating to developments with CIL liability within Bromley, on behalf of the 

Mayor of London. 4% of which is retained to meet the costs of the administration of the CIL. A limited number of cases not 

originally identified as CIL liable have commenced construction during the last two years, affecting their eligibility to claim 

exemption to the Levy. Therefore there is the possibility that due to delays, the Council may be required to make payment of up 

to £171k to TfL. A provision of £171k has therefore been set aside from the 2016/17 revenue account.       

As a direct result of losing planning appeals, a net provision has been made for potential costs relating to claims of 

compensation of £65k. 

Additional costs of £78k have been incurred for specialist consultancy advice on planning applications for agriculture and 

ecology matters, as well as for planning appeals including two major appeals for Conquest House and Flamingo Park. These 

costs have been funded from additional income.

Other minor variations across the service total Dr £3k.

The Town Centre Development Works funded by New Homes Bonus are underspent by £306k and therefore a carry forward 

request will be made in order to enable the outstanding works to be completed in 2017/18. Formal GLA approval has been 

obtained for the new profile of spend. 

Of the £47k carried-forward from 2016/17 for the Local Plan Implementation, only £10k was spent, and therefore a further carry-

forward request will be made at year-end so that the costs of the Examination in Public can be met in 2017/18.

Other minor variations across staffing and running expenses total Cr £24k.

38 Page 72



Summary of variations within Renewal: £'000

Underspend related to NHB top slice funded work (c/forward request))   306Cr          

Local Plan Implementation (c/forward request to be made to June Exec)   37Cr            

Other minor variations (staffing & running costs)   24Cr            

Total variation for Renewal   367Cr          

5. Culture Dr £34k

6. Libraries Cr £11k

Summary of variations within Libraries: £'000

Shortfall of income 60

Underspend on staffing   53Cr            

Other variations (transport, premises & running costs)   18Cr            

Total variation for Libraries   11Cr            

7. Town Centre Management & Business Support Cr £30k

Summary of variations within TCM: £'000

Underspend on Orpington TC scheme (carry forward request)   24Cr            

Staffing 11

Additional income   15Cr            

Underspend on supplies and services   2Cr              

Total variation for TCM   30Cr            

Waiver of Financial Regulations:

Virements Approved to date under Director's Delegated Powers

There was an overspend of £34k for Culture. £6k of this was for the increase in inflation of 1.3% for the Mytime grant which was 

above the 0.5% inflation added to the budget.  The balance of £28k relates to an overspend on staffing and equipment.

1) £59k cumulative contract value for internet, magazine and newspaper subscriptions for the library service. 

Extension for one year.         

2) £110k cumulative contract value for audio books, eMagazines and Comics Plus subscriptions for the library 

service.  Extension for one year. 

Details of virements actioned by Chief Officers under delegated authority under the Financial Regulations "Scheme of Virement" 

will be included in financial monitoring reports to the Portfolio Holder.  Since the last report to Executive, no virements have been 

actioned.

Shortfall of income of £60k in total. This comprises of a deficit of £14k on income from library fines, a deficit of £37k from 

activities in libraries, and a deficit of £9k from hall/room lettings. Year on year customers are borrowing fewer items overall which 

is having an adverse effect on income budgets.

There was an overall underspend of £53k for staffing which was due to a combination of strike action and part year vacancies.

Other minor variations across the service total Cr £18k.

Following the change of focus of the regeneration plan and the change in contractor to Cushman and Wakefield, there was an 

underspend of Cr £24k on the Orpington town centre scheme which was funded from the New Homes Bonus. A request will be 

submitted to the Executive to carry forward this amount in order to complete the specific projects. The GLA has agreed the 

extension of the projects. 

There was an overspend of £11k on staffing due to the delay in the deletion of the Town Centre Management post. This was 

more than offset by additional income of £15k received for promotional space and a net underspend of £2k on supplies and 

services.

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules state that where the value of a contract exceeds £50k and is to be exempted from the 

normal requirement to obtain competitive quotations, the Chief Officer has to obtain the agreement of the Director of Resources 

and Finance Director and (where over £100,000) approval of the Portfolio Holder, and report use of this exemption to Audit Sub 

committee bi-annually. Since the last report to the Executive, the following waivers have been actioned:

39 Page 73



APPENDIX 2F

Resources Portfolio Budget Monitoring Summary

2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 Variation Notes Variation Full Year

Actuals Original Final Provisional Last Effect

Budget Approved Outturn   Reported  

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

FINANCIAL SERVICES DIVISION

Financial Services & Procurement

200          Director of Finance & Other 207          457             456            1Cr             0                0                

6,339       Exchequer - Revenue & Benefits 6,729       6,729          6,641         88Cr           1 32              0                

1,500       Exchequer - Payments & Income 1,560       1,571          1,545         26Cr           2 16Cr           0                

602          Financial Accounting 588          647             606            41Cr           3 20Cr           0                

1,387       Management Accounting 1,520       1,489          1,423         66Cr           4 49Cr           0                

733          Audit 664          672             632            40Cr           5 26Cr           0                

10,761     Total Financial Services Division 11,268     11,565        11,303       262Cr         79Cr           0                

CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION

4,453       Information Systems & Telephony 4,369       4,425          4,375         50Cr           6 67Cr           0                

1,027       Customer Services (inc. Bromley Knowledge) 1,007       1,078          1,078         0                2                0                

Legal Services & Democracy

323          Electoral 319          319             320            1                7 0                0                

1,371       Democratic Services 1,397       1,397          1,369         28Cr           8 21Cr           0                

104Cr        Registration of Births, Deaths & Marriages 95Cr         92Cr            123Cr          31Cr           9 5Cr             0                

1,564       Legal Services 1,602       1,725          1,776         51              10 20              0                

168          Management and Other  (Corporate Services) 152          153             169            16              11 18              0                

8,802       Total Corporate Services Division 8,751       9,005          8,964         41Cr           53Cr           0                

HR DIVISION

1,501       Human Resources 1,550       1,539          1,523         16Cr           12 19Cr           0                

1,501       Total HR Division 1,550       1,539          1,523         16Cr           19Cr           0                

COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT DIVISION

616          Procurement and Data Management 462          1,005          939            66Cr           13 61Cr           

0              Commissioning 0              1,266          1,245         21Cr           14 47Cr           

0              Debt Management System 0              0                 0                0                15 0                0                

616          Total Commissioning and Procurement Division 462          2,271          2,184         87Cr           108Cr         0                

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DIVISION

205          Comms 177          123             125            2                2                0                

710          Management and Other (C. Exec) 538          720             652            68Cr           16 11Cr           0                

122          Mayoral 131          131             168            37              17 42              0                

1,037       Total Chief Executive's Division 846          974             945            29Cr           33              0                

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SERVICES

DEPARTMENT

Total Facilities Management

2,002       Admin Buildings & Facilities Support 1,949       1,904          1,938         34              18 28              0                

203          Investment & Non-Operational Property 181          211             195            16Cr           19 11Cr           0                

1,001       Strategic & Operational Property Services 1,032       1,160          1,115         45Cr           20 53Cr           0                

0              TFM Client Monitoring Team 0              165             163            2Cr             2Cr             0                

824Cr        Other Rental Income - Other Portfolios 811Cr       811Cr          866Cr          55Cr           21 3                0                

2,018       Repairs & Maintenance (All LBB) 1,929       2,230          2,117         113Cr         22 113Cr         0                

4,400       Total Environment & Community Services Dept 4,280       4,859          4,662         197Cr         148Cr         0                

27,117     Total Controllable Departmental Budgets 27,157     30,213        29,581       632Cr         374Cr         0                

CENTRAL ITEMS

7,526       CDC & Non Distributed Costs (Past Deficit etc.) 7,579       7,579          7,500         79Cr           0                0                

10,994     Concessionary Fares 11,618     11,618        11,600       18Cr           0                0                

45,637     Total Controllable 46,354     49,410        48,681       729Cr         374Cr         0                

40 Page 74



APPENDIX 2F

2015/16 Financial Summary 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 Variation Notes Variation Full Year 

Actual Original Latest Projected Last Effect

Budget Approved Outturn   Reported  

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000

877Cr        Total Non Controllable 959          6,416Cr       6,416Cr       0                0                0                

20,883Cr   Total Excluded Recharges 16,781Cr  19,017Cr     19,017Cr     0                0                0                

1,439Cr      Less: R&M allocated across other Portfolios 1,529Cr    1,411Cr       1,411Cr       0                113            0                

824           Less: Rent allocated across other Portfolios 811          866             866            0                3Cr             0                

23,262     TOTAL 29,814     23,432        22,703       729Cr         264Cr         0                

23,262     TOTAL RESOURCES PORTFOLIO 29,814     23,432        22,703       729Cr         264Cr         0                

Memorandum Item

Sold Services

42            Facilities (Caretaking) Schools Trading Account 6              24               45              21              21              0                

9Cr            Reactive Maintenance Schools Trading Account 12Cr         5                 4Cr              9Cr             7Cr             0                

33            Total Sold Services 6Cr           29               41              12              14              0                

Reconciliation of Final Budget £'000

Original budget 2016/17 29,814        

IT BT Transition Costs 77               

IT upgrade at Anerley Business Centre 30               

Transparency Agenda 14               

Residential Property Acquisitions (SPV) - Advice 291             

Repairs and Maintenance 166             

Debt Management System - grant related expenditure 177             

Debt Management System - grant related income 177Cr          

Electoral IER - grant related expenditure 73               

Electoral IER - grant related income 73Cr            

Contract Register/Summaries Database 50               

Staff Merit Awards 89               

Inflation adjustment 55               

Transfer of Renewal budget from R&R 62               

Transfer of Salary budget from Culture 58               

Transfer of salary budget from PPS 20               

Transfer of salary budget to ECHS 20Cr            

Adjustment for loss of income from Academy transfers 216             

Adjustment for legal employment work 33               

Saving on HR & Finance from school conversions 40Cr            

Transfer of Salary budget from ECHS to IT 13               

Transfer of budget for Asbestos post & Mail Delivery to TFM 53               

Transfer of budget from ECHS for Exchequer 8                 

Transfer of salary budget from ECHS to Commissioning 13               

Drawdown of Staff Merit Award 16/17 119             

Transfer of Staff Merit Award (allocated across portfolio) 152Cr          

Liberata - Financial Review of TPTU's 4                 

Legal counsel cost 50               

Memorandum Items

 Capital Charges 1,562          

 Insurance 2Cr              

 Rent Income - Other Portfolios 55               

 Repairs & Maintenance - Other Portfolios 253             

 IAS19 (FRS17) & Pension Adjustments 8,935Cr       

 Excluded Recharges 524Cr          

Latest Approved Budget for 2016/17 23,432        

41 Page 75



FINANCIAL SERVICES DIVISION

1. Exchequer - Revenues and Benefits Cr £88k

Summary of variations within Exchequer - Revenues & Benefits £000

Collection of income from grants   309Cr        

230

Liberata contract payments   40Cr          

Incentive Scheme (Liberata) 261

  175Cr        

  80Cr          

Other minor variations 25

Total Variation   88Cr         

2. Exchequer - Payments & Income Cr £26k

3. Financial Accounting Cr £41k

4. Management Accounting Cr £66k

5. Audit Cr £40k

CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION

6. ISD Cr £50k

7. Electoral Dr £1k

An additional payment of £261k was made to Liberata as an incentive scheme payment reflecting contractual terms for 

over achieving the Council Tax Collection targets, which effectively resulted in a significantly higher level of income 

received by the Council.

REASONS FOR VARIATIONS

Overall there is a net underspend of £88k for the Revenues and Benefits service. This is made up of the following 

variances: 

Grants of £309k were received from the Department of Work and Pensions and the Department of Communities and 

Local Government. This mainly includes Benefit Caps, New Burdens, and the Fraud and Error Reduction Incentive 

Scheme (FERIS).  

There were additional one-off costs of £230k for the purchase of Capita Connect software. This relates to the 

Advantage Digital Platform (ADP) system which allows access to Council Tax, Benefits, Landlord services and 

Business rates via the MyBromley Account registration.

Contract payments made to Liberata are £40k below budget. This was due to a reduction in cash collections, fewer 

payslips (resulting from academy conversions) and the introduction of mono-printing. 

Extra income of £175k was collected from charges related to summons raised. This is linked with the higher recovery 

rates for the collection of Council Tax.

Due to a number of vacant posts the staffing budget was underspent by £80k. Other minor variations totalled Dr £25k.

Capital Connect software

Collection of income from charges related to summons raised

Staffing vacancies

There was an underspend on staffing of £14k as a result of part year vacancies and a £12k underspend across other 

budgets.

This variance is partly due to vacancies that have arisen during the year and partly due to underspends on general 

running expenses. 

Vacancies within the Management Accounting teams have resulted in an underspend of £70k.  This is partly offset by 

minor net variations of £4k across supplies and services budgets. 

A reduction in the external audit fee has resulted in an underspend of £16k. Other minor variations totalled Cr £24k. 

Executive are requested to agree a carry forward of £40k to buy in additional audit time from Mazars through the 

Framework to cover for a long term sickness, Head of Audit handover and legal costs for prosecutions.

This variation was mainly due to an underspend on the variable element of the B.T contract which includes service 

desk activities, hardware support levels, and service requests raised. 

Minor variations of Dr £1k across the Electoral service. A grant of £47k was received in March 16, from the Cabinet 

Office to support the changes required for the Individual Electoral Registration. Due to the late notification of this 

funding it was not possible to spend it in 2016/17.  A request to carry forward both the expenditure and grant income 

budget has been submitted.

Summary of variations £'000Shortfall of trade waste collected income due to reduction in customers 90Corresponding reduction in trade waste collection contract costs (20)Reduction in disposal tonnage from trade waste collection customers (50)Minor reduction in other disposal tonnages (20)Total variation for waste management 0

Summary of variations £'000Shortfall of trade waste collected income due to reduction in customers 90Corresponding reduction in trade waste collection contract costs (20)Reduction in disposal tonnage from trade waste collection customers (50)Minor reduction in other disposal tonnages (20)Total variation for waste management 0

Summary of variations £'000Shortfall of trade waste collected income due to reduction in customers 90Corresponding reduction in trade waste collection contract costs (20)Reduction in disposal tonnage from trade waste collection customers (50)Minor reduction in other disposal tonnages (20)Total variation for waste management 0

Summary of variations £'000Shortfall of trade waste collected income due to reduction in customers 90Corresponding reduction in trade waste collection contract costs (20)Reduction in disposal tonnage from trade waste collection customers (50)Minor reduction in other disposal tonnages (20)Total variation for waste management 0

Summary of variations £'000Shortfall of trade waste collected income due to reduction in customers 90Corresponding reduction in trade waste collection contract costs (20)Reduction in disposal tonnage from trade waste collection customers (50)Minor reduction in other disposal tonnages (20)Total variation for waste management 0

Summary of variations £'000Shortfall of trade waste collected income due to reduction in customers 90Corresponding reduction in trade waste collection contract costs (20)Reduction in disposal tonnage from trade waste collection customers (50)Minor reduction in other disposal tonnages (20)Total variation for waste management 0

42 Page 76



8. Democratic Services Cr £28k

9. Registration of Births, Deaths & Marriages Cr £31k

10. Legal Services Dr £51k

Summary of variations within Legal Services £000

Costs for counsel fees, court fees & legal expenses 194

Additional charges to capital relating to investment property purchases   106Cr        

Other minor variations 13

  50Cr          

Total Variation 51

11. Management and Other (Corporate Services) Dr £16k

HR DIVISION

12. Human Resources Cr £16k

COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT DIVISION

13. Procurement and Data Management Cr £66k

14. Commissioning Cr £21k

15. Debt Management System £0k

CHIEF EXECUTIVES DIVISION

16. Management and other (Chief Executive) Cr £68k

17. Mayoral Dr £37k

The budget for Member allowances was underspent by £35k. This more than offset the overspend of £7k for staff 

overtime and running expenses. 

The variation across the service is made up of £58k surplus income from civic centre marriages and nationality checks 

which offsets the additional related costs of £27k for staffing and running expenses. 

Costs of £194k were incurred for counsel fees, court fees and other legal expenses, mainly due to the high volume of 

child care cases dealt within this financial year, which far exceeded previous years. This was partly offset by £106k 

additional recharge to Capital as several investment property purchases were completed. Other minor variations 

totalled Dr £13k.

On 22nd March 2017, the Executive agreed to allocate £50k from the Central Contingency to meet the Counsel Fees 

that may be incurred for an inquest expected to be heard between 10th July and 11th August 2017. A carry forward 

request for £50k has been made to the June Executive to meet the cost of preparatory works and the Counsel costs 

during the hearing.

Future costs of inquest (Carry forward request)

This variation mainly relates to a saving of £20k that was built into the 2015/16 budget that has not yet been delivered. 

This has been partly offset by a £4k underspend on staffing expenses. For the 17/18 budget, alternative savings have 

been identified to ensure a balanced budget. 

This underspend was the result of part year vacancies and additional income from schools.

The Procurement and Data Management service has an overall underspend of £66k. This is the result of a net 

underspend of £32k on staffing due to part year vacancies and £15k on the MFD contract. Other minor variations 

across the service total £19k. A request will be submitted to the Executive to carry forward £50k to 2017/18 to enable 

the completion of the development of the Contract Database system.

There is an underspend of £32k within staffing due to a combination of part year vacancies and variation in contracted 

hours. Other minor variations totalled Dr £11k.

A request to carry forward both the expenditure and grant income budgets of £99k has been submitted to enable 

completion of the development of the debt management system. 

A sum of £55k was carried forward from 2015/16 to fund the contracted specialist consultancy work and counsel 

advice relating to the Noise Action Plan for Biggin Hill Airport. As only £11k has been spent during 2016/17, Executive 

are requested to approve a carry forward of the remaining £44k set aside for the Biggin Hill Airport project in order to 

complete the work in 2017/18. Other underspends include £21k on staffing as a result of part year vacancies and £3k 

within supplies and services. 

An increase in the number of engagements and events has led to an overspend on overtime and running expenses of 

£22k. The savings target of £15k has also not been achieved, resulting in an overspend of £37k for the service.

43 Page 77



ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT

18. Admin Buildings & Facilities Support Dr £34k 

19. Investment and Non-Operational Property Cr £16k

Summary of variations within Investment & Non- Operational Property £000

Delay in transfer of Anerley Business Centre 74

Surplus Properties 28

Exchequer House and Sundry properties   101Cr        

  17Cr          

Total Variation   16Cr         

20. Strategic & Operational Property Cr £45k

Summary of variations within Strategic & Operational Property £000

Net savings of the TFM contract   60Cr          

Walnuts Boiler Plant 22

  7Cr            

Total Variation   45Cr         

21. Other Rental Income - Other Portfolios Cr £55k 

22. Repairs & Maintenance (All LBB) Cr £113k 

Waiver of Financial Regulations:

Virements Approved to date under Director's Delegated Powers

1) Virement of £8k from Management Accounting to Audit for additional audit investigation works

2) Virement of £3.7k from Adult Social Care to Exchequer for financial review work on third party top ups.

Other net variations

Part year net savings of £60k have been realised from the new Total Facilities Management contract after taking 

account of the £40k saving that was built in the budget. The Walnuts boiler plant was £22k overspent and other minor 

variations totalled Cr £7k within staffing and running expenses. 

A delay in the transfer of Anerley Business Centre to the Crystal Palace Community Development Trust (CPCDT) has 

resulted in additional costs of £74k being incurred. This was more than offset by additional income from tenancies in 

the building.

The Surplus Property budget overspent by £28k as costs were incurred for a number of properties waiting to be sold. 

This was more than offset by a saving on premises costs for Exchequer House and Sundry properties of £101k, mainly 

from business rates. 

Other minor variations totalled Cr £17k.

There is an overall net overspend of £34k for Admin Building and Facilities Support. This includes £15k overspend on 

staffing as consultation began in March/April and costs were incurred in 2016/17 for pay in lieu of notice. There is also 

a £23k reduction in income due to a decrease in the number of staff paying for parking spaces at the Civic Centre. This 

has been partly offset by minor variations across other budgets of Cr £4k.

£170k cumulative contract value for funeral arrangements for members of the community to fulfill statutory 

obligations. Extension for two years.

Other net variations

Details of virements actioned by Chief Officers under delegated authority under the Financial Regulations "Scheme of 

Virement" will be included in financial monitoring reports to the Portfolio Holder.  Since the last report to Executive the 

following virements have been actioned.

There is an overall net surplus of £55k rental income from various properties in other Portfolios. This is mainly due to 

£50k additional income from the Depots with other minor variations totalling £5k. 

Within the Repairs & Maintenance budget there is an underspend of £113k related to the reconstruction works of the 

Central Depot wall. The work is proving to be more complex that originally anticipated, and significant repairs are 

required to ensure the continued stability of the wall. A request to carry forward the underspend was approved by 

Executive on 22nd March 2017.

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules state that where the value of a contract exceeds £50k and is to be exempted 

from the normal requirement to obtain competitive quotations, the Chief Officer has to obtain the agreement of the 

Director of Resources and Finance Director and (where over £100,000) approval of the Portfolio Holder, and report use 

of this exemption to Audit Sub committee bi-annually. Since the last report to the Executive, the following waiver has 

been actioned.

44 Page 78



APPENDIX 3

 Previously 

Approved 

Items 

 New Items 

Requested 

this Cycle 

 Items 

Projected for 

Remainder of 

Year 

 Total 

Allocations/ 

Projected for 

Year  

 Request to 

Carry 

Forward 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Renewal and Recreation

Planning Appeals - change in legislation 60,000          0                     0                   60,000Cr          

General

Provision for unallocated inflation 1,668,000     87,800           119,000        0                     206,800        1,461,200Cr     81,000        

Impact of Chancellor's Summer Budget 2015 on future costs 4,250,000     1,189,000      0                     1,189,000     (1)&(10) 3,061,000Cr     

Increase in Cost of Homelessness/Impact of Welfare Reforms 2,983,000     760,000         88,000Cr       0                     672,000        (7) 2,311,000Cr     

General provision for risk/uncertainty 2,193,000     1,091,000      0                     1,091,000     (4) 1,102,000Cr     

Provision for risk/uncertainty relating to volume and cost pressures 2,182,000     0                     0                   2,182,000Cr     

Impact of conversion of schools to academies 1,137,000     216,000         454,083        0                     670,083        (2) 466,917Cr        

Retained Welfare Fund 450,000        100,000         0                     100,000        (10) 350,000Cr        

Deprivation of Liberty 184,000        66,000           0                     66,000          (7) 118,000Cr        
Growth for Waste Services 267,000        0                     0                   267,000Cr        
Grants to Voluntary Organisations - pump priming funding 275,000        0                     0                   275,000Cr        
Other Provisions 293,000        0                     0                   293,000Cr        

Acquisition of residential properties 457,000Cr      0                     0                   457,000          
HR/Finance impact of academy conversions 69,000Cr        40,700Cr        0                     40,700Cr        (1) 28,300            
Care Act provision for additional costs 750,000        0                     0                   750,000Cr        
Care Act Funding 750,000Cr      750,000Cr      0                     750,000Cr      (1) 0                     
Community Libraries (2016/17 savings not achieved) 0                   250,000         0                     250,000        (6) 250,000          
Contribution to costs clearance Waste 4 Fuel site 0                   300,000         0                     300,000        (5) 300,000          
Environmental Initiatives Fund 0                   500,000         0                     500,000        (9) 500,000          
Planning/Planning Enforcement 0                   250,000         0                     250,000        (9) 250,000          
Apprenticeship Scheme 0                   200,000         0                     200,000        (9) 200,000          
Contribution to Growth Fund 0                   4,000,000      3,311,000     0                     7,311,000     (10) 7,311,000       
Legal / Counsel Costs 0                   50,000           0                     50,000          (10) 50,000            

15,416,000   8,269,100      3,796,083     0                     12,065,183   3,350,817Cr     81,000        

Grants included within Central Contingency Sum

SEND Implementation Grant  (New Burdens)

Grant related expenditure 201,000        180,000         0                     180,000        (2) 21,000Cr          20,703        

Grant related income 201,000Cr      180,000Cr      0                     180,000Cr      21,000            20,703Cr      

Tackling Troubled Families Grant
Grant related expenditure 675,400        0                   675,400Cr        675,400Cr    
Grant related income 675,400Cr      0                   675,400          675,400      

Lead Local Flood Authorities

Grant related expenditure 213,000        213,000         0                     213,000        (3) 0                     

London SEND Regional Lead Grant

Grant related expenditure 27,522           0                     27,522          (6) 27,522            

Grant related income 27,522Cr        0                     27,522Cr        27,522Cr          

Community Housing Fund

Grant related expenditure 31,204           0                     31,204          31,204            

Grant related income 31,204Cr        0                     31,204Cr        31,204Cr          

High Needs Strategic Planning Fund

Grant related expenditure 139,624         0                     139,624        (8) 139,624          

Grant related income 139,624Cr      0                     139,624Cr      139,624Cr        

Fire Safety Grant

Grant related expenditure 56,589            56,589        

Grant related income 56,589Cr          56,589Cr      

Total Grants 213,000        213,000         0                  0                     213,000        0                     0                 

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD 15,629,000   8,482,100      3,796,083     0                     12,278,183   3,350,817Cr     81,000        

Notes:

(1) Executive 13th January 2016

(2) Executive 23rd March 2016

(3) Executive 15th June 2016

(4) Executive 20th July 2016 & 11th January 2017

(5) Executive 2nd September 2016 

(6) Executive 18th October 2016 

(7) Executive 30th November 2016

(8) Executive 11th January 2017

(9) Council 1st March 2017

(10) Executive 22nd March 2017

Allocation of Contingency Provision for 2016/17

Item

 Original 

Contingency 

Provision 

 Allocations  
 Variation to 

Original 

Contingency 

Provision 

45 Page 79



 Previously 

Approved 

Items 

 New Items 

Requested 

this Cycle 

 Items 

Projected for 

Remainder of 

Year 

 Total 

Allocations/ 

Projected for 

Year  

 Request to 

Carry 

Forward 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

TOTAL BROUGHT FORWARD 15,629,000    8,482,100     3,796,083    0                      12,278,183    3,350,817Cr       81,000        

Items Carried Forward from 2015/16

Care Services

Social Care Funding via the CCG under S256 agreements

Adult Social Care Invest to Save Schemes

- expenditure 48,170           48,170          0                      48,170           (3) 0                        

- income 48,170Cr        48,170Cr       0                      48,170Cr        0                        

Integration Funding - Better Care Fund

- expenditure 300,000         300,000        0                      300,000         (3) 0                        

- income 300,000Cr      300,000Cr     0                      300,000Cr      0                        

Better Care Fund

- expenditure 381,360         381,360        0                      381,360         (3) 0                        

- income 381,360Cr      381,360Cr     0                      381,360Cr      0                        

Winter Resilience Funding 2014/15 (Bromley CCG)

- expenditure 351,480         351,480       0                      351,480         0                        

- income 351,480Cr      351,480Cr     0                      351,480Cr      0                        

Winter Resilience Funding 2015/16 (Bromley CCG)

- expenditure 116,750         116,750       0                      116,750         0                        

- income 116,750Cr      116,750Cr     0                      116,750Cr      0                        

Helping People Home

- expenditure 40,000           0                      0                    40,000Cr            40,000Cr     

- income 40,000Cr        0                      0                    40,000               40,000        

DCLG Preventing Homelessness Grant

- expenditure 200,000         200,000        0                      200,000         (7) 0                        

- income 200,000Cr      200,000Cr     0                      200,000Cr      0                        

Adoption Reform

- expenditure 132,323         132,323        0                      132,323         (3) 0                        

- income 132,323Cr      132,323Cr     0                      132,323Cr      0                        

Tackling Troubled Families

- expenditure 1,172,184      748,000        424,184       0                      1,172,184      (8) 0                        

- income 1,172,184Cr   748,000Cr     424,184Cr     0                      1,172,184Cr   0                        

Step Up to Social Work

- expenditure 72,159           72,159         0                      72,159           0                        

- income 72,159Cr        72,159Cr       0                      72,159Cr        0                        

Public Health

- expenditure 292,700         0                      0                    292,700Cr          292,700Cr   

- income 292,700Cr      0                      0                    292,700             292,700      

Implementing Welfare Reform Changes

- expenditure 56,640           56,640          0                      56,640           (7) 0                        

- income 56,640Cr        56,640Cr       0                      56,640Cr        0                        

Renewal & Recreation Portfolio

New Homes Bonus - Town Centre Management

- expenditure 41,687           41,687          0                      41,687           (5) 0                        

- income 41,687Cr        41,687Cr       0                      41,687Cr        0                        

New Homes Bonus - Regeneration

- expenditure 181,571         181,571        0                      181,571         (5) 0                        

- income 181,571Cr      181,571Cr     0                      181,571Cr      0                        

Resources Portfolio

Individual Electoral Registration

- expenditure 72,609           72,609          0                      72,609           (6) 0                        

- income 72,609Cr        72,609Cr       0                      72,609Cr        0                        

New Debt Management System

- expenditure 177,000         177,000        0                      177,000         (6) 0                        

- income 177,000Cr      177,000Cr     0                      177,000Cr      0                        

Education

SEN Reform/Implementation Grant

- expenditure 28,476           28,476          0                      28,476           (1) 0                        

- income 28,476Cr        28,476Cr       0                      28,476Cr        0                        

SEN Reform/Implementation Grant

- expenditure 80,000           80,000          0                      80,000           (10) 0                        

- income 80,000Cr        80,000Cr       0                      80,000Cr        0                        

London SEND Regional Lead Grant

- expenditure 15,000           15,000          0                      15,000           (10) 0                        

- income 15,000Cr        15,000Cr       0                      15,000Cr        0                        

Allocation of Contingency Provision for 2016/17 (continued)

Item

 Carried 

Forward from 

2015/16 

 Allocations   Variation to 

Original 

Contingency 

Provision 

46 Page 80



 Previously 

Approved 

Items 

 New Items 

Requested 

this Cycle 

 Items 

Projected for 

Remainder of 

Year 

 Total 

Allocations/ 

Projected for 

Year  

 Request to 

Carry 

Forward 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Item

 Carried 

Forward from 

2015/16 

 Allocations   Variation to 

Original 

Contingency 

Provision 

Early Years Grant

- expenditure 14,800           0                      0                    14,800Cr            14,800        

- income 14,800Cr        0                      0                    14,800               14,800Cr     

Public Protection & Safety

Domestic Abuse

- expenditure 60,610           60,610          0                      60,610           (4) 0                        

- income 60,610Cr        60,610Cr       0                      60,610Cr        0                        

Environment Portfolio
Drainage/Lead Flood Grant

- expenditure 69,482           69,482          0                      69,482           (2) 0                        

- income 69,482Cr        69,482Cr       0                      69,482Cr        0                        

WEEE Grant

- expenditure 13,090           13,090          0                      13,090           (2) 0                        

- income 13,090Cr        13,090Cr       0                      13,090Cr        0                        

General

YOS Service Strategy Review 97,000           97,000          0                      97,000           (9) 0                        

Consultancy Support (Place Planning & Schools) 40,000           40,000          0                      40,000           (10) 0                        

Parking  - Automated Cameras - Bus Lanes 180,000         0                      0                    (2) 180,000Cr          

Parking  - Automated Cameras - Non Bus Lanes 126,000         0                      0                    (2) 126,000Cr          

Local Plan Implementation 47,322           47,322          0                      47,322           (5) 0                        

Biggin Hill Airport - Noise Action Plan 54,870           54,870          0                      54,870           (5) 0                        

Biggin Hill Memorial Museum 47,400           47,400          0                      47,400           (5) 0                        

IT - BT Transition Costs 77,000           77,000          0                      77,000           (6) 0                        

IT upgrade at Anerley Business Centre 30,000           30,000          0                      30,000           (6) 0                        

Transparency Agenda 14,000           14,000          0                      14,000           (6) 0                        

Staff Merit Awards 89,170           89,170          0                      89,170           (6) 0                        

Residential Property Acquisitions (SPV) - Advice 291,000         291,000        0                      291,000         (6) 0                        

Civic Centre Development Strategy 257,500         257,500        0                      257,500         (10) 0                        

Contracts Register/Summaries Database 50,000           50,000          0                      50,000           (6) 0                        

1,401,262      1,095,262     0                  0                      1,095,262      306,000Cr          0                 

Total Carried Forward from 2015/16 1,401,262      1,095,262     0                  0                      1,095,262      306,000Cr          0                 

GRAND TOTAL 17,030,262    9,577,362     3,796,083    0                      13,373,445    3,656,817Cr       81,000        

Notes:

(1) Executive 23rd March 2016

(2) Environment PDS 7th June 2016

(3) Care Services PDS Committee 28th June 2016

(4) Public Protection & Safety PDS 29th June 2016
(5) Renewal & Recreation PDS 5th July 2016

(6) Executive & Resources PDS 7th July 2016

(7) Care Services PDS Committee 15th November 2016

(8) Care Services PDS Committee 15th November 2016 (£138k) / £610k Executive 30th November 2016 

(9) Executive 30th November 2016

(10) Executive 22nd March 2017

47 Page 81



APPENDIX 4

2016/17 Final Variation To

Approved 2016/17

Budget Budget 

£’000 £’000

SEN Transport 3,645                  504                               SEN Transport caries Children with special needs to and 

from school.  Over the last few years there has been an 

increasing pressure on the budget.  The causes of this 

include the new contract that was agreed in 2015/16 and 

the change in the age profile of the children to a younger 

age range that requires shorter travel time and more care 

during the trip.  The full year effect of the pressures are 

£755k

Housing Needs 6,962                  165                               The full year effect of the projected overspend is 

- Temporary Accommodation currently anticipated to be a pressure of £146k in 

2017/18. However, this only takes account of projected 

activity to the end of the financial year and does not 

include any projected further growth in numbers beyond 

that point.  This cost is expected to be covered by a 

contingency bid during 2017/18 as has been the case for 

a number of years.

Assessment and Care Management - Care 

Placements

19,417 1,344                            The full year impact of the current overspend is estimated 

at £1,223k, mainly in relation to domiciliary care and 

direct payment packages. 

Learning Disabilities - Care Placements and 

Care Management

30,402 630                               The full year effect is estimated at an overspend of £672k 

which is slightly higher than the current year's overall 

overspend.  However, once non-recurrent underspends 

are excluded from the current year's variation, the FYE 

shows a reduction on the current year's position.  This is 

because savings achieved during 2016/17 will have only 

a part year effect in the current financial year, with the full 

benefit not being realised until 2017/18.  The full year 

effect in this report does not include any planned activity 

beyond 31/3/17, neither savings nor cost pressures such 

as transition, nor does it take into account further budget 

reductions in 2017/18.

Mental Health - Care Placements 5,807 219Cr                            The full year impact of the current year's underspend on 

Mental Health is Cr £118k.  The 2016/17 position 

includes non-recurrent underspends and the underlying 

trend is one of slight upward cost pressures, including 

reduced funding contributions.

Supporting People 1,051 56                                 There is anticipated to be an underspend of £72k in a full 

year. This is a result of estimated savings arising from 

tendering activity in 2016/17.

Children's Social Care 27,533                3,849                            The current full year effect impact for CSC is estimated at 

£2,665k. This can be analysed as £636k on placements, 

£35k for no recourse to public funds clients, £1,382k on 

leaving care clients and £612k on Care Proceedings 

(Public Law Outline).

Investment income 9,542Cr                240 Although there is a net deficit of £240k for rental income 

from Investment properties, three properties were 

recently purchased and it is anticipated that there will be 

a surplus in future years.

Waste 17,510                501                               A full time 5th vehicle and a part time 6th vehicle will be 

required for the Green Garden Waste service next year 

which will absorb most of the underspend/extra income. 

The level of defaults for the collection contract is not 

expected to continue in future years.

Parking 7,080Cr                345                               The increase in contraventions for bus lanes and parking 

is not expected to continue into future years (Cr £403k). 

Should all of the sites for additional pay and display 

parking bays be introduced/progressed, there is not 

expected to be a deficit in future years. The vacant posts 

within the shared service will either be filled or deleted 

following the staffing review that will be undertaken during 

next year. No FYE is therefore projected for these 

variances.

Description Potential Impact in 2017/18

48 Page 82



APPENDIX 4

2016/17 Final Variation To

Approved 2016/17

Budget Budget 

£’000 £’000

Description Potential Impact in 2017/18

Mortuary and Coroners Service 395                     113                               Latest information from LB Croydon indicate that the 

costs for the Coroners Service for 2017/18 are likely to be 

£318k, which is £48k above the 2017/18 budget. Costs 

are likely to increase further in 2018/19 to account for the 

full impact of the rental of the new premises together with 

the impact of the staffing review that is due to be 

undertaken in 2017/18.

49 Page 83



Appendix 5

Carry Forwards from 2016/17 to 2017/18

WITHIN DELEGATED AUTHORITY £ £

RESOURCES PORTFOLIO

1 Repairs and Maintenance (All Departments) 113,000
The Property & Finance Sub-Committee, in December 2001, agreed for a carry forward to be 

made at the end of each financial year of revenue underspends on landlord building maintenance. 

This was on the basis that Property will continue to seek to contain total expenditure within 

approved annual budgets. 

A request to carry forward £113k for the reconstruction works of the Central Depot wall was 

agreed by Executive on 22nd March 2017 . The work is proving to be more complex than originally 

anticipated and significant repairs are required to ensure the continued stability of the wall.

MEMBERS' APPROVAL REQUIRED

Grants with Explicit Right of Repayment

CARE SERVICES PORTFOLIO

2 Social Care Funding via the CCG under s256 Agreements:

Integration Funding - Better Care Fund 28,170

The 2014/15 funding transfer from NHS England included a £992k one-off integration payment 

which formed the first part of the Better Care Fund.  Of this, £300k was carried forward into 

2016/17 and the remaining unspent balance of £28k is required in 2017/18 to support the 

development of integrated commissioning.

3 Better Care Fund

2015/16 Better Care Fund - GoodGym 25,000

2016/17 Better Care Fund 132,190

2016/17 has been the second full year of operation for the Better Care Fund (BCF).  Some BCF 

allocations, including those for reablement, carers and dementia, were not fully spent by 31st 

March 2017 and underspends are required to be carried forward for spending on BCF activities in 

2017/18. This funding will be allocated to agreed projects together with new BCF funding for 

2017/18.

£25,000 has been allocated from Better Care Funding brought forward from 2015/16 for the new 

GoodGym service in 2017/18 and 2018/19.  The service helps to reduce isolation and loneliness, 

improves wellbeing, increases volunteering and connects communities.

4 Helping People Home Grant 40,000

On 27th January 2015 LBB received notification from the DCLG that we would be receiving 

additional funding via a DOH section 31 grant in 2014/15 to "help address the current pressures on 

acute hospitals that serve your area because of delayed discharges to social care for your 

residents". The grant allocation was £120,000. Following on from this a further notification was 

received on the 25th March 2015 notifying us of an additional £40,000 for extension of the scheme. 

This amount was not utilised at the time and needs to be carried forward for possible repayment , 

or continuation of services with agreement from the DOH.

5 DCLG Preventing Homelessness Grant 152,551

This grant is to be used to fund a pilot around early intensive intervention to increase homeless 

prevention and access to privately rented accommodation as part of the initiatives to reduce the 

current homelessness and temporary accommodation pressures.  This pilot required the 

recruitment of staff to allow it to start and this was completed during 2016/17, however the 

recruitment process was not completed earlier enough into he year for the grant to be fully spent 

due 2016/17.  The staff are on a fixed term contact and this funding is required to support these 

posts.

6 Fire Safety Grant (in contingency) 56,589

A successful bid was made in February 2017 for a grant from the London Fire and Emergency 

Planning Authority for the provision of stand alone smoke detectors and fire retardant bedding and 

clothing for vulnerable clients. A carry forward is requested for this grant sum of £56,589 as the 

services as set out in the grant conditions will be carried out in 2017/18.

Care Services Portfolio 434,500

50 Page 84



Appendix 5

RENEWAL AND RECREATION PORTFOLIO

7 New Home Bonus - Town Centre Management  23,446

There is an underspend of £23k relating to the two NHB top slice projects within Orpington and 

Penge, and a request will be submitted to the Executive to carry forward this amount in order to 

complete the specific projects which will be completed during 2017/18 as agreed with the GLA.

8 New Homes Bonus - Regeneration 306,126

There are 4 NHB top slice revenue projects which secured funding agreed through LEP in 

2015/16.  These were due to be delivered over 2 years commencing in 2015/16.  The 4 projects 

include: Penge town centre and Orpington town centre (a proportion of which was allocated to 

TCM and is included in a separate carry forward request), Biggin Hill Technology & Enterprise 

centre and Lagoon Rd industrial estate refurbishment.  At the end of 2016/17 £306,126 of budget 

had not yet been utilised and a carry forward has been requested so that the associated project 

work can be completed in 2017/18 as agreed with the GLA.

Renewal and Recreation Portfolio 329,572

Total Expenditure to be Carried Forward 764,072

Total Grant Income -764,072

Grants with no Explicit Right of Repayment

RESOURCES PORTFOLIO

9 Electoral Services - Cabinet Office funding for IER 47,117
Grant income of £47,117 was received in March 16, from the Cabinet Office to support the 

changes required for the Individual Electoral Registration. Due to the late notification of this funding 

it was not possible to spend it in 2016/17 and it is therefore requested to carry forward  this sum to 

2017/18.

10 Debt Management System Project - Transformation Grant 99,267
Transformation grant of £344k was received during March 2016 and was set aside to fund the new 

Debt Management System. To date £245k has been spent however the balance is needed to meet 

the costs of finalising the system during 2017/18. It is therefore requested to carry this sum forward 

to 2017/18. 

Resources Portfolio 146,384

CARE SERVICES PORTFOLIO

11 Tackling Troubled Families Grant 675,400

This grant is to fund the development of an ongoing programme to support families who have multi 

faceted problems including involvement in crime and anti social behaviour with children not in 

education, training or employment.  This support is delivered through a number of work streams 

cross cutting across council departments and agencies. The sum represents the underspend 

2016/17. 

12 Public Health Grant 623,290

The Public Health Grant underspent by £141k in 2014/15 and by £152k in 2015/16. This total 

balance of £293k was carried forward to 2016/17 to fund public health initiatives as per the terms 

of the grant, however it was not required this year as there was a underspend of £330k in year. 

This cumulative balance is requested to be carried forward to fund public health initiatives that may 

arise in 2017/18.

13 Implementing Welfare Reform Changes 56,219

The funds provided were to meet the cost of implementing welfare reform. Caseloads are likely to 

increase substantially. For some families that we have assisted through budgeting the current 

benefit cap, they will no longer be able to afford to meet their rent payments. This funding will need 

to be drawn down during the following year to help mitigate the impact and potential increase in 

homelessness resulting from these changes. In addition there have been delays in implementing 

Universal Credit nationally. Roll out for the Bromley area commenced in January 2016. The 

funding will therefore be needed to cover the costs of local implementation. 

14 Community Housing Fund Grant 62,408

This grant was introduced this year. Its intention is to support local community affordable housing 

schemes. The aim is to build capacity with local groups and the Council is currently looking at 

proposals to work with partners on projects that meet the grant objectives

Care Services Portfolio 1,417,317

51 Page 85



Appendix 5

EDUCATION PORTFOLIO

15 Early Years Grant - Supporting early education of disadvantaged children            14,800
It has taken longer than expected to work through the IT related agreements to purchase software 

and implement  the changes needed with the introduction of additional hours of early years 

funding. To support this there will be a need to use the grant for additional hours for staff to steer 

the activity through to completion which the conditions of the grant allow.

16 LA conversion Academies sponsor support 28,000
This grant is to support the conversion of our remaining Schools into Academies.  The grant was 

received late in 2016/17 and was unable to spent in 2016/17  

17 High Needs Strategic Planning Fund 139,624
Grant received late in 2016/17 and was unable to spent in year.  Grant is to be used to review the 

services we support via the High Needs DSG Block.  We are currently in the process of employing 

someone to carry out the review.

18 SEN Reform Grant 20,703
This grant is to support a three year Government specified programme for the transition of 

statements into Education Health and Care Plans (EHCP).  The underspends in 2016/17 are 

required to continue to support this work in 2017/18 to meet the three year Government deadline. 

Bromley is the lead partner with Enfield.

19 SEN Pathfinder Grant 14,427
This grant is to support our role as a Pathfinder Champion.  This role has benefited the local 

authority in accessing high quality training and innovative practice.  The carry forward of this grant 

allows the delivery of the training programme to continue.

Education Portfolio 217,554

R&R Portfolio

20 Planning Strategy & Projects - Custom Build Grant 29,645

The Custom Build Grant £15,000 and the New burdens funding for the Brownfield register of 

£14,645 was received in March 16 from DCLG. Due to the late notification of this funding it was not 

possible to spend it in 2016/17 and it is therefore requested to carry forward  this sum to 2017/18.

R&R Portfolio 29,645

Total Expenditure to be Carried Forward 1,810,900

Total Grant Income -1,810,900

OTHER CARRY FORWARD REQUESTS

RESOURCES PORTFOLIO

21 Audit - Additional investigation works 40,000
Members are requested to approve a carry forward of £40k to buy in additional audit time from 

Mazars through the Framework to cover for a long term sickness, Head of Audit handover and 

legal costs for prosecutions.

22 Debt Management System 25,000
Due to delayed go-live of the Aspien Corporate Debt Recovery system & Single View Project along 

with the complexities of the development additional resources are required. It is therefore 

requested to carry forward £25k from the underspend on Financial Services to fund the remaining 

implementation costs of the Debt Management System.

23 Contract Register / Summaries Database 50,000

A sum of £50k was previously carried forward to top up existing resources to assist with the 

development of the Contracts Database (CDB). This was to improve contract management, 

generate the registers used for reporting key information to Contracts Sub-Committee and the 

PDS committees, and contribute to the Commissioning agenda. There was a delay on project 

delivery due to coding and content-building capacity. In addition, more works are required in 

2017/18 to improve the CDB’s content and functionality. This also includes improving the quality of 

the data and risk management. The Executive is requested to agree to carry forward this sum into 

2017/18 to enable the completion of the scheme. 

24 Biggin Hill Airport Noise Action Plan 43,700

A sum of £55k was carried forward from 2015/16 to fund the contracted specialist expert acoustic 

advice and other potential advice needed relating to the introduction of the Noise Action Plan for 

Biggin Hill Airport.  Work activity, including the need for Cole Jarman’s expert acoustic advice has 

continued into the current financial year, with the peak of this work occurring later than originally 

envisaged and beyond the Council’s control.  The Executive are therefore requested to approve a 

carry forward of the £44k underspend on the Biggin Hill Airport project.    

52 Page 86



Appendix 5

25 Legal Counsel Cost 50,000

On 22nd March 2017, Executive agreed to allocate £50k from the central contingency to meet the 

Counsel Fees for an inquest listed for hearing between 10th July to 11th August 2017, where the 

Council has been cited as an interested party in the matter. A carry forward request is submitted 

as the preparatory works and the conduct of the hearing will be carried out in 2017/18.

26 Merit Rewards (in contingency) 80,970
As part of introduction of Localised Pay, Members agreed a merited reward for exceptional 

performers, and a provision of £200k was included in the Central Contingency. This was to reward 

the performance of employees. £119k was awarded in 2016/17 and a balance of £81k remains to 

be paid out during 2017/18. This amount is therefore requested to be carried forward.

ENVIRONMENT PORTFOLIO

27 Green Garden Waste  - Debt Management System 120,000

A carry forward of £120k is requested from the £200k surplus for the Green Garden Waste service 

towards the Aspien Corporate Debt Recovery & Single View project.  The carry forward is 

requested in order to fund the introduction of Direct Debit payments for the Green Garden Waste 

Service, an extension to the Debt Management system project. The new system will separate the 

financial and operational functions in preparation for the new contractual arrangements for the 

service in 2019. It will enable officers to collect the income in a more timely fashion through direct 

debits. This will make the service more efficient, providing easier cash reconciliation and debt 

management, and provide customers with an alternative method of payment. 

RENEWAL AND RECREATION PORTFOLIO

28 Local Plan Implementation 37,427

Of the £47k carried-forward from 2015/16 for the Local Plan Implementation, only £10k was spent, 

and therefore a further carry-forward request is being submitted for £37k so that the costs of the 

Examination in Public can be met in 2017/18 and to undertake any further evidence work required.

Total Other 447,097

Net Total Requiring Approval 447,097

TOTAL CARRY FORWARD TO 2017/18 560,097

53 Page 87



Appendix 6

EARMARKED GENERAL FUND BALANCES - 2016/17

Description Balance Expend- Balance

at iture Contribs. Interest at

31/03/2016 31/03/2017

EARMARKED BALANCES £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

LPSA Reward Grant 121 45 76

Technology Fund 1,853 150 28 1,731

LAA Pump Priming Grant 750 595 155
Town Centre Improvement Fund (LABGI) 55 55

Transformation Fund 3,013 1,995 1,018

Investment to Community 578 48 530

R & R Redundancy Reserve 116 116

Works to Property 100 100

Building Control Charging Account 131 131 182 182

Government Grants 2,257 2,257 1,811 1,811

Invest to Save 13,381 55 1,451 14,777

Bromley Welcare 29 29

One off Member Initiatives 1,566 234 1,332

Infrastructure Investment Fund 2,000 2,000

Commissioning Authority Programme 55 55

Health & Social Care 'Promise Programme' 5,953 2,000 3,953

Housing Strategy Account 25 25

Community Right to Bid & Challenge 46 46

Glades Refurbishment 7 7 0

Investment Fund 3,769 6,630 7,482 4,621

Winter Pressures 1,542 1,542

Refurbishment of War Memorials 13 13

Key Health & Social Care Initiatives 1,700 1,700

Integration of Health & Social Care Initiatives 1,614 1,614

Collection Fund Surplus Set Aside 0 4,912 4,912

Healthy Bromley Fund 3,815 3,815

Glaxo Wellcome Endowment 175 23 2 154

Cheyne Woods and Cyphers Gate 173 10 163

Public Halls Fund 7 7

Future Repairs of 145, High Street 19 12 31

Parallel Fund 2,809 109 2,700

Growth Fund 29,483 14,369 4,000 19,114

Health & Social Care Integrated Commissioning Fund 4,550 4,550

Financial Planning & Risk Reserve 5,000 5,000

Bromley Welfare Fund 970 970

Payment in Lieu Reserve for Temporary Accommodation 51 34 85

Business Rates Risk Reserve 4,200 4,200

One Off Expenditure in 2016/17 (inc. TFM Contract) 461 309 152

Crystal Palace Park Improvements 238 93 145

Various Joint Schemes and Pump Priming Investments 3,100 94 3,006

New Reserves Set Up in 2016/17

Transition Fund 1,500 2,068 568

Children's Social Care Transition Fund 1,500 1,500

Environmental Initiatives 500 500

Planning/Planning Enforcement 250 250

Apprenticeship Scheme 200 200

Civic Centre Development Strategy 257 257

855 855

147 147

2,000 2,000

468 468

3,311 3,311

Subject to Approval by Executive 20th June 2017 
CSC Recruitment & Retention

Professional Advice for Future Schemes

Various Joint Schemes & Pump Priming

Winter Resiliance 

Growth Fund

Sub-Total 95,725 30,654 31,440 30 96,541

Schools 4,017 1,786 390 2,621

Insurance Fund 3,099 607 800 81 3,373

TOTAL 102,841 33,047 32,630 111 102,535

Note:  Members should note that the balance at 31/3/2017 represents the "cash" balance and in some cases the 

monies shown will already be committed for future years on various schemes.

Income

54 Page 88



APPENDIX 7

SECTION 106 RECEIPTS 

Section 106 receipts are monies paid to the Council by developers as a result of the grant of planning

permission where works are required to be carried out or new facilities provided as a result of that

permission (e.g. provision of affordable housing, healthcare facilities & secondary school places).

The sums are restricted to being spent only in accordance with the agreement concluded with the

developer.

The major balances of Section 106 receipts held by the Council are as follows:

Actual 

Transfers as at

31 March to/(from) 31 Mar

2016 Service Income Expenditure Capital 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Restated

Revenue Revenue

374 Highway Improvement Works 168           -                   -                542 

45 Road Safety Schemes 10             13                -                42 

151 Local Economy & Town Centres -               -                   (106) 45 

76 Parking 2               -                   -                78 

1,143 Healthcare Services 102           521              -                724 

10 

Community Facilities (to be 

transferred to capital) -               -                   -                10 

310 Other 1               -                   -                311 

2,109 283 534 (106) 1,752 

Capital Capital

2,801 Education 339           250              -                2,890 

5,181 Housing 737           1,007           -                4,911 

-                Local Economy & Town Centres -               9                  106           97 

81 Highway Improvement Works 1               -                   -                82 

8,063 1,077 1,266 106 7,980 

10,172 1,360 1,800 -            9,732 

55 Page 89



APPENDIX 8

B01: Committed Revenue Balances

B02: Uncommitted Revenue Balances

B03: Devolved Formula Capital Balances

B05: Other Capital Balances

B06:    Community Focussed Extended Schools Balances

Uncommitted 

Revenue

Devolved 

Formula 

Capital

Other 

Capital

Community 

Focussed 

Extended 

Services

Total 

Balances

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Special 

Schools

3 791 34 825 717 1 0 41 825 

Total 14 4,017 -1,396 2,621 2,133 41 0 46 2,621

£000

Outturn

Variance

1,572      

379         

482Cr      

353Cr      

651Cr      

117         

745Cr      

63Cr        

226Cr      

The most significant variations above are:- 

SCHOOLS’ DELEGATED BUDGETS

Consistent Financial Report (CFR) is a framework of income and expenditure items and balances, which provides schools with a 

benchmark facility to allow them to promote self-management and value for money.  A CFR return has been produced by all schools 

maintained by the LA as at 31 March 2017.

The CFR framework details five balances, which provide an overall picture of the resources available to the school from one year to 

the next, and give information about any carried forward balances.  The balances are categorised as follows:

N.B. B04 Other Standards Fund Capital Balances has now been removed as Standards 

Funds no longer exist.

The following table shows schools’ reserves as at 31 March 2017, the end of the 2016/17 financial year.  The table below shows an 

overall decrease in balances of £1,396k (decrease from £4,017k to £2,621k). This decrease can be seen to be across both revenue 

and capital balances and across each of the school sectors as detailed below.

Analysis of Balances as at 31 March 2017

Committed Revenue

£’000

Primary 

Schools

10 2,765 -1,470 1,295 295 955 

Nos

Accrued 

Balances at 

1 April 2016

Under/ Over 

(-) 

Expenditure 

in 2016/17

Accrued 

Balances at 

31 March 

2017

Secondary 

Schools

1 461 40 501 

66 

40 0 5 1,295 

40 461 0 0 0 501 

SEN - Other Variations

401

THE SCHOOLS BUDGET

Expenditure on Schools is funded through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) provided for by the Department for Education (DfE). 

DSG is ring fenced and can only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the schools budget. Any overspend or 

underspend must be carried forward to the following year's Schools Budget.
There is a total in year underspent of £226k on DSG funded services as outlined below.  As agreed by the Portfolio Holder for 

Education following the meeting of the Education Sub-Committee on 6th January 2015, £3.5m was distributed as a one-off payment to 

schools in 2015/16, £3m will be set aside for the refurbishment of Beacon House (this has now been fully paid), and £2m used to 

contain growth in 2016/17.

An analysis of the main variations is provided below:

Beacon House Refurbishment

Bulge Classes (inc Modular classroom rentals)

SEN - Placements

b) There is a continued increase in the requirement for bulge classes, and for the first time, a need for them at secondary level, a year

earlier than had been anticipated, resulting in an overspend of £379k on the £2.5m budget. This includes a £229k overspend relating

to the rental of temporary modular classrooms for bulge classes.

c) SEN placements and support costs has underspent by a total of £482k. The underspend is mainly due to higher than expected 

spend on children attending Independent Day Schools (£435k) and Maintained Day Schools (£233k).  These overspends are then 

offset with underspends on spend for children being placed in Independent Boarding schools (£866k), Maintained Boarding schools 

(£78k) and higher than expected income to be collected (£53k).

d) Free Early Years Education has underspent by £651k this year.  This is down to the £141k underspend for the 2 year old age and 

an underspend £510k for the year in the 3 & 4 years age.

Free Early Education

FAP Payments

Standard Fund Grant

Other Variations

Final Outturn

a) The £1.572k costs for Beacon House relate to the refurbishment of the property following its purchase.  These are the final costs.  

The budget for this project was approved in 2015/16. 

56 Page 90



Appendix 9

Scheme

Approval date

(Council/Exec)

Contrib-

utions

Approved 

"loans"

Advanced 

from Fund

Repaid to 

Fund

Net "loan" 

31/03/17

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Approved funding

Initial Funding allocation Oct-11 14,000

Council Tax Freeze grant Feb-12 3,304

Approved schemes

Green waste/textile collection service Dec-11 220 220 220 0

Replace street lighting columns Nov-12 8507 8435 6097 2338

Bellegrove - refurbishment Jan-13 400 508 508 0

Statemented pupils - travel training Apr 13 & Jul 14 460 272 262 10

Transfer CSC to Liberata Sep-13 330 322 143 179

17,304 9,917 9,757 7,230 2,527

Actual Fund balance 31/03/17 14,777

INVEST TO SAVE FUND

This earmarked reserve was set up with a sum of £14m, as approved by Council in October 2011, to enable 

“loans” to be provided for Invest to Save initiatives. Advances are to be repaid within a “reasonable” period 

with schemes providing on-going revenue savings to contribute towards reducing the budget gap. In February 

2012, Executive agreed that the one-off Council Tax Freeze grant in 2012/13 be added to the Fund, bringing 

the total contributions up to £17,304k.

Five schemes have been approved to date and, as at 31st March 2017, the actual balance on the Fund stood 

at £14,777k as detailed in the table below:

To 31st March 2017

57 Page 91



This page is left intentionally blank



  

1 

Report No. 
Please obtain 
a report 
number 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE 

Date:  Wednesday 22 March 2017 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Executive  
 

Key  
 

Title: BASIC NEED PROGRAMME UPDATE, INC S106 
ALLOCATIONS 
 

Contact Officer: Jane Bailey, Director: Education 
Tel: 020 8313 4146    E-mail:  jane.bailey@bromley.gov.uk 
 
Robert Bollen, Head of Strategic Place Planning 
Tel: 020 8313 4697    E-mail:  robert.bollen@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Director: Education (ECHS) 

Ward: (All Wards); 

 
1. Reason for report 

 This report updates the capital schemes included within the Council’s Basic Need Programme 
with a project value over £1million. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1  That the Executive agrees the updated Updated Basic Need Programme as set out in 
Appendix 4, subject to Full Council approval. 

2.2 That the Executive agrees the use of £2.890m of unallocated Section 106 Education 
monies as detailed within Appendix 3. 

2.3 That the Executive agrees an increase to the Basic Need capital scheme of £2,597k to 
reflect the SEND Provision capital grant allocation as detailed in paragraph 3.3. 

2.4  That approval be given to the fully costed appraisal for the new schemes at Beacon 
Academy (Orpington), Bishop Justus School, Castlecombe Primary School, St John’s CE 
Primary School and Tubbenden Primary School in addition to the projects outlined in the 
previous report agreed by the Executive on 2 April 2014 and 20th May 2015 as set out in 
Appendix 2 to this report. 

Page 93

Agenda Item 7



  

2 

2.5  That the Director of Education be authorised to support schools to submit planning 
applications in association with these works. 

Page 94



  

3 

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children 
 
1. Summary of Impact: This programme is currently benefitting local children through providing 

1,635 temporary and 2,550 permanent school places in both mainstream and specialist settings.   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy  
 

2. BBB Priority: Children and Young People  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Estimated Cost  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Non-Recurring Cost  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Education Capital Programme 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £81,683k 
 

5. Source of funding: DfE Basic Need Capital Grant, DfE SEND Capital Grant, DfE Capital 
Maintenance Grant, S106 contributions  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Personnel 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):         
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:         
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement  
 

2. Call-in: Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Procurement 
 

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:  There are no procurement implications arising from this 
report. The procurement strategy for Basic Need has been set out in previous reports. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  In excess of 4,000 pupils in 
Bromley 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 95



  

4 

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 This report updates the Council’s Basic Need Capital Programme with schemes with an 
estimated value in excess of £1 million. 

3.2 The Council receives Basic Need Capital Grant from the DfE to support the delivery of sufficient 
school places, with a total of £77.9m so far allocated for 2011-2019.  

3.3 In addition, the Council has received a capital allocation of £2,596,530 for SEN. Apart from the 
scheme at Tubbenden Primary School utilisation will be considers as part of the High Needs 
Block Review.  These allocations are provided in addition to the basic need capital funding that 
local authorities receive to support the capital requirement for providing new pupil places. The 
formula for allocation is based principally on projected population growth for children and young 
people aged 2-18 between the years 2018-19 and 2020-21.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Page 96



  

5 

 

2011-12 allocation 4,496,771

Autumn 2011 exceptional in-year allocation 1,277,936

2012-13 allocation 2,404,519

Spring 2012 exceptional in-year allocation 1,590,436

2013-15 allocation 9,968,079

2015-16 allocation 20,635,153

2016-17 allocation 21,666,911

2017-18 allocation 8,837,573

2018-19 allocation 6,895,846

Contribution from DfE Capital Maintenance Grant underspend 1,200,000

Transfer from Reconfiguration of Special Schools Scheme 113,000

Total allocation to date: £79,086,224

SEND Provision Capital Funding

2018-19 allocation £865,510

2019-20 £865,510

2020-21 £865,510

Total allocation to date: £2,596,530  
 

3.3  The table above includes the Basic Need Capital Grant available inclusive of contributions from DfE 
Capital Maintenance Grant and funds allocated within the Council’s capital programme for the 
reconfiguration of special schools. 

  
3.4  In addition, the Basic Need capital programme also includes capital contributions from a range of 

other capital funding programmes including Seed Challenge, Access Initiative and Suitability along 
with Section 106 contributions.  

3.5 Appendix 1 provides an update on those projects recently completed, currently being delivered or 
under development 

3.6 Appendix 2 provides a financial appraisal of those capital projects that are either new to the 
programme, or where costs have changed since the last report to the Executive on [ ] March 2016 
and need reappraisal. 

3.5 Appendix 3 provides a updated schedule of where S106 monies received by the Council are being 
allocated to schemes in the Basic Need Capital Programme. 

3.6 Appendix 4 provides details of the Basic Need Programme. There is currently insufficient funding 
provided by the DfE and other sources to deliver all the schemes within the Basic Need Programme. 

3.7 Projects are categorised as follows: 

 A - Completed projects, including projects that are in defects and yet to reach Final Account.  

 B - Projects in Delivery (Funded) – schemes that are in the delivery phase and have available 
funding allocated to them to allow delivery  

 C - Projects in Delivery (Unfunded) – schemes that are not fully funded, but are being 
delivered to a ‘shovel ready’ status awaiting availability of funds  

 D - Projects in Development – schemes being prepared based on forecast need but with no 
agreement on development  

Page 97



  

6 

3.8 Design development of schemes not in the delivery phase (funded or unfunded) of the programme 
will continue, but schemes will not be brought forward for delivery until funding is available. For 
‘schemes in development’ to be brought forward into the pool of ‘schemes in delivery’ there will need 
to be clear evidence that these are priority schemes. 

3.9 Since the last Basic Need Update Report to the Executive in March 2016, works has focussed on 
delivery of schemes in the programme and no new schemes have been added. 

4. IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN  

4.1 The Basic Need Capital Programme has added 1,635 temporary and 2,550 permanent school 
places in both mainstream and specialist settings.   

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Bromley Council has an established policy for the review and strategic planning of school  
places and related school organisation. The need to ensure sufficient school places, the quality  
of those places and their efficient organisation is a priority within the Council’s strategy ‘Building  
a Better Bromley’ and contributes to the strategy to achieve the status of An Excellent Council.  
This policy also contributes to key targets within the Education Portfolio Plan. 
 

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The Council has been allocated £77.8m in 100% capital grant for the financial years 2011-19 to 
meet the basic need provision in schools. The programme also includes various transfers from other 
schemes to support the delivery of the Council’s Basic Need Programme. Allocations have also 
been made to Basic Need to support other school expansion schemes, resulting a total current 
budget of £82.1m as shown in the table below. 

     

Page 98



  

7 

 

£'000s

2011-12 allocation 4,497

Autumn 2011 exceptional in-year allocation 1,278

2012-13 allocation 2,405

Spring 2012 exceptional in-year allocation 1,590

2013-15 allocation 9,968

2015-16 allocation 20,635

2016-17 allocation 21,667

2017-18 allocation 8,838

2018-19 allocation 6,896

77,774

Transfer to Highway Primary Rebuild Scheme -650

Contribution from DfE Capital Maintenance Grant 1,200

s106 allocations to projects in programme (to date) 705

Transfer from Reconfiguration of Special Schools Scheme 113

Transfer to Beacon House Refurbishment Scheme -577

Additional EFA funding for MUGA at Trinity 309

Transfer from Capital Maintenance 94

1,194

Total Basic Need Budget 78,968

SEND Provision Capital Funding 2018-19 866

SEND Provision Capital Funding 2019-20 866

SEND Provision Capital Funding 2020-21 866

s106 allocations to projects in programme (new) 2,890

84,456

Highway Primary Rebuild Scheme 650

Beacon House Refurbishment Scheme 577

s106 funding Tranche 1 -705

s106 funding Tranche 2 -2,890

Adjusted Basic Need 82,088

approved Exec 18/05/16

Approved capital 

programme budget

Subject to approval

Subject to approval

Subject to approval

Subject to approval

approved Exec 23/03/16

approved Exec 07/03/12

approved Exec 20/11/13

approved Exec 02/04/14

approved Exec 11/02/15

approved Exec 02/12/15

 

5.2 For the purposes of monitoring total Basic Need related expenditure, and to ensure that any 
underspends are returned to Basic Need, the £650k and £577k transfers to the Highway Primary 
Rebuild and Beacon House Refurbishment Schemes respectively have been added back in to the 
list of projects, and the Section 106 funding removed and shown as other funding. 

5.3 As detailed in Appendix 4, the updated Basic Need Programme for the period 2011-19 has an 
estimated total expenditure of £130.3m.The potential funding gap against the current Basic Need 
Capital Budget if all schemes were progressed is £36.4m)  

5.4 To date, a total of £95.8m expenditure has been committed (completed schemes plus schemes in 
delivery), of which £77.2m is funded from the Basic Need Capital Scheme. 

5.5 The Capital Programme includes the sum of £3.663m unallocated Section 106 monies received 
from developers which are ring-fenced for Education purposes.  Members are asked to approve the 

Page 99



  

8 

allocation of £2.890m of this S106 funding to the Basic Need capital scheme as detailed in Appendix 
3. 

 

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The distribution and application of monies received from Central Government is subject to guidance 
and advice from the Department for Education. Under Section 14 Education Act 1996 the Council 
has a statutory duty to ensure that there are enough primary and secondary school places are 
available to meet the needs of pupils in its area. 

7.2 Section 106 monies must be spent in accordance with the Education contribution clauses 

8. PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

8.2 This report provides details on the funding allocations and priorities for the Council’s Basic Need 
Capital Programme. The procurement strategy, as set out in previous Executive reports, is not 
altered by this report. 

 

 

 

   

 

Non-Applicable Sections: 9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

[Title of document and date] 

Page 100



 
 
APPENDIX 1 – PROJECT UPDATE REPORT 
 

 School/Academy Current Project 
Status  
 

Description 

A2 Bromley Beacon 
Academy (Beacon 
House) 

Project 
Complete (in 
defects period) 

New vocational school building for existing KS4 pupils at Beacon Academy 
(formerly Burwood School) and expanding provision to KS5 and girls. 
 

A5 Bromley Road Primary 
School 

Project 
Complete 

Refurbishment to support reorganisation of school from 3 FE infants school to 1 
FE primary. 

A7 Churchfields Primary 
School 
 

Project 
Complete (in 
defects period) 

Expansion from 1 to 2 FE. Final highways works associated with scheme 
undertaken earlier this year. 
 

A8 Clare House Primary 
School 
 

Project 
Complete (in 
defects period) 

Demolition of existing 1FE and replacement with new 2 FE school. 
 

A10 Crofton Infants School 
(SEN Unit) 
 

Project 
Complete 

New ‘Busy Bees’ SEN unit class and improvements to other SEN facilities 
including outdoor play. 
 

A14 Edgebury Primary 
School 
 

Project 
Complete (in 
defects period) 

Expansion of school from 1FE to 2FE through refurbishment of existing school 
and addition of new teaching and admin block. 
 

A16 Glebe Primary School 
 

Project 
Complete (in 
defects period 

2FE ASD expansion through provision of new 3 storey teaching block replacing 
existing single storey block. 
 

A17 Harris Academy Crystal 
Palace 

Project 
Complete 

Expansion from 1FE to 2FE through new accommodation and refurbishment. 
Final phase undertaken by Harris Federation. 

P
age 101



 School/Academy Project Status  Description 

A23 Keston Primary School 
 

Project 
Complete 

New classroom and associated spaces to accommodate bulge class admitted 
in 2012 and new MUGA. 

A43 Unicorn Primary School 
 

Project 
Complete (in 
defects period) 

Project funded with contributions from the school. Provides permanent 
accommodation to accommodate bulge class admitted in 2014, provides 
hygiene and storage space for pupils with SEN and a second school hall. 

A46 Worsley Bridge Primary 
School 
 

Project 
Complete (in 
defects period) 

School reorganised from an junior to primary school in 2014 and expanded 
from 2 to 3FE in 2015. Additional accommodation delivered through 
refurbishment and new teaching block 

B2 Bromley Beacon 
Academy (Orpington) 
 

Status: Project 
in Delivery 
(Funded) 
 

This project represents the final phase in the reorganisation of arrangements 
for education of children with Social Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) 
needs, phase 1 being the opening of Beacon House in 2016. 
 
This project expands and refurbishes the accommodation at the former 
Burwood School site to meet the needs of KS2 and KS3 pupils with a diagnosis 
of SEMH.   
 
The accommodation on site has historically been considerably under the size 
recommended by BB104, the DfEs guidelines for special school 
accommodation.  
 
The scheme now has planning consent. Detailed design works has been 
completed and the project cost updated. There is now sufficient funding to 
proceed with this scheme in its entirety. Due to the complexities of working at 
an operational SEMH school, works have been arranged across 3 phases over 
3 years, with works starting summer 2016. Bromley Beacon Academy have 
been successful in obtaining funding from the ESFA’s Condition Improvement 
Fund (CIF) to make improvements to the building services of the existing 
accommodation on site which will be delivered as part of this project. 

P
age 102



 School/Academy Project Status  Description 

B3 
B4 

Bishop Justus 
 

Project in 
Delivery 
(Funded) 

The scheme has planning consent and is now fully funded. It will enable the 
school to expand from 6 to 8 FE. Phase 1 of the project has started, but the 
contractor has recently entered insolvency. It is proposed that the remaining 
phase 1 works are tendered with the remaining phases as a single package of 
works. 

B5 Castlecombe Primary 
School 

Project in 
Delivery 
(Funded) 

The project has planning consent and construction of the scheme is currently 
underway. The scheme expands the school to 2FE in KS2, providing certainty 
for parents of children at Dorset Road by creating an admissions link between 
the two schools. Planning consent allows the expansion of KS1 to 2 FE if 
required at a later date. 

B8 Farnborough Primary 
School 

Project in 
Delivery 
(Funded) 

The permanent expansion of this school from 1 to 2 FE is cancelled following 
the failure of the scheme to obtain planning consent. Consideration is currently 
being considered to ascertain what modifications need to be made to provide 
sufficient space for 2 bulge classes as they pass through the school. 
 
The project budget has been reduced to reflect the reduction in the scope of 
any works. 

B9 Leesons Primary School 
 

Project in 
Delivery 
(Funded) 

The scheme has planning consent and the contract was recently let with works 
starting Summer 2017. The project will permanently expand the school from 1 
to 2 FE and provide a new nursery. The increased project cost reflects the final 
tender cost due in part to re-phasing and the need for temporary 
accommodation. 

B10 Oaklands Primary 
School 

Project in 
Delivery 
(Funded) 

Additional funding received will enable works to start on this project during 
2018. The works the local authority are seeking to progress at this stage are for 
a new early years block, part of the wider masterplan for the site that has 
planning consent. Without these works there would be insufficient suitable 
accommodation for the school to admit 3FE across each year group. 

 

P
age 103



 School/Academy Project Status  Description 

B11 Parish CE Primary 
School 
 

Project in 
Delivery 
(Funded) 

The main programme of the works to expand the school from 2 to 3 FE where 
completed in 2015, comprising a new modular classroom block. The remaining 
works comprise minor improvements to the school hall and kitchen. 

B12 Poverest Primary 
School  
 

Project in 
Delivery 
(Funded) 

The project to expand the school had planning consent and works have just 
started, expanding the school from 1 to 2 FE and providing additional nursery 
places. 
 
The project involves the development of a new dining block and entrance, 
refurbishment of the existing school and conversion of the existing dining block 
and children and family centre into a dedicated EYFS block. 

B13 St George’s CE Primary 
School 

Project in 
Delivery 
(Funded) 

The project is now at an advanced stage of construction with practical 
completion due in the autumn. The scheme expands the school from 1.5 to 2 
FE, utilising a redundant undercroft and the topography of the site, along with 
refurbishment of the existing accommodation, to provide the required additional 
teaching accommodation. 

B14 Stewart Fleming 
Primary School 
 

Project in 
delivery 

Planning consent has been achieved for permanent scheme. A planning 
application has been submitted for extension of temporary permission due to 
separation of works into two phases. 
 
Works on phase 1 works, new classroom block with rooftop MUGA, are 
progressing in line with programme. Phase 2 works to be procured 
summer/autumn 2017. 

B17 Tubbenden Primary 
School (SEN Unit) 

Project in 
delivery 

The project expands the existing SEN unit at the school, bringing together the 
former infant and primary classes at the school, improving hygiene and sensory 
facilities and providing a new outside play area. 

  

P
age 104



 School/Academy Project Status  Description 

B1 
B6 
B7 
B19 

Access Initiative 
 

Ongoing The local authority has a responsibility to provide support to enable children to 
access the curriculum who have and EHC plan. Most schemes involve minor 
adaptations, but there are some larger schemes such as at Balgowan Primary 
School, Coopers School and Crofton Junior School where more significant 
works such as the installation of lifts, hygiene rooms and structural works need 
to be undertaken.  

B15 
C1 

St John’s CE Primary 
School 
 

(Part Funded/ 
Unfunded) 

Proposal to expand school from 1.5 to 2 FE. School has took bulge class in 
2016. The scheme would also remove the last split year teaching in a non-rural 
Bromley School. Planning application being developed.  

B16 
C2 

Trinity CE Primary 
School 
 

(Part Funded/ 
Unfunded) 

Scheme has planning consent for a phased expansion from 2 to 4FE. 
Refurbishment works at former EDC currently delayed by delay in La Fontaine 
moving to the Widmore site. 

C3 Marian Vian Primary 
School 
 

Project in 
delivery 
(unfunded) 

Local authority originally undertook feasibility of expansion from 3 to 4FE and 
school admitted bulge classes in 2015 and 2016. However, currently there is no 
need for more school places due to 2 local Free Schools opening. Scheme 
being developed that would address present transports issues at site, the need 
to find a compliant use for the former Elmers End Children and Family Centre, 
provide accommodation for the bulge classes, replace the dilapidated Year 6 
block and if needed allow the school to expand at a later date. The scheme will 
be funded from S106 when it becomes available and CIF funding (if school 
successful in bids).   

C5 St Marys Cray School 
 

Project in 
delivery 
(unfunded) 

Feasibility originally investigated the options for expansion. However, there is 
currently insufficient local demand. Feasibility currently investigating where 
there is an option to redevelop the school, including the neighbouring former 
Duke Youth Centre.  

D1 Blenheim Primary 
School 

Project in 
development – 
on hold 

Feasibility undertaken on expansion of the school from 1 to 2FE following the 
school taking a bulge class in 2015. Preferred option agreed with school, but 
currently insufficient demand to progress scheme. Project in abeyance.  

P
age 105



 School/Academy Project Status  Description 

D2 Chislehurst St Nicholas 
 

Project in 
development – 
cancelled 

Feasibility undertaken on expansion of school from 1 to 2 FE due to local 
demand for additional primary places. Feasibility undertaken on relocation of 
school to new site owned by CE Diocese of Rochester and options expansion 
of existing site. Project suspended due to difficulties in developing any 
deliverable options.   

D3 Dorset Road Infants 
School 

Feasibility Feasibility undertaken on options for supporting the increase of the school’s 
PAN from 25 to 30 and addition of a school nursery. Linked to proposals being 
delivered at Castlecombe. Project current in abeyance due to lack of funding. 

D4 Green Street Green 
Primary School 

Feasibility Feasibility undertaken on options for expanding the school from 2 to 3 FE. 
Proposals currently in abeyance due to lack of demand and insufficient funding. 

D5 Mead Road Infants 
School  

Feasibility Feasibility undertaken. Feasibility study presented to William Willett Trust. The 
local authority has no plans to proceed with works at the school. 

D6 Ravens Wood School 
 

Feasibility Feasibility undertaken in partnership into expansion of the school. Currently 
insufficient need due to secondary Free Schools approved. 

 
 

P
age 106



APPENDIX 2  - Updated Capital Project Appraisal

B2  - BEACON ACADEMY ORPINGTON (PROCUREMENT)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Land Acquisition 0
Contract Payments - 

Phase 1 External 307 8 315
Contract Payments - 

Phase 2 New build 

block 750 2,470 83 3,303

Contract Payments - 

Phase 3 Refurbishment 868 22 890

Consultants Fees 36 170 61 36 14 317
Furniture and 

Equipment 80 80

Contingency 106 248 95 2 451

36 170 1,224 2,842 1,060 24 5,356

B3 & B4 - BISHOP JUSTUS (PROCUREMENT)

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Land Acquisition 0

Contract Payments -  

Phase 1 (Infill Block 1) 248 300 14 562
Contract Payments -  

Phase 2 (1st Floor 

Extension) 361 300 14 675
Contract Payments - 

Phase 3 (Hall + Car 

Park) 650 770 36 1,456
Contract Payments -

Phase 4 (2nd Floor 

Extension) 479 500 25 1,004

Consultants Fees 50 175 140 29 10 404
Furniture and 

Equipment 10 20 70 100

Contingency 0 0 25 179 158 8 370

50 185 433 2,068 1,752 83 4,571

Page 107



B5 CASTLECOMBE PRIMARY SCHOOL (UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Land Acquisition 0
Contract Payments - 

Temporary Works* 642 642
Contract Payments - 

MainContract 320 2,000 59 2,379

Consultant Fees 60 140 50 10 260
Furniture and 

Equipment 50 50

Contingency 96 200 6 302

60 1,248 2,250 75 3,633

B9 - LEESONS PRIMARY SCHOOL (UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Land Acquisition 0

Contract Payments 2,132 1,413 54 3,599

Consultant Fees 127 46 148 50 6 377

Furniture and 

Equipment
10 10 10 60 90

Contingency 213 141 6 360

137 56 2,503 1,664 66 4,426

B10 OAKLANDS PRIMARY SCHOOL (PRE PROCUREMENT)

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Land Acquisition 0

Contract Payments - 

Summer 2016 78 2
80

Main Contract 

Payments 339 1,000 34
1,373

Consultant Fees 197 35 15 2 249

Furniture and 

Equipment 10 10 10
30

Contingency 8 34 100 3 145

293 420 1,125 39 1,877

B12 POVEREST PRIMARY SCHOOL (UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Land Acquisition 0

Contract Payments 0 0 2,402 2,402 124 4,928

* Excludes Rental Cost (revenue cost) of temporary accommodation - these costs are included in Appendix 4

Page 108



Consultant Fees 69 125 25 25 6 250
Furniture and 

Equipment 0 0 10 30 0 40

Contingency 0 0 240 240 13 493

69 125 2,677 2,697 143 5,711

B13 - ST GEORGE'S BICKLEY CE PRIMARY SCHOOL (UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Land Acquisition 0

Contract Payments 750 1,492 57 2,299

Consultant Fees 50 29 23 3 105
Abortive 2 Stage Tender 

Fees 150 150
Furniture and 

Equipment 10 10 80 100

Contingency 75 149 6 230

210 864 1,744 66 2,884

B14 - STEWART FLEMING PRIMARY SCHOOL (PHASE 1 UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total

(£'000s) (£'000s) (£'000s) (£'000s) (£'000s) (£'000s)

Land Acquisition 0

Contract Payments - 

Phase 1
1,840 920 71 2,831

Contract Payments - 

Phase 2
2,703 1,351 104 4,158

Fees 200 150 179 160 10 699

Universal Free School 

Meals
100 100

Furniture and 

Equipment 
50 50 100

Contingency 0 184 363 142 10 699

200 2,174 4,315 1,774 124 8,587

Page 109



B15 / C1 - ST JOHN'S CE PRIMARY SCHOOL - DETAILED DESIGN/CONSTRUCTION

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Land Acquisition 0

Summer 2016 Works* 35 35

Summer 2017 Works 200 200

Contract Payments 524 3,000 90 3,614

Consultants Fees 0 4 272 100 9 385
Furniture and 

Equipment 10 10 30 50

Contingency 0 4 72 300 9 385

0 53 1,078 3,430 108 4,669

*Summer 2016 works shown in Completed Works

Page 110



B17 - TUBBENDEN PRIMARY SCHOOL (PROCUREMENT)

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Land Acquisition 0
Temporary 

Accommodation 95 2 97
Main Contract 

Payments 831 21 852

Consultants Fees 24 58 2 84
Furniture and 

Equipment 75 75

Contingency 0 93 2 95

24 1,152 27 1,203

C3 - MARIAN VIAN (PROJECT IN DEVELOPMENT (UNFUNDED)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

0

94

199

465

941

410

1,226

50 100 50 50 84 334

0

334

50 100 50 50 84 4,003

Consultants Fees

Furniture and Equipment

Contingency

Contract Payments - Phase 1 (Car 

Drop Off Bays)
Contract Payments - Phase 2 (Junior 

Block Refurbishment)
Contract Payments - Phase 3 

(Children and Family Centre 

Refurbishment)
Contract Payments - Phase 4 (New 4 

Class Extension and Associated 

Refurbishment of Infant Block)

Contract Payments - Phase 5 

(Demolish Nursery, New Carparking 

and External Works)
Contract Payments - Phase 6 (New 

Year 6 Classroom Block and Car Park 

Works)

Land Acquisition

Page 111



This page is left intentionally blank



APPENDIX 3: SECTION 106 SCHEDULE 
 
Public 
Register 
Reference 

Development S106 
Agreement 
Education 
Clause 

How the money 
will be allocated 

Justification Works 
Period 

Value of 
Works 

S106 Contribution 

178 Ravensbourne 
College 
(instalment 1, 2 
& 3 of 5) 

For the 
provision of or 
the 
improvement 
of secondary 
educational 
facilities within 
the London 
Borough of 
Bromley and 
for no other 
purpose. 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 
Bishop Justus 
School 

Need for additional 
secondary places 
in Bromley. The 
school is 
undergoing a 
phased expansion 
from 6 to 8FE 

2017-19 Estimated 
project cost 
£3,901,000 
, 

£330,000 

178 Ravensbourne 
College 
(instalment 4 of 
5) 

For the 
provision of or 
the 
improvement 
of secondary 
educational 
facilities within 
the London 
Borough of 
Bromley and 
for no other 
purpose. 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 
Bishop Justus 
School 

Need for additional 
secondary places 
in Bromley. The 
school is 
undergoing a 
phased expansion 
from 6 to 8FE 

2017-19 Estimated 
project cost 
£3,901,000 
 

£110,000 

  

P
age 113



Public 
Register 
Reference 

Development S106 
Agreement 
Education 
Clause 
 

How the money 
will be allocated 

Justification Works 
Period 

Value of 
Works 

S106 Contribution 

178 Ravensbourne 
College 
(instalment 5 of 
5) 

For the 
provision of or 
the 
improvement 
of secondary 
educational 
facilities within 
the London 
Borough of 
Bromley and 
for no other 
purpose. 
 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 
Bishop Justus 
School 

Need for additional 
secondary places 
in Bromley. The 
school is 
undergoing a 
phased expansion 
from 6 to 8FE) 

2017-19 Estimated 
project cost 
£3,901,000 
 

£110,000 

  

P
age 114



Public 
Register 
Reference 

Development S106 
Agreement 
Education 
Clause 

How the money 
will be allocated 

Justification Works 
Period 

Value of 
Works 

S106 Contribution 

186 Blue Circle 
(additional to 
£250,000 
installment 
agreed in 2014) 

To apply the 
Phase 1 and 2 
joint Education 
Payments and 
interest 
towards 
additional dual 
use 
recreational 
and/or social 
and/or 
community 
facilities and/or 
educational 
facilities on the 
School Land or 
on the sites of 
any other 
maintained 
secondary 
schools in the 
Council’s 
administrative 
area but with 
first priority 
being given to 
projects on the 
School Land. 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 
Trinity CE Primary 
Schools (formerly 
Princes Plain 
Primary School)l 
from 2FE to 4FE). 
Building works to 
take place during 
Summer 2016 and 
post July 2017 
when La Fontaine 
Primary Academy 
have vacated site. 
Agreed Exec April 
2014 

Need for additional 
primary school 

places in Bromley 
Common and 
Keston and 

surrounding wards 

2017-19 £3,600,000 
 

£257,531 

P
age 115



Public 
Register 
Reference 

Development S106 
Agreement 
Education 
Clause 

How the money 
will be allocated 

Justification Works 
Period 

Value of 
Works 

S106 Contribution 

223 Anerley School 
for Boys, 
Versialles Rd 
Penge (Blocks 
A, B & C) 

To use the 
Education 
Contribution 
only for the 
purposes of a 
contribution 
towards the 
cost of the 
provision of 
secondary 
education 
school places 
in the London 
Borough of 
Bromley. 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 
Bishop Justus 
School  

Need for additional 
secondary places 
in Bromley. The 
school is 
undergoing a 
phased expansion 
from 6 to 8FE 

2017-19 Estimated 
project cost 
£3,901,000 
 

£91,176 

274 Denton Court, 
60 Birch Row 

The sum of 
£205,231 to be 
spent on 
education in 
the London 
Borough of 
Bromley. 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 
Bishop Justus 
School 

Need for additional 
secondary places 
in Bromley. The 
school is 
undergoing a 
phased expansion 
from 6 to 8FE 

2017-19 Estimated 
project cost 
£3,901,000 
 

£205,231 
 

  

P
age 116



Public 
Register 
Reference 

Development S106 
Agreement 
Education 
Clause 

How the money 
will be allocated 

Justification Works 
Period 

Value of 
Works 

S106 Contribution 

301 47 Homesdale 
Road 

Towards the 
provision of 
education and 
for no other 
purpose. 
 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion 
works at St 
George’s Bickley 
CE Primary School 
which will expand 
from 1.5 to 2 FE. 

Need for additional 
Primary School 
Place in central 
Bromley  

2017-18 Estimated 
project cost 
£2,884,000, 

£53,590 

303 2 Betts Way To use the 
contribution for 
educational 
purposes 
within the 
vicinity of the 
site. 
 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 
Stewart Fleming 
Primary School 
from 2FE to 3FE 

Need for school 
places in Penge 

and Anerley 

2017-19 Estimated 
Total Project 
Cost 
£8,587,000. 

£83,826 

334 Hayes Court, 
West Common 
Road 

No clause for 
contribution 
use. 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 

the Phase 3 of 
expansion works at 

Bishop Justus 
School which will 

provide a new 
School Hall and 
external Work 

Need for additional 
secondary places 
in Bromley. The 

school is 
undergoing a 

phased expansion 
from 6 to 8FE 

2017-19 Estimated 
project cost 
£3,901,000 
 

£103,827 

  

P
age 117



Public 
Register 
Reference 

Development S106 
Agreement 
Education 
Clause 

How the money 
will be allocated 

Justification Works 
Period 

Value of 
Works 

S106 Contribution 

296A Land at rear of 
86-94 High St 
Beckenham 

To be used 
towards 
education 
provision 
within the 
locality. 
 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
additional class 
costs at Marian 

Vian School. 

Need for additional 
School Places in 

Beckenham 

2017-19 To Add £182,389 

323 Sheila Stead 
House 

£18,268 
towards the 
provision of 
Pre-School 
Education 
within the 
vicinity of the 
development. 
 
£70,971 
towards the 
provision of 
Primary 
School 
Education 
within the 
vicinity of the 
development. 
 
£56,141 
towards the 

Pre School 
Contribution to be 
provided to new 

nursery at Leesons 
Primary School 

(delivered as part 
of school 
expansion 
scheme). 

 
Primary 

Contribution will 
support the 

expansion of 
Edgebury School 

from 1 to 2FE 
 

 
Secondary and 
16+ allocation will 
support phase 3 

Need for nursery 
places in 

Chislehurst and 
surround areas 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Need for primary 
school places in 
Chislehurst and 
surround areas 

 

2017-18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2 
 
 
 
016-18 
 
 
 

Estimated 
Contract 
value 
£3,606,459. 
Estimated 
project cost 
£4,414,355, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated 
Contract 
value 
£3,856,000. 
Estimated 

£169,965 

P
age 118



provision of 
secondary 
school 
education 
within the 
vicinity of the 
development. 
 
£24,585 
towards the 
provision of 
16+ further 
education 
within the 
vicinity of the 
development. 
  

works at Bishop 
Justus School  

 
 
 
 

Need for 
secondary and 16+ 
places in Bromley 

 

 
 
 
 
 
2017-19 

project cost 
£4,536,000, 
 
 
 
Estimated 
project cost 
£3,483,200, 

302 Day Centre, 
Chipperfield Rd 

£34,896 
towards the 
provision of 
pre-school 
education 
within the 
vicinity of the 
development. 
 
£131,752 
towards the 
provision of 
primary school 
education 
within the 

school allocations 
will support the 

expansion of pre 
school and primary 
places at Leesons 

Primary School 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Secondary and 
16+ allocation will 
support phase 4 

Need for primary 
School places in 
Cray Valley 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Need for 
secondary and 16+ 

2017-18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2018-19 

Estimated 
Contract 
value 
£3,606,459. 
Estimated 
project cost 
£4,414,355, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated 

£335,511 

P
age 119



vicinity of the 
development. 
 
£116,044 
towards the 
provision of 
secondary 
school 
education 
within the 
vicinity of the 
development. 
 
£52,819 
towards the 
provision of 
16+ further 
education 
within the 
vicinity of the 
development. 
 

works at Bishop 
Justus School 

places in Bromley 
 

Contract 
value 
£911,000. 
Estimated 
project cost 
£1,133,000, 
 

321 Sunridge Park 
Management 
Centre Ltd 
(instalment 1 of 
2)  

Towards the 
provision of 
school places 
within the 
London 
Borough of 
Bromley. 
 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 

the expansion of St 
Georges CE 

Primary School 
from 1.5FE to 2FE. 

Need for additional 
Primary School 
Place in central 

Bromley  

2017-18 Estimated 
Contract 
value 
£2,299,000. 
Estimated 
project cost 
£2,884,000, 

£50,233 

324 1 Chilham Way Towards the 
provision of 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 

Need for 
secondary school 

2017-19 Estimated 
Contract 

£283,047 
 

P
age 120



education and 
for no other 
purpose. 
 

the Phase 3 of 
expansion works at 

Bishop Justus 
School which will 

provide a new 
School Hall and 
external Works 

places in Bromley value 
£1,313,000. 
Estimated 
project cost 
£1,575,600, 

327 Oakfield 
Centre, 
Oakfield Road, 
Penge, London 
SE20 8QA 

To be used 
towards the 
provision of 
education in 
the London 
Borough of 
Bromley and 
for no other 
purpose. 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 
Stewart Fleming 
Primary School 
from 2 to 3FE   

Need for primary 
school places in 

Bromley 

2016-19 Project cost 
£8,587,000 

£211,618 

333 Isard House, 
Glebe House 
Drive, Hayes, 
Bromley BR2 
7BW 

Towards 
Appropriate 
and necessary 
school 
provision as 
determined by 
the Council. 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 

the Phase 3 of 
expansion works at 

Bishop Justus 
School which will 

provide a new 
School Hall and 
external Works 

Need for 
secondary school 
places in Bromley 

2017-19 Estimated 
Contract 
value 
£1,313,000. 
Estimated 
project cost 
£1,575,600, 

£113,025 

344 The Rising 
Sun, 166 upper 
Elmers End 
Road, 
Beckenham, 
BR3 3DY 

The provision 
of education 
facilities and/or 
the 
improvement 
of and/or 
support for 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 
Stewart Fleming 
Primary School 
from 2 to 3 FE  

Need for primary 
school places in 

Bromley 

2015-
2019 

Project costs 
£8,587,000 
 

£44,360 

P
age 121



existing 
education 
facilities within 
the 
administrative 
area of the 
Council. 

367 Summit House 
Glebe Way, 
West Wickham, 
BR4 0RJ 

£66,064 
towards the 
provision of 
new facilities 
and/or the 
improvement 
of and/or 
support for 
existing 
facilities at 
Hawes Down 
Junior School, 
The Mead, 
West 
Wickham, 
Kent, BR4 
0BA. 
 
£88,4626 
towards the 
provision of 
new facilities 
and/or the 
improvement 
of and/or 

Contribution has 
been allocated to 
the expansion of 

Hawes Down 
Junior School by 1 
mainstream and 1 
SEN Unit Class 
and a 2FE ASD 

expansion of 
Glebe School  

Need for primary 
and SEN primary 
and secondary 

school places in 
Bromley 

2015-
2017 

Hawes Down 
Junior 
School, 
Project Cost 
£829,325. 
Glebe Project 
Cost 
£4,887,000 

£154,526 

P
age 122



support for 
existing 
facilities at 
Glebe School, 
Hawes Lane, 
West 
Wickham, 
Bromley, Kent, 
BR4 9AE. 

       £2,889,855 

 

P
age 123



T
his page is left intentionally blank



BASIC NEED PROGRAMME 2011-18

Basic Need
SEND 

Capital
Other

Cost March 

2016
Change Explanation

A1

Balgown 

Primary 

School

Conversion of 

existing space 

to form single 

bulge class 

Bulge Class 2014 Complete £10,000 £10,000 £10,000 £0

A2

Beacon 

House 

(Beacon 

Academy)

Refurbishment 

of site to 

provide 

vocational offer 

and extend 

services to KS2 

and girls. 

SEN 

Expansion
2015-16 Final Account £4,897,412 £197,412 £4,700,000 DSG £5,277,000 -£379,588 Estimated 

final account 

below 

estimated 

project cost

A3

Bickley 

Primary 

School

Kitchen and 

servery works 

to complete 

expansion to 

full 2FE 

Permanent 

Expansion
2010-11 Complete £103,000 £103,000 £103,000 £0

A4

Blenheim 

Primary 

School

Minor works to 

support 

admission of 

additional 

pupils

Bulge Class 2014 Complete £9,983 £9,983 £10,000 -£17

A5

Bromley 

Road 

Primary

Internal 

remodelling/ 

refurbishment 

to provide 

accommodatio

n for the re-

organised 

school 

Change of 

age range + 

linked to 

Worsley 

Bridge

2015-16 Defects £1,124,988 £1,124,988 £1,006,000 £118,988

Additional 

Final costs 

resulting 

from dealing 

with historic 

nature of 

building

School
Description of 

Works
Type Year (S) Status Project Cost

Funding Sources

Description

Budget Changes

Completed Projects

P
age 125



A6

Burnt Ash 

Primary 

School

Internal SEN 

unit 

modifications 

to address 

OfSTED 

recommendati

ons 

SEN 2013 Complete £50,000 £50,000 £50,000 £0

A7

Churchfiel

ds 

Primary 

School

Interbal 

refurbishment, 

infill expansion, 

new nursery 

block

3 x bulge 

class, 1FE 

permanent 

expension

2011-16 Complete £1,367,000 £1,367,000 £1,367,000 £0

A8

Clare 

House 

Primary 

School

Internal 

modifications 

to existung 

school, 3 

temporary 

classroom 

units, 

demolition of 

existing school 

and 

construction of 

new 2FE school 

building.

3 x bulge 

class, 1FE 

permanent 

expension

2011-2016 Defects £6,756,736 £6,627,736 £129,000 DSG £7,000,000 -£243,264
Amalgamate

d cost of all 

works. 

Estimated 

final account 

below 

estimated 

project cost

A9

Coopers 

School

Feasibility into 

options for 

expansion

Feasibiity 2015 Feasibility £5,000 £5,000 £5,000 £0

A10

Crofton 

InfantSch

ool

New build class 

and facilities 

for additional 

‘Busy Bees’ 

class

Additional 

SEN Unit 

Class

2014 Complete £409,000 £384,000 £25,000
Access 

Initiative
£475,000 -£66,000

Estimated 

final account 

below 

estimated 

project cost

P
age 126



A11

Darrick 

Wood 

School

AccessWorks - 

acoustic 

partitions and 

associated 

ICT/M&E works 

SEN 2012 Complete £45,000 £45,000 £45,000 £0

A12

Darrick 

Wood 

Infants 

School Review of space at school 

Site 

sufficiency
2014

Complete £3,395 £3,395 £4,000 -£605

A13

Darrick 

Wood 

Junior 

School Review of space at school 

Site 

sufficiency
2014

Complete £3,395 £3,395 £4,000 -£605

A14

Edgebury 

Primary 

School

New build to 

support 

expansion from 

1 FE to 2 FE 

Permanent 

Expansion
2016 Defects £4,455,174 £4,290,703 £164,471

S106 & 

Planned 

Maintenanc

e

£4,536,000 -£80,826

A15

Farnborou

gh 

Primary 

School

Internal 

refurbishment 

and FF&E

2 x bulge 

classes
2015 & 2016 Defects £70,000 £70,000 £9,000 £61,000

Costs 

associated 

with second 

bulge class 

(2016)

A16 Glebe

New classroom 

block to 

support 2FE 

ASD secondary 

expansion

SEN 

Expansion
2015-16 Defects £4,887,000 £0 £4,887,000

DSG, 

School,S10

6

£4,887,000 £0P
age 127



A17

Harris 

Primary 

Academy 

Crystal 

Palace

Minor 

refurbishment 

and temporary 

toilet unit to 

facilitate an 

extra form of 

entry in 2011 & 

2012. Internal 

refurbishment 

and external 

works to 

Permanent 

support 

permanennt 

expansion of 

school

3 x bulge 

classes and 

permanent 

expansion

2011-2016 Complete £1,159,488 £1,138,688 £20,800 DSG £1,134,000 £25,488
Almagamate

d Costs all 

Phases. 

Estimated 

final account 

and 

associated 

costs above 

estimated 

project cost

A18

Harris 

Primary 

Academy 

Kent 

House

Modular 

accommodatio

n to provide an 

additional form 

of entry in 

2011.

Bulge Class 2011 Complete £263,000 £263,000 £263,000 £0

A19

Harris 

Primary 

Academy 

Orpington

Works to SEN 

Unit
SEN 2010/11 Complete £100,000 £57,000 £43,000

Primary 

Capital 

Programme

£100,000 £0

A20

Hawes 

Down 

Infants 

School

Internal 

refurbushment

s for single 

bulge class

Bulge Class 2012 Complete £115,000 £115,000 £115,000 £0

P
age 128



A21

Hawes 

Down 

Junior 

School

Additional class 

to admit hulge 

class from 

infant school 

and SEN Unit 

class

Bulge Class 2015 Complete £829,325 £763,261 £66,064 S106 £861,000 -£31,675
Estimated 

final account 

below 

estimated 

project cost

A22

James 

Dixon 

Primary 

School

Temporary 

reception block 

and relocation 

of contact 

centre

2 x Bulge 

Class
2014 & 2015 Complete £851,631 £729,951 £121,680 DSG £740,000 £111,631

Additional 

costs of 

works and 

extending 

modular 

rental

A23

Keston CE 

Primary 

School

nternal and 

external works 

to provide 

permanent 

facilities for 

2012 class. 

Bulge class 2012 Complete £935,804 £935,804 £997,000 -£61,196

Estimated 

final account 

below 

estimated 

project cost

A24

Langley 

Park 

School for 

Boys

Internal 

refurbishment

Bulge class 2015 Complete £56,000 £56,000 £56,000 £0

A25

Leesons 

Primary 

School

Internal 

refurbishment 

and FF&E

3 x Bulge 

Class
2014-16 Complete £30,000 £30,000 £20,000 £10,000 Additional 

bulge class

A26

Marian 

Vian 

Primary 

School

Internal works 

and FF&E For 

Bulge class in 

advance of new 

facilities being 

brought

forward.

2 x Bulge 

Class
2015 & 2016 Complete £58,140 £58,140 £50,000 £8,140

Final bulge 

class costs 

above 

estimate

P
age 129



A27

Midfield 

Primary 

School

Internal 

refurbishment, 

new classroom 

block and 

nursery

3 x bulge 

classes and 

permanent 

expansion

2012 -2015 Complete £1,624,077 £1,606,277 £17,800 S106 £1,703,000 -£78,923

Combined 

cost of all 

phases 

below 

estimate

A28

Mottingha

m Primary 

School

Internal 

refurbishment, 

kitchen and 

utilities works

KS2 bulge 

classes
2014 & 2015 Complete £1,019,340 £1,019,340 £1,030,000 -£10,660

Combined 

cost of all 

phases 

below 

estimate

A29

Oaklands 

Primary 

School

Conversion of 

former KS1 

classroom to 

kitchen

Ensuring 

Sufficient 

Accommoda

tion

2016 Defects £97,086 £97,086 £0 £97,086

New scheme

A30

Parish CE 

Primary 

School

3 New recption 

classrooms, 

new teaching 

block and 

secondary path  

to support 2 to 

3FE expansion 

Permanent 

Expansion
2012 -2014 Complete £3,509,000 £3,509,000 £3,950,000 -£441,000

Reduction 

against 

estimated 

cost and 

final phase 

kitchen 

works being 

delivered as 

a separate 

contact

A31

Poverest 

Primary 

School

Internal 

refurbishments

3 x Bulge 

Class
2014-16 Complete £81,650 £81,650 £80,000 £1,650

Final bulge 

class costs 

above 

estimate

A32

Red Hill 

Primary 

School

Improvement 

of toilet 

facilities to 

support 

increase in 

pupil numbers 

Bulge Class 2012 Complete £57,000 £57,000 £57,000 £0

P
age 130



A33

Ravensbo

urne 

School

Move Gym to 

provide new 

classroom 
Bulge Class 2015-16 Defects £950,890 £950,890 £945,000 £5,890

A34

Riverside 

School

New school hall 

and ASD 

specific 

entrance 

SEN 

Expansion
2013-14 Final Account £1,220,000 £817,147 £402,853 S106 £1,220,000 £0

A35

Scotts 

Park 

Primary 

School

Refurbishment 

of early years 

area and 

temporary 

accommodatio

n block 

4 x Bulge 

Class
2012-14 Complete £498,000 £463,000 £35,000 S106 £498,000 £0

A36

St 

George's 

CE 

Primary 

School

Conversion of 

existing space 

to form single 

bulge class 

Bulge Class 2015 Complete £30,000 £30,000 £10,000 £20,000

Cost of FF&E 

for 

additional 

bulge 

classes

A37

St John's 

CE 

Primary 

School

Reception 

Block 

Refurbishment

Bulge Class 2016 £35,000 £35,000 £0 £35,000
New 

scheme/bulg

e class

A38

St Mark's 

CE 

Primary 

School

Refurbishment 

of reception 

classrooms 

Suitability 2013 Complete £135,000 £135,000 £135,000 £0

A39

St Marys 

Cray 

Primary 

School

Minor works to 

support 

admission of 

additional 

pupils

Additional 

Pupils
2012 Complete £11,000 £11,000 £11,000 £0

A40

St Paul's 

Cray CE 

Primary 

SChool 

Mixed 

refurbishment 

and new build 

to allow 

expansion from 

1 to 2 FE 

Permanent 

Expansion
2015 Complete £2,561,720 £2,462,199 £99,521

Early Year 

Capital, 

Seed 

Challenge, 

UKPN

£2,522,000 £39,720
Below 

original 

2015 

estimate of 

£2,589,000

P
age 131



A41

Stewart 

Fleming 

Primary 

School

Temporary 

accommodatio

n block and 

internal 

refurbishment

2 x Bulge 

Class plus 

decant 

accommoda

tion

2015 Complete £795,000 £421,000 £374,000 £366,000 £429,000

Includes cost 

of 

temporary 

accommoda

tion and 

extended 

rental period

A42

Trinity CE 

Primary 

School

Refurbishment 

of classes in 

EDC 

accommodatio

n

Bulge Class 2013-16 Complete £1,781,772 £1,131,772 £650,000
S106, EFA & 

DSG
£1,991,000 -£209,228

Cost of 

temporary 

accommoda

tion, 

refurbishme

nt and 

MUGA

A43

Unicorn 

Primary 

School

Temporary 

Classroom and 

new build 

expansion to 

ensure 

sufficient hall 

space, new 

classroom 

accomodation 

for 'bulge' class 

and hygiene 

facilities 

Bulge Class 2015 Complete £1,438,000 £1,410,000 £28,000 DSG £1,438,000 £0

A44

Valley 

Primary 

School

Modular 

accommodatio

n to facilitate 

an extra form 

of entry in 

2011 & 2012. 

Bulge Class 2011 Complete £353,000 £353,000 £353,000 £0

A45

Widmore 

Center

Review of 

accommodatio

n
Feasibility Complete £7,000 £7,000 £7,000 £0

P
age 132



A46

Worsley 

Pridge 

Primary 

School

Temporary 

modular 

classrooms for 

additional 2 

classes in 2013, 

refurbishment 

and extension

Permanent 

Expansion 

and School 

Re-

organisation

2013-16 Complete £4,850,718 £4,756,718 £94,000 DSG £4,755,000 £95,718

A47

The 

Highway 

Primary 

School

Contingency to 

cover over-

spend on 

project 

Suitability 2010-11 Complete £650,000 £650,000 £650,000 £0

A48

Capitalise

d Staffing 

Costs

Capitalised 

Project 

Management 

Costs 

n/a 2013-16 n/a £300,000 £300,000 £109,000 £191,000

£50,600,724 £38,742,535 £0 £11,858,189

Basic Need
SEND 

Capital
Other

Cost March 

2016
Change Explanation

B1

Balgowan 

Primary 

School Access Works - 

Access 

initiative
2017 Planning £200,000 £200,000 £0 £200,000

New Scheme

B2

Beacon 

Academy 

(Orpingto

n Phase 1 

& 2)

Expansion of 

provision to 

KS2 

Permanent 

Expansion
2017 Procurement £5,355,800 £5,048,400 £307,400 CIF Funding £3,125,000 £2,230,800

B3

Bishop 

Justus 

(Phase 1)

Phase 1 

expansion 

(Infill Block) + 

Summer 2015 

Permanent 

Expansion
2016-17 Construction £670,000 £670,000 £677,000 -£7,000

Cost of Completed Schemes

SchoolDescription of Works Type Year (S) Project Cost

Funding Sources

Description

Budget Changes

Projects in Delivery (Funded)

Status

P
age 133



B4

Bishop 

Justus 

(Phase 2-

4)

1st and 2nd 

Floor and Hall 

Extension Block

Permanent 

Expansion
2017-19 Procurement £3,901,000 £2,305,105 £1,595,895 S106 £4,271,000 -£370,000

B5

Castlecom

be 

Primary 

School

Permanent 

expansion of 

the school to 

2FE in KS2 

including 

temporary 

accommodatio

n

Temporary 

Accomodati

on

2016-17 Construction £3,820,370 £3,633,170 £187,200 DSG £3,862,000 -£41,630

Cost of 

combind 

temporary 

and 

permanent 

works

B6

Crofton 

Junior 

School

Access Works - 

New hygiene 

room, lift and 

ramps

Access 

initiative
2017 Planning £272,566 £272,566 £272,566

New Scheme

B7

Coopers 

Schools Access Works
Access 

initiative
2017 Procurement £150,000 £150,000 £150,000

B8

Farnborou

gh 

Primary 

School

Following 

failure to 

obtain planning 

consent works 

to bring school 

up to standard 

to 

accommodate 

2 bulge classes

Bulge 

Classes
2017-18 Design £1,500,000 £1,500,000 £5,084,000 -£3,584,000

Uplift in cost 

due to 

planning 

delays

P
age 134



B9

Leesons 

Primary 

School

Refurbishment 

of area 

seprated from 

former day 

care centre and 

new teaching 

block to 

support 1 to 2 

FE expansion

Permanent 

Expansion
2017-18 Procurement £4,426,000 £3,816,216 £609,784

S106, Early 

Years 

Capital and 

Seed 

Challenge

£3,347,000 £1,079,000

Increased 

cost 

identified 

durinmg 

detailed 

design and 

requirement 

for 

temporary 

accommoda

tion

B10 Oaklands

Provision of 

New reception 

block to ensure 

school has 

sufficient pupil 

accommodatio

n

Sufficiency 

and 

Suitability

2017-19 Procurement £1,877,300 £1,877,300 £1,877,300

Only Phase 1 

being 

delivered

B11

Parish 

Primary 

School

Kitchen works 

to support 2 to 

3FE expansion 

£146,620 £146,620 £0 £146,620

B12

Poverest 

Primary 

School

New 

accomodation 

block and 

refurbiushment 

of dining hall 

and CFC to 

form new early 

years block, 

enabling 1 to 2 

FE expansion

Permanent 

Expansion
2017-18 Procurement £5,710,734 £5,043,734 £667,000

S106, Early 

Years 

Capital and 

School 

Contributio

n

£4,772,000 £938,734 Higher costs 

for external 

works and 

requirement

s of planning 

consent.

P
age 135



B13

St 

George's 

CE 

Primary 

School

Refurbishment 

and new 

accommodatio

n block to 

enaable 

expansion 1.5 

FE to 2 FE 

Permanent 

Expansion
2017 Procurement £2,884,000 £2,780,177 £103,823 S106 £2,182,000 £702,000

Construction 

inflation, 

potenrial 

risks around 

contaminate

d land and 

consequenti

al 

improvemen

ts require

B14

Stewart 

Fleming 

Primary 

School 

(Phase 

1&2)

Demolition, 

new classroom 

block and 

refurbishment 

to enable 2 to 

3FE expansion

Permanent 

Expansion
2016-18

Construction

/ 

Procuremen

t

£8,587,000 £8,097,196 £489,804
School & 

S106
£8,587,000 £0 Phase 2 to 

be tendered 

Summer 

2017

B15

St John's 

CE 

Primary 2 

Classroom 

refurbish

ment

Works during 

Summer 2017 

to convert 

smaller spaces 

into classrooms

Bulge 

Classes
£200,000 £200,000 £0 £200,000

New Scheme

B16

Trinity CE 

Primary 

School EDC Block Refurbishment

Permanent 

Expansion
£800,000 £542,671 £257,329 S106 £800,000

Single Phase 

of major 

works. 

Delayed due 

to La 

Fontaine 

remaining 

on site

P
age 136



B17

Tubbende

n Primary 

School

New unit 

classroom and 

ancillary 

accommodatio

n

SEN 

Expansion
2017 Feasibility £1,203,000 £0 £1,161,000 £42,000 School £0 £1,203,000

Previously in 

programme 

but no 

budget 

estimate

B18

Projects In 

Developm

ent

n/a Feasibility £1,000,000 £1,000,000 £1,000,000

B19

Access 

Intiative 

2016-19
n/a Programme £150,000 £150,000 £150,000

Capitalise

d Staffing 

Costs 

2017-2019

n/a n/a £300,000 £300,000 £300,000

£43,154,390 £37,733,155 £1,161,000 £4,260,235

£2,085,220 £2,085,220

£39,818,375

£78,560,910

£79,176,224 £2,596,530

£615,314 £1,435,530

£7,247,390

Basic Need SEN Other
Cost March 

2016
Change Explanation

C1

St John's 

CE 

Primary 

School

Refurbishment 

and new 

accommodatio

n block to 

enaable 

expansion 1.5 

FE to 2 FE 

Permanent 

Expansion
2017-18 Feasibility £4,430,300 £4,430,300

Description

Budget Changes

Projects in Delivery (Unfunded)

Cost of schemes in delivery

Programme Contingency (5%)

In delivery (Funded) Schemes Total

Completed Schemes and In delivery Schemes Total

Current i) Basic Need Scheme Budget ii) SEN capital Budget

SchoolDescription of Works Type Year (S) Status

Remaining i) Basic Need Scheme Budget ii) SEN capital Budget

Changes to programme in delivery

Project Cost

Funding SourcesP
age 137



C2

Trinity CE 

Primary 

School

Remaining 

Phases for 

expansion to 

4FE

Permanent 

Expansion
2017 -

Post 

Planning
£3,600,000 £3,600,000

C3

Marian 

Vian 

Primary 

School

TBC £4,002,000 £4,002,000

C4

Scotts 

Park 

Primary 

School

New classroom 

block to 

complete 2 to 3 

FE expansion

Permanent 

Expansion
TBC

On 

hold/Plannin

g

£2,970,000 £2,970,000

C5

St Mary 

Cary

Re-organisation 

of school and 

Duke Youth 

Centre

Re- 

developmen

t

TBC Feasibility £2,970,000 £2,970,000

17,972,300 17,972,300 0 0

Basic Need SEN Other
Cost March 

2016
Change Explanation

D1

Blenheim 

Primary 

School

Feasibility on 

options to 

expand the 

school

Potential 

Expansion

On hold Feasibility

2,972,000 2,972,000

D2

Chislehurs

t St 

Nicholas

Expansion of 

School to 2FE 

Primary School

Potential 

Relocation 

and 

Expansion

On hold Feasibility

£7,220,000 £6,220,000 £1,000,000

Estimated 

Capital 

Receipt

D3

Dorset 

Road

Works to allow 

school to admit 

30 in each class

Potential 

Expansion

On hold Feasibility

£0

Description

Budget Changes

Projects in Development

Total cost of schemes in delivery

School
Description of 

Works
Type Year (S) Status Project Cost

Funding Sources

P
age 138



D4

Green 

Street 

Green

Feasibility on 

options to 

expand the 

school

from 2FE to 

3FE

Potential 

Expansion

On hold Feasibility

£2,972,000 £2,972,000

D5

Mead 

Road 

Infants 

School

Options to 

ensure 

sufficient 

places at KS2 

transfer

Potential 

Expansion

On hold Feasibility

£0

D6

Ravens 

Wood 

School

Expansion of 

Secondary 

School by 2FE

Potential 

Expansion

On hold Feasibility

£0

D7

Oaklands 

Primary 

School

Later Stages of 

Development

Potential 

Expansion

On hold
Post 

planning
£5,456,700 £5,456,700

£18,620,700 £17,620,700 £0 £1,000,000

£130,348,114 £114,153,910 £1,161,000 £17,118,424

£77,773,224 £2,596,530

£52,574,890 £36,380,686 -£1,435,530

Cost of Schemes in development

Total Programme Cost

Current Basic Need/SEN

Potential Funding Gap

P
age 139



T
his page is left intentionally blank



  

1 

Report No. 
ED18008 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: EDUCATION, CHILDREN AND FAMILIES BUDGET AND 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING SUB-COMMITTEE 

Date:  18th July 2017 

Decision Type: Non-Urgent 
 

Executive  
 

Non-Key 
 

Title: PROVISIONAL OUTTURN REPORT 2016/17 
 

Contact Officer: David Bradshaw, Head of Education, Care & Health Services Finance 
Tel: 020 8313 4807    E-mail:  David.Bradshaw@bromley.gov.uk 
 

Chief Officer: Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director ECHS 

Ward: (All Wards); 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 This report provides the provisional outturn position for 2016/17. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 The Education, Children and Families Budget and Performance Monitoring Sub 
committee are invited to: 

(i) Note that there was an underspend of £109,000 on controllable expenditure at the 
end of 2016/17 and consider any issues arising from it; 

(ii) Note that the Executive on the 20th June have agreed the net carry forwards as 
detailed in Appendix 2. 

 

2.2 The Portfolio Holder is asked to: 
 

(i) Endorse the 2016/17 provisional outturn position for the Education Services 
Portfolio.

Page 141

Agenda Item 8



  

2 

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Not Applicable  
 

2. BBB Priority: Children and Young People  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Not Applicable:  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Care Services Portfolio 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £632k 
 

5. Source of funding: Care Services Approved Budget 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 341 Full time equivilent   
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement  
 

2. Call-in: Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): The 2016/17 budget reflects 
the financial impact of the Council's strategies, service plans etc. which impact on all of the 

 Council's customers (including council tax payers) and users of the services  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 142



  

3 

3. COMMENTARY 

3.1 This report provides the provisional outturn position for the Education Services Portfolio PDS 
Committee, which is broken down in detail in Appendix 1, along with explanatory notes. 
 

3.2 The provisional outturn for the “controllable” element of the Care Services budget in 2016/17 is 
an underspend of £109,000 compared to the last reported figure of £75,000 overspend which 
was based on activity at the end of December 2016. 
 
FINAL POSITION (NON SCHOOLS BUDGET) 
 

3.3 The £109k underspend is summarised in table one. All of the pressures and savings are further 
detailed and broken down in Appendix 1b. 
 

DIVISION £'000

Adult Education Centre - Reduction in income and business rates payment 147     

Nursery recharge income  partially offset by additional schools income and staff 

vacancies

31       

SEN Transport overspend partially offset by Education Psychologists income, 

additional grant and staff vacancies 

391     

Recharge overspend offset by corresponding amount in non controllable 

expenditure

87       

YOT - staffing and running costs 20-       

Early Intervention Service - Staffing and running expenses plus additional recharge 

of Public Health grant

699-     

Other minor over/underspends 46-       

109-      
 
 
FINAL POSITION (SCHOOLS BUDGET) 
 

3.4 An element of the Education budget within the Education Care and Health Services (ECHS) 
department is classed as Schools’ Budget and is funded by the Dedicated Schools grant (DSG). 
Grant conditions requires that any over or under spend should be carried forward to the next 
financial year. 
 

3.5 The Schools’ Budget has underspent by £226k during 2016/17, which will be added to the 
£1.4m remaining carry forward from 2015/16, giving a total of £1.6m to be carried forward into 
2017/18 
 

3.6 A summary of the main variations is provided in the table below, and further details of the 
variations can be found within Appendix 2. 

Page 143



  

4 

 

£000

Outturn

Variance

Beacon House Refurbishment 1,572      

Bulge Classes (inc Modular classroom rentals) 379         

SEN - Placements 482Cr       

SEN - Other Variations 353Cr       

Free Early Education 651Cr       

FAP Payments 117         

Standard Fund Grant 745Cr       

Other Variations 63Cr         

Final Outturn 226Cr       
 
 
CARRY FORWARDS 
 

3.7 On the 20th June 2017 the Executive were asked to approve a number of carry forward requests 
relating to either unspent grant income, or delays in expenditure where cost pressures will 
follow through into 2017/18. Appendix 3 provides a detailed breakdown of all of the carry 
forward requests. These amount to £217k and all of the expenditure is covered by grant 
funding, so there will be a net zero effect on the budget. As you will see from Appendix 3 the 
carry forwards included relate to grants which will not have to be repaid if not agreed but will 
impact on service delivery in 2017/18. Future reports to the Portfolio Holder and/or Executive 
will be required to approve their release. 
 
 
FULL YEAR EFFECTS MOVING INTO 2017/18 
 

3.8 Appendix 4 provides a breakdown of any full year implications arising from the final 2016/17 
outturn. Overall there are £755k of full year effect pressures in 2016/17. This is in the SEN 
Transport area. As part of the budget setting process these full year effects have been dealt 
with and additional funding has been added to the budgets for 2017/18. 
 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE & EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF 
EDUCATION, CARE AND HEALTH SERVICES 
 

3.9 The Adult Education Service overspent in year by £147k. The service has been restructured 
with a significant reduction in expenditure. Most of the overspend related to associated one-off 
costs of downsizing the service and vacating the Widmore premises. This area continued to pay 
business rates for the Widmore Centre since vacating the site at end of August 2016 whilst 
alternative uses for the site were found. This should cease once the new lease is signed with 
the EFA. 
 

3.10  The two in house nurseries overspent by £95k due to lack of use/income by social care clients. 
There is a proposal to mitigate this. 
 

3.11 Transport continues to see pressures emerge, although steps are being taken to address this 
as far as possible. Increased numbers of children with complex needs requiring EHC plans (27 
per cent increase in new plans this year as compared with the previous year).  There is a root 
and branch review of SEND currently being commissioned which will include a review of all high 
needs block. Members have acknowledged the pressure in SEN Transport and additional 

Page 144



  

5 

funding has been made available in 2017/18. 
 

3.12 In Workforce development there has been a reduction in income following a restructure which 
resulted in a deficit position. Savings for 2017/18 will result in this area no longer contributing to 
overheads of the Widmore Centre. 
 

3.13 Public Health has contributed to the Early Intervention agenda which has resulted in the 
Education Portfolio being in an underspend position overall. 
 

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Resources Portfolio Plan includes the aim of effective monitoring and control of expenditure 

within budget and includes the target that each service department ill spend within its own 
budget. 

4.2 Bromley’s Best Value Performance Plan “Making a Difference” refers to the Council’s intention 
to remain amongst the lowest Council Tax levels in outer London and the importance of greater 
focus on priorities. 

4.3 The four year financial forecast report highlights the financial pressures facing the Council. It 
remains imperative that strict budgetary control continues to be exercised in 2017/18 to 
minimise the risk of compounding financial pressures in future years.    

4.4 Chief Officers and Departmental Heads of Finance are continuing to place emphasis on the 
need for strict compliance with the Council’s budgetary control and monitoring arrangements. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The financial implications are contained within the body of the report. A detailed breakdown of 
the projected outturn by service area in shown in appendix 1 with explanatory notes in appendix 
2.  

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Legal Implications 
Personnel Implications 
Customer Implications 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

2016/17 Budget Monitoring files in ECHS Finance Section 

 

Page 145



This page is left intentionally blank



APPENDIX 1Education Portfolio Budget Monitoring Summary

2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 Variation Notes Variation Full Year

Actuals Service Areas Original Final Provisional Last Effect

Budget Approved Outturn Reported

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

EDUCATION CARE & HEALTH SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Education Division

233Cr       Adult Education Centres   288Cr              288Cr            141Cr          147          1 83             0               

231          Alternative Education and Welfare Service 250 254 258 4              8               0               

264          Schools and Early Years Commissioning & QA 391 401 432 31            2 140           0               

5,141       SEN and Inclusion 4,869 5,090 5,481 391          3 512           755           

207          Strategic Place Planning 205 253 211 42Cr         0               0               

15Cr         Workforce Development & Governor Services 18 19 26 7              0               0               

1,650Cr    Education Services Grant   1,728Cr           1,274Cr         1,274Cr       0              4 471           0               

Education Funds Held in Contingency 0 0 0              4 471Cr        0               

1,395Cr    Schools Budgets   1,219Cr           1,222Cr         1,135Cr       87            5 0               0               

1,757       Bromley Youth Support Programme 1,438            1,536 1,516 20Cr         6 96Cr          0               

175          Other Strategic Functions 179 261 246 15Cr         0               0               

4,482       4,115            5,030           5,620          590          647           755           

Children's Social Care

1,872       Early Intervention Services 1,130            1,137           438             699Cr       7 572Cr        0               

1,872       1,130            1,137           438             699Cr       572Cr        0               

6,354       TOTAL CONTROLLABLE FOR EDUCATION 5,245            6,167           6,058          109Cr       75             755           

11,061     Total Non-Controllable 4,198            8,602Cr        8,602Cr       0              0               0               

3,396       Total Excluded Recharges 3,240            3,067           3,067          0              0               0               

20,811     TOTAL EDUCATION PORTFOLIO 12,683          632              523             109Cr       75             755           

Memorandum Item

Sold Services

62Cr         Education Psychology Service (RSG Funded) 18Cr               18Cr             134Cr          116Cr       170Cr        0               

43Cr         Education Welfare Service (RSG Funded) 33Cr               32Cr             16Cr             16            19             0               

33Cr         Workforce Development (DSG/RSG Funded) 11Cr               11Cr             11               22            8 0               0               

0              Governor Services (DSG/RSG Funded) 6Cr                 6Cr               3                 9              0               0               

66Cr          Community Vision Nursery (RSG Funded) 0                   0                  16               16            113           16             

23Cr          Blenheim Nursery (RSG Funded) 0                   3                  82               79            54             79             

0              Business Partnerships (RSG Funded) 0                   0                  0              0               0               

Total Sold Services 68Cr              64Cr             38Cr            26            16             95             

Page 147



APPENDIX 2

2. Schools and Early Years Commissioning & QA - Dr £31k

REASONS FOR VARIATIONS

4. Education Services Grant - Dr £0k

The Education Services Grant (ESG) allocation for 2016/17 came in £454k less than budget.  The ESG allocation is re-calculated on a 

quarterly basis, so the grant reduces in-year as schools convert to academies.  8 Schools converted during the year.  The full year effect of 

these conversions is £552k.  The shortfall will be drawn-down from contingency to cover this, so no variation is being reported.

In 2016/17 there has been an in-year underspend of £226k.  £3.7m was carried forward in 2016/17 and has been partly offset by planned 

one off growth of £2.3m.  This means the Council will carry forward £1.6m DSG into 2017/18.

5. Schools Budgets  - Dr £87k

Expenditure on Schools is funded through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) provided by the Department for Education (DfE). DSG is 

ring fenced and can only be applied to meet qualifying expenditure in the Schools Budget. Any overspend or underspend must be carried 

forward to the following year.

The two in-house nurseries have over spent by £95k. This has been caused by under collection of recharge income from Children's Social 

Care (CSC).  This overspend is offset by an underspend in CSC, and therefore has a £0 effect across the council.  The nurseries have 

offset this over spend by collecting additional income for the places that are not being used by CSC.

The overspends in the nurseries has been offset by underspends of £64k in the remaining parts of this area.  These underspends are, in 

the main, made up of extra income collected from schools (£26k) and underspends in staffing costs (of 20k).

1. Adult Education Centres - Dr £147k

The restructure that took place in Adult Education at the start of the Academic year has now started to settle down and is producing an 

overspend of £147k for this year.  The pressure is being caused by a reduction in income (mainly from the SFA grant), the continued costs 

of Business Rates for the now empty Widmore Centre and unexpected payments to staff for Lieu of notice.  These pressures have been 

partially offset by under spending in running costs.

As part of the restructuring of the Adult Education Service, they vacated the Widmore, one of the properties they occupied.  This property 

was to be used by the EFA to provide extra school places in Bromley.  As yet this sale has not gone through.  The property has now 

passed its exemption period and Business Rates totalling £44k have been paid for 2016/17 that was not budgeted for.  This pressure is 

likely to be on-going until the property is taken over by the EFA.

A report recently went to the Commissioning Board relating to the two in-house nurseries within this area.  The Commissioning Board has 

requested a management action plan be drawn up to put the nurseries on a break even position going forward.  As the management action 

is likely to involve the reorganisation of the service, it is likely that the management action plan will not be fully implemented until the new 

financial Year.

Additionally the Department for Education has provided LBB with a SEND Regional Lead Grant in 2016/17 that is used in partnership with 

Enfield to support the role of regional lead for the implementation of the Special Educational Needs reforms.  LBB's allocation of this grant 

for 2016/17 is £28k, along with a  carry forward of £15k of the 2015/16 grant that was not used.

Although the travel training programme continues with success and has contributed to improved outcomes and helps address annual 

volume increases, SEN transport has overspent its budget by £504k.  This has reduced since the last report as income came in higher 

than forecast.  A significant part of this relates to the cost of the new contracts which commenced on 01/09/2015 with a revised pricing 

framework which, with no provision for inflation over the life of the contracts, are assumed to have front-loaded inflationary increases.  The 

remainder of the overspend is due to the increased number of routes required during the year and the complexity of the clients using them 

(i.e. the need to have assistants on the transport due to the young age of the client).

Bulge classes have overspent by £150k for this financial year.   Additionally there has been an overspend of by £229k on modular 

classroom rentals during the year.  

Central Government pay Councils the Extended Rights to Free Travel grant (funding for children to get to school). This has resulted in a 

£4k underspend as the budget was less than the actual income we are now receiving.

During the year the remaining balance for the costs of the refurbishment of Beacon House to allow it to be used for a school has been 

contributed to the capital project (£1,572k).

The Primary Support Team is in the process of being re-organised and a number of posts were kept vacant during the year which has 

resulted in an underspend of £58k. 

Free Early Years Education has underspent by £651k this year.  This is due to a £141k underspend for the 2 year old age group and an 

underspend £510k for the year in the 3 & 4 years age group.

The Education Psychologists Trading Account has collected income over its budget by £116k this year.  This is offset by an overspend of 

£40k in the Education Psychologists to do with the schools in Bromley.  This results in a net underspend of £76k.

3. SEN and Inclusion - Dr £391k

To help authorities with the amount of work required to convert existing Statements of SEN to the new Education Health and Care (EHC) 

plans, and to implement the changes to working practices required, the Department for Education has created the SEN Implementation 

(New Burdens) Grant.  LBB's allocation of this grant for 2016/17 is £201k, of which £180k was approved for drawdown by Executive in 

March 2016, in addition to the carry forward of £108k of the 2015/16 grant that was not used.

There is an overall variance on the Schools Budget this year on controllable expenditure of £87k.  This is offset by an underspend of £87k 

in the non-controllable spend due to lower overheads being charged to the DSG related budgets. 

Other variations total a net underspend of £33k and are mainly associated with staffing.

The in-year underspend is broken down as follows:-

Page 148



APPENDIX 2

Variations

£'000

Bulge Classes 150

Modular classroom rentals 229

Free Early Education - 2 year olds   141Cr           

Free Early Education - 3 & 4 year olds   510Cr           

Primary Support Team   58Cr             

FAP Payments 117

Standards Fund Grant   745Cr           

Beacon House 1,572

Other Small Balances   5Cr               

SEN:

 - Placements   482Cr           

 - Support in FE colleges
   37Cr             

 - Home & Hospital
 80

 - SIPS
   12Cr             

 - Pupil Support Services
   61Cr             

 - High Needs Pre-school Service
   41Cr             

 - Other Statemented   194Cr           

 - Disability Services   88Cr             

  226Cr           

Variations

£'000

Youth Services 13

Youth Offending Team   33Cr             

  20Cr             

7. Early Intervention Services - Cr £699k

Variations

£'000

Bromley Children's Project   687Cr           

Information Advice and Support Service   12Cr             

  699Cr           

8. Sold Services (net budgets)

Waiver of Financial Regulations

Virements Approved to date under Director's Delegated Powers

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules state that where the value of a contract exceeds £50k and is to be exempted from the normal 

requirement to obtain competitive quotations, the Chief Officer has to obtain the agreement of the Director of Resources and Finance 

Director and (where over £100k) approval of the Portfolio Holder, and report use of this exemption to Audit Sub committee bi-annually. 

Since the last report to the Executive, four waivers have been actioned and they all have an annual value range of £123k to £424k each.

Details of virements actioned by Chief Officers under delegated authority under the Financial Regulations "Scheme of Virement" will be 

included in financial monitoring reports to the Portfolio Holder. Since the last report to Executive, three virements have been actioned.  

These relate to adjustments to realign the SEN budgets and the re-alignment of overhead budgets.

The £20k underspend is derived from Youth Services and the YOT and are made up of various underspends and overspends in staffing 

and running costs.

Bromley Children's Project variance is due to a underspends in staffing of £84k due to in year recruitment, reduced running costs and 

additional income of £103k and a recharge from Public Health to support the Children Centres of £500k.

6. Bromley Youth Support Programme - Cr £20k

SEN has underspent by £835k.  There are many factors that make up this figure including:- SEN placements has underspent by a total of 

£482k, mainly due to fewer placements being made in independent boarding schools partially offset by increases in day placements.  

There has also been underspends on pre-school services due to staffing vacancies and in other statemented services due to an 

underspend in a contract.  This has been partially offset by the Home and Hospital service which has seen an increase in Agency tutors. 

The FAP budget has overspent by £117k due to a prior year payment being paid in the current year for the Secondary FAP.

Standards Fund Grant has been allocated to DSG amounting to £745k and has been used to offset current expenditure.

Information Advice and Support Service underspend is due to in year recruitment.

Services sold to schools are separately identified in this report to provide clarity in terms of what is being provided. These accounts are 

shown as memorandum items as the figures are included in the appropriate Service Area in the main report. 

Other minor variations total a net underspend of £5k.

Page 149



APPENDIX 3

Carry Forwards from 2016/17 to 2017/18

£ £

Grants with no Explicit Right of Repayment

EDUCATION PORTFOLIO

15 Early Years Grant - Supporting early education of disadvantaged children            14,800

It has taken longer than expected to work through the IT related agreements to purchase software 

and implement  the changes needed with the introduction of additional hours of early years 

funding. To support this there will be a need to use the grant for additional hours for staff to steer 

the activity through to completion which the conditions of the grant allow.

16 LA conversion Academies sponsor support 28,000

This grant is to support the conversion of our remaining Schools into Academies.  The grant was 

received late in 2016/17 and was unable to spent in 2016/17  

17 High Needs Strategic Planning Fund 139,624

Grant received late in 2016/17 and was unable to spent in year.  Grant is to be used to review the 

services we support via the High Needs DSG Block.  We are currently in the process of employing 

someone to carry out the review.

18 SEN Reform Grant 20,703

This grant is to support a three year Government specified programme for the transition of 

statements into Education Health and Care Plans (EHCP).  The underspends in 2016/17 are 

required to continue to support this work in 2017/18 to meet the three year Government deadline. 

Bromley is the lead partner with Enfield.

19 SEN Pathfinder Grant 14,427

This grant is to support our role as a Pathfinder Champion.  This role has benefited the local 

authority in accessing high quality training and innovative practice.  The carry forward of this grant 

allows the delivery of the training programme to continue.

Education Portfolio 217,554

Total Expenditure to be Carried Forward 217,554

Total Grant Income -217,554

Page 150



APPENDIX 4

2016/17 Final Variation To

Approved 2016/17

Budget Budget 

£’000 £’000

SEN Transport 3,645                  504                               SEN Transport caries Children with special needs to and 

from school.  Over the last few years there has been an 

increasing pressure on the budget.  The causes of this 

include the new contract that was agreed in 2015/16 and 

the change in the age profile of the children to a younger 

age range that requires shorter travel time and more care 

during the trip.  The full year effect of the pressures are 

£755k

Description Potential Impact in 2017/18

Page 151



APPENDIX 5

LATEST APPROVED BUDGET

Reconciliation of Latest Approved Budget £'000

Original Budget 2016/17 12,683    

SEN Implementation Grant 2015/16

- expenditure 28           

- income 28Cr        

YOS Service Strategy Review 97           

SEN Implementation Grant 2016/17

- expenditure 180         

- income 180Cr      

SEN Regional Lead Grant 2016/17

- expenditure 28           

- income 28Cr        

High Needs Strategic Planning Fund 2016/17

- expenditure 140         

- income 140Cr      

SEN Regional Lead Grant 2015/16 (Carried Forward)

- expenditure 15           

- income 15Cr        

SEN Implementation Grant 2015/16

- expenditure 80           

- income 80Cr        

Consultancy Support (Place Planning & Schools) 40           

Transfer of SEN Transport staffing post 20           

12           

LSSG - Extended Rights to Free Travel Grant 15Cr        

Transfer of Education Transport Staff to SEN 47           

ESG Contingency 454         

Merit Awards 38           

Memorandum Items

Capital Charges 14,030Cr 

Insurance 6             

Repairs & Maintenance 11Cr        

IAS19 (FRS17) 1,236      

Excluded Recharges 55           

Latest Approved Budget for 2016/17 632         

 Transfer of staff as part of the Commissioning   

Page 152



  

1 

Report No. 
ED18014 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: Committee/Portfolio Holder 

Date:  05/07/2017 

Decision Type: Urgent Non-Urgent 
 

Executive Non-Executive 
 

Key Non-Key 
 

Title: Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO)L 

Contact Officer: Mrs Rita Dada, LADO 
Tel:  020 84617669      Email:  rita.dada@bromley.gov.uk  

Chief Officer: Janet Bailey, Interim Social Care Director 
Tel:  020 8313 4644     Email:  janet.bailey@bromley.gov.uk  

Ward: All Wards 

 
1. Reason for report 

LADO report to inform the Education, Care and Health-safety Committee 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

Please see LADO report prepared for 2016/17 (see attached as an Appendix). 

 

Page 153

Agenda Item 10

mailto:rita.dada@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:janet.bailey@bromley.gov.uk


  

2 

Corporate Policy 
 

1. Policy Status: Not Applicable:   
 

2. BBB Priority: Children and Young People Excellent Council Quality Environment Safer Bromley 
Supporting Independence Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres Not Applicable: Further Details 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: Not Applicable:  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:  
 

3. Budget head/performance centre:       
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £      
 

5. Source of funding:       
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):         
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:         
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement:  
 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):        
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable  
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        
 

Page 154



  

3 

 

Non-Applicable Sections:  Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not 
Applicable  

 Summary of Ward Councillors comments:        

 COMMENTARY 

 IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN  

 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact Officer) 

Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) 

 

Page 155



This page is left intentionally blank



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

Annual LADO Report for BSCB  

 

2015 – 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 157



 

2 
 

Introduction and Legislative Framework 
 

This report has been prepared to inform the Bromley Safeguarding Children Board 

(BSCB) of the work carried out in the London Borough of Bromley to manage 

allegations that have been made against staff who work with children and young 

people. The report applies to allegations made against those working in either a paid 

or unpaid capacity with children in Bromley during the period 1st April 2015 to 31st 

March 2016. 

Section 11 of The Children Act 2004 sets out the statutory requirement for local 

authorities to have in place clear procedures for responding to allegations of harm or 

abuse of children by staff or foster carers. 

The responsibilities of Local Safeguarding Children Boards (LSCBs) in respect of 

allegations against professionals are set out in Working Together to Safeguard 

Children 2013.  Regulation 5 of the Local Safeguarding Children Boards Regulations 

2006 stipulate that one of the functions is to develop policies and procedures for 

safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children, including the investigation of 

allegations concerning adults who work with children. LSCBs have a further function 

to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of these multi agency policies and 

procedures when implemented by the local authority and partner agencies. 

Working Together to Safeguard Children ( March 2015) makes reference to the 

expectation that LSCBs have in place clear policies for allegations management and 

goes on to expound upon the responsibilities of individual agencies including those 

of the local authority.  

The guidance further states that local authorities should designate an officer or team 

of officers to be involved in the management and oversight of allegations against 

people that work with children. A change to previous guidance is the requirement for 

newly appointed designated officers dealing with allegations to be social work 

qualified unless they have prior experience of the role.  

Keeping Children Safe in Education (March 2015) is the statutory guidance outlining 

the safeguarding procedures for schools and colleges. Part Four of this guidance 

contains all considerations for both employers and employees in relation to 

managing allegations against staff who work in educational settings with children and 

young people under the age of 18.   The revised version of this guidance which 

comes into force 5th September 2016 contains more details about the staff covered 

by Allegations Management procedures, additional checks to enhance safer 

recruitment procedures and teacher prohibition orders. 

 

 

Page 158



 

3 
 

Allegations Management in Bromley 
 

In accordance with Working Together to Safeguard Children 2015 the London 

Borough of Bromley has a designated officer with overall responsibility for managing 

and co-ordinating allegations made against those who work with children. 

Bromley has retained the title of Local Authority Designated Officer for this role which 

is held by a Group Manager situated within the Quality Improvement Service, who is 

supported in the role by another dedicated LADO. The lead LADO is also the Lead 

Officer for Education Safeguarding although the overall responsibility for 

safeguarding in Education rests with the Director for Education.  

In December 2015 the Director for Children’s Social Care commissioned a review of 

the internal processes for Allegations Management. The review identified the need 

for increased capacity and resources in terms of the administrative support to the 

LADO and this was immediately addressed.  

The review also led to the trialling of a system where a provisional date, time and 

venue for a strategy meeting was arranged to take place within 72 hours of the 

allegation being reported. This was different to the way referrals were responded to 

previously. 

Prior to the 72 hour trial the referrer would discuss the concern with the LADO who in 

consultation with the employer would decide if the concerns met the threshold for a 

strategy meeting. The LADO would then determine the availability of the employer to 

attend a strategy meeting then a date, time and venue would be agreed and an 

invitation would be sent out to all invitees.   

The trial highlighted the need for a review of the 72 hour turnaround from the point of 

referral. Referrers were unable to attend the strategy meetings at such short notice 

and consequently a disproportionate number of the provisional dates booked had to 

be rescheduled. This impacted on the availability of minute takers and venues for 

other child protection meetings. 

The 72 hour timeframe did not allow the Referral and Assessment duty team who 

make the referrals to the Police Child Abuse Investigation Team to carry out the 

required checks on the accused person and alleged victim, refer the matter to the 

Child Abuse Investigation Team and feed back to the LADO before the meeting.  

The Child Abuse Investigation Team were unable to carry out the required checks on 

the accused person and the alleged victim, and confirm whether or not there was to 

be a police investigation within the given timeframe. This resulted in additional 

review meetings because there was no decision from the police at the initial strategy 

meeting about whether there was to be a joint of single agency investigation 

Page 159



 

4 
 

In nearly all cases the employer of the accused person is required to attend the 

strategy meeting. The referrer of an allegation is not always the employer and 

establishing who the employer is can prove to be a lengthy time consuming process.  

The LADOs who it must be remembered chair all the complex strategy meetings, 

also struggled to make contact and have strategy discussions with the referrers, 

employers, CAIT and Referral and Assessment making decisions and providing 

advice within the set timeframe. 

As a consequence of these outcomes the trial was reviewed and the timescale for 

action modified. What has worked extremely well is an undertaking for all referrals to 

receive an immediate response confirming receipt of the referral and for the LADO to 

make contact with the referrer within 72 hours with a view to convening a strategy 

meeting within 5 working days from the point of referral. 

The effectiveness of Bromley’s procedures for managing allegations against staff 

that work with children was noted in the Ofsted Inspection Report following the 

recent Ofsted inspection of Bromley’s services for children in need of help and 

protection. The report states:  

 
An effective designated officer and a well-resourced service follow up children 
who are subject to allegations of professional abuse. Complex strategy 
meetings are held, when necessary, with clear monitored actions to ensure the 
well-being and safety of children subject to allegations. Good multi-agency 
systems and relationships ensure that communication and actions are clear. 
There is also evidence of training and awareness raising regarding the 
designated officer role and findings from cases. (London Borough of Bromley 
Inspection Report, 27th June 2016 - OFSTED) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 160



 

5 
 

 

 

Allegations Overview 

From the 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016 a total of 193 allegations were reported to 

the local authority (Table 1.2). This is a significant 73.87% increase in the number of 

referrals received and recorded from all agencies across the borough. The 

implementation of a new IT application designed to improve the recording of 

allegations data had led to an anticipated increase in the number of referrals 

received the during the period from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015 which didn’t 

materialise. Whilst the statistics for that period showed almost a 10% increase in the 

number of referrals, on analysis of the figures the increase was shown to be from a 

different cause. 

Examination of this most recent data suggests there are several contributory factors 

resulting in the 73.87% increase. The first is undoubtedly the robust recording of all 

allegations reported to the local authority whether or not they meet the threshold for 

further LADO action. This has been facilitated by the implementation and embedding 

of the IT application on CareFirst for recording allegations. Allegations that do not 

meet the threshold for a strategy meeting but are referred back to the employer for a 

management investigation are nonetheless recorded on the database. 

The second factor is the delivery of regular multi-agency Allegation Management 

Briefings offered as part of the Bromley Safeguarding Children Board comprehensive 

training programme, along with single agency training devised and delivered by 

professionals within their own agencies.  

The third is the drive to raise awareness of allegation management procedures by 

reviewing, updating and disseminating the local Managing Allegations Procedures 

and 1 page quick guide, ensuring there is mention of Allegations Management on the 

agenda of all safeguarding training, and safeguarding forums and wherever possible 

encouraging individual agencies to develop their own policies and procedures for 

managing allegations against staff.      

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 161



 

6 
 

Table 1:1  Allegation Referrals 2015 - 2016 

Primary 
Abuse type 
by Agency of 
Perpetrator  

Emotional  Inappropriate 
Behaviour  

Neglect  Physical  Sexual  Total  

Early Years  3 5 4 15 0 27 

Education  11 13 3 46 10 83 

Faith Group 0 0 0 0 1 1 

Foster Carer 1 4 7 7 0 19 

Health  2 2 1 19 2 26 

Other  0 2 0 9 4 15 

Police  1 0 0 1 2 4 

Secure Estate  1 0 0 3 0 4 

Social Care  0 1 2 3 2 8 

Uniformed 
Organisations 

0 0 1 2 3 6 

Total  19 27 18 105 24 193 

 

 

 

Table 1:2   Allegation Referrals 2014 - 2015  

Primary 
Abuse Type 
by Agency of 
Perpetrator 

Emotional Inappropriate 
Behaviour 

Neglect Physical Sexual  Total 

Early Years 2  1 0    8 6 17 

Education 1 15 2 25 6 49 

Foster Carers 2   0 0   6 2  10 

Health  0   1  0 12 5 18 

Other  0   1  0   6 4 11 

Secure 
Estate 

 0   0  1   0  0   1 

Social Care  0   0  0   1   1 

Uniformed  
Organisations 

 0   0  0   3   3 

Voluntary  
Organisations 

 0   1   0   0  0   1 

Total 5 19   3 57 27 111 

 

 

 

 

Page 162



 

7 
 

As can be seen from Table 1.1 the sector generating the highest number of referrals 

was Education. There were 83 allegations from Education which is 43% of all the 

allegation referrals made to the local authority. This is consistently in line with the 

previous 2 years in Bromley and also in line with national statistics.  

Early Years and Health generated the next highest number of referrals and again 

this is in line with the previous year. There were 27 (13.9%) referrals relating to 

professionals working in Early Years settings. Of these 2 were allegations relating to 

registered childminders and the remaining 25 were relating to nursery and pre-

school settings.  

The number of allegations received for Health professionals is at 26, (13.4%) a 

slightly lower percentage than the previous year but still considerably higher than 2 

years ago. However given the number of Health professionals working across the 

borough in hospitals, medical centres, drop in clinics, surgeries and even schools it 

is felt that the number of referrals remains disproportionately low.   

The agencies classified as ‘other’ encompass those miscellaneous agencies that do 

not have their own individual category on the database. As can be seen from Table 

1:3 when the group is broken down the number of referrals relating to transport 

workers (4.1%) and sporting organisations (2.36%) indicate emerging concerns. The 

transport workers include the private taxi/minibus drivers, and the escorts that take 

children (most of whom have a disability) to and from school. The sporting 

organisations include tennis, football and rugby coaches.      

It is difficult to make any significant impact in attempting to address safeguarding 

training needs within these companies and organisations. Many will have little or no 

knowledge of allegation management procedures. There is no requirement for 

proprietors or employees of taxi firms to access safeguarding training. Similarly 

individual tennis coaches operating on their own or small local football clubs run by 

local parents and not affiliated to any of the large mainstream clubs will not seek to 

attend safeguarding training and may therefore not be aware of the procedures for 

managing allegations.   

Uniformed organisations such as the Scouts, Boys Brigade and the Cadets have 

generated 6 referrals this year. The LADO has seen a considerable improvement in 

the way these organisations have put safeguarding on their agendas, developing 

safeguarding policies and procedures and seeking to recognise and take appropriate 

action in response safeguarding concerns.  

It is important to remember the allegations management process is also applicable to 

professionals where concerns about them in their personal lives raise questions 

about their suitability to work with children. An example of this would be if a 

professional was to come to the attention of Children’s Social Care following a 

disclosure s/he has physically chastised their own child.  

Page 163



 

8 
 

Table 1:3 

 

Table 2:1 

 

 

 

Transport Company

Sporting Organisation

Private Prison and Security Escorts

Private Cleaning Contractor

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

O
th

er
 A

ge
n

ts
 

Axis Title 

Breakdown of 'other' agencies 

Series1

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

Agency 

Agency Referred 

Page 164



 

9 
 

 

Table 2:2 

 

Table 3:1 

 

 

 

Table 3:1 shows the local authority received 105 allegations of physical abuse which 

is more than half of all referrals received. Whilst in many of these cases there was a 

context of physical restraint or physical handling, there were also allegations made 

by children that they were hit or struck by professionals that work with children and 

young people. These alleged incidents occurred either in a domestic setting in their 

personal lives or in a professional setting where the adult concerned was working in 

a professional capacity.   

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

Referring Agency 

Referring Agency 

19 

27 

18 

105 

24 

Category of abuse 

Emotional Inappropriate Neglect Physical Sexual

Page 165



 

10 
 

The next highest category is ‘inappropriate behaviour’ with a total of 27 (13.9%) 

referrals. This category covers concerning behaviour that does not fit into the usual 4 

categories of abuse. This would for example include a professional sharing 

cigarettes and smoking with a young person. 

Referrals relating to sexual abuse total 24 (12.4%) and these include allegations that 

relate to ‘abuse of position of trust’ where for example an adult professional is 

alleged to have engaged in an inappropriate relationship (sexual or otherwise) with a 

young person. Allegations of grooming, (face to face or via social media) with a view 

to engaging a young person in an inappropriate relationship is also recorded under 

this category. 

Neglect referrals make up 9.2% of all referrals and consist of a wide range of 

concerns from children getting lost while in the care of a professional to Early Years 

practitioners failing to clean and change the nappies of very young children. It is 

anticipated that plans for a drive to raise awareness of neglect issues throughout the 

borough may lead to an increase in the number of referrals relating to cases of 

neglect. 

 

Health 

The LADO had noted the low number of allegation referrals received from the Health 

sector overall and had also picked up that the referrals made were very often of a 

poor quality. It was further noted that only a very small number of professionals from 

Health were attending the Allegations Lunchtime Briefings. 

. The Head of Nursing and Safeguarding had also identified concerns around the 

lack of consistency among various Health professionals in relation to reporting 

allegations within the required timescales, the failure to report allegations to the 

designated lead doctor and designated lead nurse and failure of staff to comply with 

the requirement for professionals to follow the London Child Protection Procedures 

(LCPP) and the NHS procedures in parallel. 

In March 2014, NHS England published their own policy and procedure guidance 

outlining the framework for ‘Managing Safeguarding Allegations Against Staff’. This 

was updated in June 2015. There appeared to be some incognizance among Health 

professionals about the need to follow both the NHS procedures and the LCPP. 

The LADO and Head of Nursing agreed to jointly provide the Health Sector with 

bespoke training raising awareness of both the London Child Protection Procedures 

and the NHS Commissioning Board procedures and reinforcing the need to for 

professionals from the Health sector to follow both when responding to allegations 

made against staff.  

Page 166



 

11 
 

The training workshop incorporated both sets of procedures providing an overview of 

all action required and detailing in sequence the points at which action from either of 

the procedures should be taken. The workshop also outlined clearly the precise 

nature of the action required, highlighting the do’s and don’ts and common mistakes. 

Invitations were sent to all Health Safeguarding Leads and Health Human Resource 

Teams within Bromley by the Clinical Commissioning Group and the Bromley 

Safeguarding Children Board with the expectation that there would be a mixed group 

of professionals in attendance from across the Health sector. 

Unfortunately despite invitations being sent out in a timely fashion to all stakeholders 

the training session was poorly attended.    

 

Foster Carers 

Whilst the number of allegations against foster carers appears to have doubled with 

an increase from 10 (9%) last year to 19 (9.8%) this year, the overall percentage has 

only increased by 0.8%. The threshold for convening a strategy meeting where the 

alleged victim is a child looked after is set lower than is normal due their increased 

vulnerability. A strategy meeting also offers the opportunity for additional scrutiny of 

the foster placement and consideration of how well the child’s needs are being met.  

The fostering teams have worked very closely with the LADO to ensure foster carers 

are adequately supervised, trained and supported to provide safe, nurturing and 

caring home environments for the looked after children in their care. 

The fostering social workers and managers have been swift to identify and take 

decisive action to safeguard children when concerns have been raised about foster 

carers’ standards of care and have attended strategy meetings fully informed and 

prepared to take forward any actions assigned to them.   

 

Education 

As mentioned earlier the referrals relating to Education staff account for 43% of all 

allegations received. Schools are now required to have their own policies and 

procedures around responding to allegations of abuse made against professionals 

that must be written in accordance with the local authority’s Procedures for 

Managing Allegations against Professionals. This should have a positive impact on 

how whole school staff teams respond to allegations.  

Schools in Bromley have demonstrated a robust approach to identifying and 

reporting allegations made against professionals working in Education however it 

must be noted that of the 83 concerns reported, Table 2:2 shows only 70 referrals 

Page 167



 

12 
 

were received from educational establishments. This shows that not all concerns 

relating to education staff are reported to the LADO by education. 

Table 4:1 

 

 

Table 4:1 shows the breakdown of allegations received relating to concerns around 

those working in educational settings. The high number of allegations from primary 

schools (56%) compared with secondary schools (26%) reflects the high number of 

primary schools in the borough compared to the number of secondary schools.  

The number of safeguarding referrals from educational establishments overall 

continue to peak towards the end of the week, with significant increases before half 

term and before the end of term. This is reflected in the number of allegation 

referrals received during these peak periods. It is acknowledged that unlike general 

safeguarding concerns it is difficult to prevent this influx of allegation referrals 

because towards the end of term staff and students alike are becoming exhausted 

and irritable causing tolerance levels to drop, tempers become very short and 

situations develop that result in the need for a LADO referral.    

It would be beneficial therefore for senior leadership management teams to include 

discussion around the end of term peak in referrals during staff safeguarding 

training. Staff can be reminded of the reasons why it happens and discuss the 

preventative measures they need to employ to protect themselves as well as the 

children. This will include enhanced self-awareness, rigidly adhering to set 

boundaries and codes of conduct, and the use de-escalation and behaviour 

management strategies.   

The revised and amended Keeping Children Safe in Education 2016 which comes 

into force 5th September 2016 introduces further checks in addition to enhanced 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

College Independent Primary Secondary Special

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
al

le
ga

ti
o

n
s 

School type 

Breakdown of education allegations 

Page 168



 

13 
 

Disclosure and Barring Service checks to be conducted as part of the Safer 

Recruitment process.   

The additional checks will identify whether someone has been barred from working 

with children thereby further helping to prevent unsuitable people from working with 

children. 

Early Years 

Of the 27 Early Years concerns, 55% were in relation to physical abuse which raises 

questions about whether there is a need for Early Years provisions to ensure all 

grades of their practitioners receive behaviour management and positive handling 

training.  

When strategy meetings are convened in respect of Early Years provisions, a 

representative from the London Borough of Bromley Early Years team is invited to 

attend. During the meeting the Chair will consider whether the recruitment process 

leading to the appointment of the accused person was in accordance with safer 

recruitment procedures. The meetings have revealed that not all Early Years 

provisions are following safer recruitment procedures when recruiting staff.  

The London Borough of Bromley Early Years team have been seeking to address 

this issue for the past few years and this year they were able to commission safer 

recruitment training specifically for Early Years providers. The training is offered 

without cost to providers and is tailored to meet the needs of Early Years settings. 

The safeguarding training for designated leads in Early Years settings offered by 

LBB Early Years team has also been modified to give greater emphasis to safer 

recruitment.    

Table 5:1 

 

2 

25 

Early Years 

Childminders Nursery/Playgroup

Page 169



 

14 
 

 

 

Strategy Meetings and Investigations 

Strategy meetings are convened when the threshold for harm or potential to a child 

is met and or the concerns indicate the professional may not be suitable to work with 

children or young people. As mentioned earlier the threshold for an allegation 

involving a looked after child is lower.  There are other situations that may give rise 

to a strategy meeting when the threshold for harm to a child is not met. These 

include situations where the concerns need to be investigated via a management 

investigation but the LADO is not confident the employing agency or organisation 

has robust disciplinary procedures and processes in place. When a strategy meeting 

is convened under these circumstances the LADO will seek to ensure the 

organisation is in receipt of appropriate support, advice and guidance either from 

herself or another party.  

Of the 193 referrals made to the LADO 112 (58%) resulted in strategy meetings. The 

increase in the number of strategy meetings is commensurate to the overall increase 

in the number of referrals received. When a strategy meeting has been agreed the 

matter is referred to the police if the concerns indicate a crime may have been 

committed.   

A total of 47 (24.4%) referrals were investigated by the police. The level of 

investigation varied from police checks and initial information gathering then no 

further action to full scale investigations lasting several months and resulting in 

cases being tried in court. Although the LADO works primarily with the Child Abuse 

Investigation Team, many cases have involved police officers from across the 

Metropolitan Police including the Paedophile Unit, Sapphire (Sexual Offences) and 

the Youth Policing Team. 

 The police investigations have resulted in 2 perpetrators receiving custodial 

sentences, 1 perpetrator receiving a non-custodial sentence and 2 perpetrators 

receiving a Police Caution.    

The referrals that did not result in a strategy meeting were referred back to the 

employers for internal management action. This may include a disciplinary 

management investigation leading to a formal warning or standard setting, training, 

mentoring or repositioning. 

If the concerns are referred back to the employer for action the case remains open 

until the LADO receives confirmation the investigation has reached a conclusion. 

Page 170



 

15 
 

The records show that despite a number of reminders being sent out to employers 

requesting the outcome of management investigations there are a high number of 

cases where the LADO is awaiting outcomes.  

 

Table 6:1 

 

 

 

Table 6:2 

 

 

 

2 

1 

2 

Total number of convictions 

Custodial Sentence Non-Custodial Sentences Cautions

2 

40 

10 

67 

Allegation Outcome 

Malicious Substatiated Unfounded Unsubstained

Page 171



 

16 
 

Once the investigation into a reported concern has concluded the outcome of the 

investigation is recorded as either ‘malicious’, ‘substantiated’, ‘unfounded’ or 

‘unsubstantiated’.  There is a general misconception that if allegations do not 

progress to criminal police action or dismissal then the allegation was false. This is 

not the case as the vast majority of allegations are unsubstantiated as there is not 

enough evidence to prove or disprove the allegation. Table 6:3 shows the number of 

outcomes recorded. It is evident that agencies have not been systematically notifying 

the LADO of the outcome of their internal management investigations.   

Table 6:3 

 

1. Cessation of use 

2. Criminal investigation 

3. Deregistration 

4. Disciplinary procedures 

5. Dismissal 

6. Inclusion on barred/restricted employment list 

7. Internal action by service 

8. Referral to DBS 

9. Referral to a regulatory body (e.g. Ofsted, GMC) 

10. Resignation 

11. Social Care intervention (personal) 

12. Suspension 

13. Training need identified 

 

As can be seen from above there is a wide range of actions that can be taken in 

response to allegations made against those who work with children and young 

people and this list is not exhaustive. 

As the figures show almost all allegations will result in some form of disciplinary 

action even if the concerns go to court.    

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

Types of outcomes 

Page 172



 

17 
 

 

 

 

Training  

In order to promote a better understanding of and a consistent approach to 

allegations management in accordance with both local and national procedures, the 

BSCB training sub-group identified the need to provide multi-agency Allegations 

Management training.  

The multi-agency sessions were offered without charge to all partner agencies, 

foster carers and voluntary organisations. 

Provide an overview of the BSCB procedures for managing allegations  

Raise awareness of the thresholds for reporting allegations  

Provide an understanding of the role of the LADO  

Raise awareness of where to seek advice and what to do when an     
allegation is made  

Provide an overview of allegations against staff in Bromley  
 
The termly sessions were delivered by the LADO as lunchtime briefings running from 

12.00pm until 2.00pm and included powerpoint presentations, and interactive 

learning using real life Bromley case studies. All attendees were provided with a 

copy of the local procedures for managing allegations and a one page quick guide. 

Over the 3 sessions in excess of 70 professionals attended the briefings and the 

feedback from delegates was that the sessions were excellent. 

The LADO and the Head of Nursing and Safeguarding met to discuss how best to 

improve the quality, quantity and process of allegation referrals concerning Health 

professionals. The LADO had noticed the number of allegation referrals received 

from the Health sector was disproportionately low and the quality of the information 

provided was at times poor. 

The Head of Nursing and Safeguarding had identified inconsistency across Health in 

terms of the timescales for reporting allegations, whether or not the designated nurse 

or designated doctor had been notified, and whether correct procedures had been 

followed.  

Following their meeting the LADO and Head of Nursing developed a bespoke 

training workshop for Health professionals and all Bromley Health designated 

safeguarding leads, named safeguarding leads, and Human Resource teams in 

Health were invited to attend. 

Page 173



 

18 
 

Although the workshop was attended by only 5 professionals from the across the 

Health sector, once again the feedback from delegates was that the workshop was 

excellent. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 174



 

19 
 

 

 

Page 175



This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 MARCH 2017 AND MATTERS OUTSTANDING
	5 CONSIDERATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS ARISING FROM THE EDUCATION CHILDREN AND FAMILY SELECT COMMITTEE SCRUTINY ON THE CHILDREN'S LANDSCAPE IN BROMLEY
	6 REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
	Executive200617ProvisionalOutturnReport201617

	7 BASIC NEED PROGRAMME UPDATE INCLUDING S.106 ALLOCATIONS
	Appendix 1 - Project Update, 19/07/2017 Executive
	Appendix 2 - Updated Capital Scheme Appraisal, 19/07/2017 Executive
	Appendix 3 - Update S106 allocations, 19/07/2017 Executive
	Appendix 4  - Basic Need Programme Budget Update, 19/07/2017 Executive

	8 Budget Closedown 2016/17
	Budget Closedown 2016/17 Appx

	10 Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO)
	Enc. 1 for Local Authority Designated Officer LADO


